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HERO MOTORS LIMITED

Board’s Report

To the Members,
The Board of Directors of your Company has the pleasure in presenting the 24™ Annual Report of the
Company on the business and operations together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year

ended on March 31, 2023.

1. EINANCIAL RESULTS: -

The Financial Results of your Company for the year under review are summarized as under:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Financial Year | Financial Year

(2022-23) (2021-22)
Income from operations 105,527.52 90,397.88
Other income 1,403.84 636.68
Profit / (Loss) before Finance costs and Depreciation 9,963.18 16,618.28
Finance costs 2,560.11 1,432.76
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,724.67 1,590.26
Profit / (Loss) before tax 6,023.33 13,595.26
Provision for current taxes 1,731.22 2,688.43
Deferred Tax (Credit) / Charge (570.14) 1,119.56
Profit / (loss) after tax 4,862.25 9,787.27
Other Comprehensive Income / (L0sS) (481.75) 25.32

2. DIVIDEND

Due to future requirements for working capital, the Board of Directors of your Company has not
recommended any dividend during the year under review.

3. RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the Reserves for
the year under review.

4. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

On standalone basis, the company achieved Revenue of Rs. 105,527.52 lakhs for the FY 2022-23 as
compared to Rs. 90,397.88 lakhs in FY 2021-22, an increase of 16%. The profit before tax (PBT) from
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continuing operations stood at Rs. 6,023.33 lakhs as against Rs. 13,595.26 lakhs. Similarly, the profit
after tax (PAT) was recorded at Rs. 4,862.25 as against Rs. 9,787.27 lakhs in last year.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY DURING THE END OF RELEVANT FINANCIAL YEAR UP TO THE
DATE OF REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year 2022-23 and the date of this
Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there has been following changes in the share capital of the Company:
Authorized Share Capital

The authorized share capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 1,61,50,00,000/- (Rupees One
Hundred and Sixty One Crores and Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 6,20,00,000 (Six Crores and Twenty
Lakhs Only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 9,95,00,000 (Nine Crores and Ninety Five Lakhs Only)
preference shares of Rs.10/- each to Rs. 4,795,000,000/- (Rupees Four Hundred Seventy Nine Crores
and Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 380,000,000 (Thirty Eight Crores Only) equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each and 9,95,00,000 (Nine Crores and Ninety Five Lakhs Only) preference shares of Rs.10/- each;

Paid up share capital

(i) Vide approval of the Scheme of Arrangement between Hero Cycles Limited and Hero Motors
Limited, 318,981,247 (Thirty One Crores Eighty Nine Lakhs Eighty One Thousand Two Hundred
and Forty Seven Only) equity shares of the Company were allotted to the shareholders of Hero
Cycles Limited;

(ii) By way of private placement of securities, allotment of 20,971,941 (Two Crores Ninety Seven
Lakhs One Thousand Nine Hundred and Forty One Only) Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (“CCPS”) of the Company having a face value of INR 10/- (Ten) each at an issue price of
INR 69.14 (Sixty-Nine point One Four) including premium of INR 59.14 (Fifty-Nine point One
Four) was made to South Asia Growth Invest LLC and South Asia EBT Trust;

Thus, the paid-up share capital has increased pursuant to the aforesaid allotments and as on March 31,
2023, the paid up share capital is Rs. 3,745,503,210 divided into 353,578,380 equity shares of
Rs. 10/- each and 20,971,941 preference shares of Rs. 10/- each.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/
COURTS/ TRIBUNALS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 230-232 and other applicable provisions of The Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) read with The Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016 and other applicable provisions of law for the time being in force and pursuant to the approval of
the Audit Committee at its meeting held on August 06, 2021 and the Board of Directors at its meeting
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held on September 06, 2021, the Company has filed a Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) between
Hero Cycles Limited (“HCL"”) and Hero Motors Limited (“HML”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors with the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, (“NCLT”) Chandigarh Bench. In this
Scheme, the auto components division of HCL will be demerged into and be part of the business and
operations of HML with the appointed date as on April 01, 2021. The auto component division
comprises of the following:

0] Ghaziabad Plant— this Plant is engaged in Sheet Metal / Machined / Painted Parts (with
products such as chain case, ABS Parts, Swing Arm, M Stand and Cylinder Block) and
transmission parts (with products such as Transmission components and Gear Assy.

(i) Mangli Plant- this Plant is engaged in products such as motor cycles and cycle rims, handles,
etc.

(iii) Manesar Plant- this Plant is engaged in child parts for swing arms.

The 1% motion order was passed by the Hon’ble NCLT on January 06, 2022, wherein the Hon’ble
NCLT dispensed with the requirement of convening the meeting of shareholders in light of the
affidavits received from the shareholders and also dispensed the meeting of secured creditors of HML,
since there are no secured creditors. Further, as per the directions of the Hon’ble NCLT the meeting of
the secured and unsecured creditors of HCL and unsecured creditors of HML was convened on April
03, 2022. The consent of the secured and unsecured creditors was obtained and the Chairman submitted
the report to Hon’ble NCLT. The second motion application was filed by the Company on April 15,
2022 and as per the directions of the Hon’ble NCLT, notice of the petition was served to the Regulatory
authorities namely Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, Official Liquidator and Income tax
department. The Company had submitted the responses to the observations of the authorities and
NOC'’s have been received.

The Hon’ble NCL has approved the said Scheme vide its final order dated November 04, 2022. The
Company has filed the copy of the formal order (in Form No. CAA7 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016), with the Registrar of Companies on November 30,
2022 making the Scheme effective. On and from the effective date i.e. November 30, 2022, the auto
business has been transferred from HCL to the Company.

There are no other significant material orders passed by any Regulator/Court/Tribunal against the
Company which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

DEBENTURES

Vide the Scheme approved by the Hon’ble NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, the following Non-convertible
Debentures (“NCD’s”) have been transferred from HCL to the Company on and from the effective
date i.e. November 30, 2022:

(1) Axis 7.95% NCD’s-600 (Six Hundred Only) Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures, having face
value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) each, aggregating to Rs. 60,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Sixty Crores Each), issued through Axis Trusteeship Services Limited. These NCD’s have been repaid
by HCL before the approval of the Scheme.
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(if) HDFC Bank 7.50% NCD’s-500 (Five Hundred Only) Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures,
having face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) each, aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Crores Each), issued through Beacon Trusteeship Limited (Debenture Trustee of HDFC
Bank Limited).

As on March 31, 2023, the outstanding NCD’s are Rs. 33.33 crores (Rupees Three Hundred and
Thirty-Three Crores Point Three Three Only) having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees Ten Lakhs
Only). The Company is in the process of allotment of NCD’s to Beacon Trusteeship Limited.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with nature and size of
the business activity and with reference to the financial statements. The controls comprise of policies
and procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to its policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information.

The internal financial control system is supplemented by Internal audits. An external audit firm has
been appointed for carrying on the Internal Audits. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
reviews the reports of the auditors at its periodical meetings.

The Risk Management Committee oversees the Risk Management framework on a periodic basis. Risk
Control and mitigation mechanisms are tested for their effectiveness on regular intervals. The
Company is in the process of formulating and implementing a Risk Management Policy for
identification, assessment, measurement and reporting of business risks faced by the Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 134(3)(a) and section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12(1) of The Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company for the financial
year 2022-23 in the Form MGT-7 will be made available on the website of the Company at
www.heromotors.com.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY(IES), JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, Hewland Engineering Limited had ceased to be an associate company
and became the subsidiary of the Company with effect from February 21, 2023.

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has the following joint venture and subsidiaries. During the year,
the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of its joint venture and subsidiary. The Consolidated
Financial Statements of your Company for the financial year 2022-23 are prepared in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Act, The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
which shall be placed before the members in their ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
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Joint Venture:

(i) HYM Drive Systems Private Limited (“HYM Drive”)

HYM Drive reported a net loss of Rs. 133.25 lakhs and total revenue from operations of Rs. 5.63 lakhs.
Subsidiaries:

(ii) Hero Motors Thai Ltd. (“HMT”)

HMT reported a net loss of Rs. 52.96 lakhs and total revenue from operations of Rs. 72.50 lakhs.

(iii) Hewland Engineering Ltd. (“HEL”)

HEL reported a net loss of Rs. 1.06 lakhs and total revenue from operations of Rs. 0.12 lakhs.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing salient features of the
financial statements of the Company’s joint venture and subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is annexed
herewith as Annexure-A.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review within the
purview of Section 73 of the Act read with The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
There are unpaid deposits lying with the Company as March 31, 2023 for an amount of

Rs. 413.40 lakhs.

AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditors and Audit Report

M/s S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No: 001478N/N500005) were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM?”) held on
September 06, 2021 for a period of 5 (five) years. Their term will complete in the year 2026. However,
M/s S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP expressed their unwillingness to continue as Statutory Auditors of the
Company and resigned with effect from April 06, 2023.

The Board of Directors of the Company vide its resolution passed by circulation passed on April 11,
2023 and shareholders of the Company at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting on April 17, 2023,
appointed M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
117366W/W-100018) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused due
to resignation of M/s S.R. Dinodia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No:
001478N/N500005), to hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, the term of M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company will expire at the conclusion of the ensuing AGM.

In view of the above, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on July 13, 2023 has
made its recommendation for re-appointment of M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered
Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members at the 24" AGM of the
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Company for a consecutive period of 5 (five) years. Accordingly, a resolution, proposing
re-appointment of M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years i.e. from the conclusion of 24" AGM
till the conclusion of 29" AGM of the Company pursuant to Section 139 of the Act, forms part of the
Notice of the 24" AGM of the Company. The Company has received their written consent and a
certificate that they satisfy the criteria provided under Section 141 of the Act and that the appointment,
if made, shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

The auditors have not reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is
required to be disclosed and no clarifications or comments of Board are required on auditor’s report.

The auditor’s report submitted by M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, on the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 forms part of the Annual

Report. There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in their report.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Act, the Board has appointed Mr. R.S. Bhatia,
Company Secretary in Practice (CP No. 2514) as the Secretarial Auditor. The secretarial audit report
submitted by the Secretarial Auditor for the financial year 2022-23 is annexed as Annexure-B and
forms an integral part of this report.

There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in their report. During
the year under review, the Secretarial Auditor had not reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of
the Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the Act.

Cost Auditor

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on [forthcoming Board Meeting], 2023 has approved the
appointment of M/s Ramanath lyer & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No. 000019) as the Cost
Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records made and maintained at its Ghaziabad Plant
for financial year 2023-24, subject to ratification of the remuneration by the shareholders in General
Meeting.

DISCLOSURE ON REQUIREMENT AND MAINTAINENCE OF COST RECORDS

Pursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Act, read with The Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 made thereunder and as amended from time to time, your Company is required to maintain
cost records and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained by the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

One of the several commitments that continued to remain in force throughout the financial year was
developing business along with improvement in environmental performance to maintain a reliable and
sustainable future. During the course of the year, the manufacturing units of the Company have
continued their efforts to reduce energy consumption in all areas of its operations. These manufacturing
units are constantly encouraged to improve operational activities and maximizing production volumes
and minimizing consumption of natural resources. Systems and processes have been put in place for
utilization of alternate sources of energy and monitoring of energy consumption for all the units.
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Disclosure of information regarding Conservation of Energy, Research & Development and
Technology Absorption under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, is given below:

Ghaziabad Plant:

Conservation of energy-

The Company makes continuous efforts to conserve energy and is also monitored time to time. Optimal
utilization of various energy resources like power, fuel and oil is ensured and steps are taken to improve
power factor and other consumption.

(i)  the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy —

¢ Inits offices and street lighting system, Smart timer has been installed to switch off automatically
in the morning and switch on at night resulting in overall wastage of electricity has been
minimized (total kwh unit saving=90,280/Annum)

e Overall usage of Electricity consumption in Air Compressor by installing Intelligent Controller
to control compressor operation as per actual air demand and optimization by closure of air
leakages (total kwh unit saving = 1,50,000/Annum)

e Energy consumption optimization through installing VFD on Pumps and Blower motors (Total
kwh unit Saving = 85,599/Annum)

e Optimization fuel consumption in DG set running by load sharing management between DG
sets.

(i)  the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;
- The Company has invested in a solar power project to save electricity
(iii)  the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;
- Investment of Rs. 15.00 millions in solar power
project. The savings with respect to grid power is around Rs. 10.00 lakhs per month.

Technology absorption-

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption- the company has contributed significantly to

development of:
- eMotors for bicycles with creation of IP rights.
- New variants of Transmission systems for e-cycles.
- Transmission system for hybrid off-road equipment.

(i)  the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution; in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)-

- Newer variants of transmission system are economical while keeping high end specs. The
company has also localized product components erstwhile imported from other countries.
- Development of local suppliers for imports substitution for CVTs and e-Motors.

(iii)  the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

- The Company proposes to spend an amount of Rs. 30.00 millions on development of
e-transmission systems.
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Hewland Plant:

Conservation of energy-

Hewland is deploying a range of actions across the business to reduce its energy consumption and be
more efficient with its energy usage.

(i)  the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy —

- Replacement of lighting with LEDs (all lights except manufacturing area): 30% of lighting have
been replaced with LEDs so far resulting into a 15% energy saving. The plan is to replace entire
lighting to LED that will save 50% energy compared to current lighting system.

- Air leakages have been monitored in 2023 showing potential savings of £4,500 per year after air
leaks repair.

(i)  the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy;

- The Company is investing in solar power that will produce 12% of its yearly electricity usage.

- the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s; The facility is in the process of
investing in solar panels project.

Technology absorption-

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption- the company has contributed significantly to
development of:
- New variants of Transmission systems for performance automotive, marine & off road vehicles
- Design solutions for electrification in commercial and aerospace segments
(i)  the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution; in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)-
- Improved transmission products used in motorsport market segments
- Developed customized transmission for EV offroad applications
(iii) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.
- The Company spent £5.4M on Research and Development projects.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review, the Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo are as follows:
i) Foreign Exchange earnings: Rs. 39,447.00 lakhs
ii) Foreign Exchange outgo: Rs. 7,969.86 lakhs

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors comprises of 7 (five) Directors including 2 (two)
Executive Directors, 1 (one) Nominee Director, 2 (two), Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors,
2 (two) Non-Executive, Independent Directors. The composition of the Board is in conformity with
Section 149 of the Act read with Rule 4 of The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014.
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Resignation

Due to pre-occupation and other commitments, Mr. Pankaj Munjal, Managing Director (DIN:
00005330) resigned from the Board with effect from April 30, 2022.

Ms. Prerna Josh resigned from the position of Company Secretary with effect May 02, 2022.
Ms. Charu Munijal resigned from the position of Director with effect September 09, 2022.
Mr. Pawan Puri resigned from the position of Director with effect March 01, 2023.

The Board placed on record its appreciation for the services rendered by the aforesaid Directors and
KMP’s during their association with the Company.

Appointment

Mr. Pankaj Munjal (DIN: 00005330) was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from May
30, 2022.

Mr. Darpan Vashishtha was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from
May 01, 2022.

Ms. Sheeba Dhamija was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from May 01,
2022.

Mr. Amit Gupta was appointed as a Managing Director and CEO of the Company with effect from
September 09, 2022.

Mr. Abhishek Munjal’s designation was changed from Director to Whole-time Director with effect
from September 09, 2022.

Mr. Keshav Misra was appointed as a Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company with
effect from September 09, 2022.

Mr. Sridhar Narayan was appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company with effect from January
04, 2023.

Mr. Kulbir Singh was appointed as an Additional (Independent Director) of the Company with effect
from February 01, 2023 subject to the approval of the shareholders. A resolution, proposing
appointment of Mr. Kulbir Singh as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years commencing from February 01, 2023, forms part of the Notice of the 24" AGM of
the Company.

Retirement by rotation

In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Keshav Misra (DIN: 00133702) liable to retire by rotation at
the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his
re-appointment.
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Independent Directors’ Declarations

The Independent directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as
prescribed under section 149(6) of the Act. Further, pursuant to Sub-rule (3) of Rule 6 of The
Companies (Appointment & Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors have
successfully registered their names in the Data Bank of Independent Directors. The Independent
Directors have also confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or
may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact the ability to discharge their duties with an
objective independent judgment and without any external influence and that they are independent of
the management.

Integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of the independent directors

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has 2 (two) Independent Directors namely Ms. Pratibha Goyal
and Mr. Kulbir Singh. All the independent directors are able to read and understand the financial
statements and have successfully registered themselves with the Data Bank of Independent Directors
as maintained by The Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. In the opinion of the Board, all are proficient
enough and understand business, finance, commercial and corporate governance matters of the
Company. Pursuant to the proviso to Rule 6(4) of The Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014, none of the independent director is required to pass online proficiency self-
assessment test.

Board Evaluation:

In compliance with the Act, the Board has carried out an evaluation of its own performance, its
committees and performance of individual Directors during the year under review. The aspects covered
in the evaluation included the contribution to and monitoring of corporate governance practices,
participation in the long-term strategic planning and the fulfilment of Directors' obligations and
fiduciary responsibilities, including but not limited to, active participation at the Board meetings. The
evaluation involves self-evaluation by the Board Members and subsequent assessment by the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year under review, 16 (Sixteen) meetings of Board of Directors were duly convened and
held on 29.04.2022, 30.05.2022, 08.08.2022, 01.09.2022, 09.09.2022, 19.10.2022, 08.11.2022,
01.12.2022, 02.12.2022, 19.12.2022, 30.12.2022, 03.01.2023, 20.01.2023, 01.02.2023, 01.03.2023 and
25.03.2023. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act
and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs circular no. 11/2020 dated March 24, 2020.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration to
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management of the Company. The policy lays down
the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Board members, Key
Managerial Personnel and employees. The objective of this policy is to attract and retain talent and to
strike the right balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
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objectives appropriate to the goals of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
available on Company’s website at www.heromotors.com.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has adopted the Vigil Mechanism by way of formulating a Whistle Blower Policy. The
policy provides a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics
policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and also
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of the following 3 (three) members:

i) Mr. Kulbir Singh- Non-Executive, Independent Director -Member;
i) Ms. Pratibha Goyal-Non-Executive, Independent Director-Member; and
iii) and Mr. Sridhar Narayan- Nominee Director-Member.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are wide enough to cover the matter specified for the Audit
Committee under section 177 of the Act. During the year, the Board has accepted all the
recommendations of the Audit Committee and accordingly no disclosure is required to be made in
respect on non-acceptance of the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following 4 (four) members:

i) Mr. Keshav Misra- Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director-Member;
ii) Mr. Sridhar Narayan- Nominee Director-Member;

iii) Mr. Kulbir Singh-Non-Executive, Independent Director-Member; and
iv) Ms. Pratibha Goyal-Non-Executive, Independent Director-Member

PARTICULARS OF INTER-CORPORATE LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has made investment and granted loans under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

The details of outstanding investments and loans as on March 31, 2023 are mentioned in note no. 7A,
7B & 8 respectively, forming part of the financial statements for the financial year 2022-23.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS & ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, all the contracts/arrangements/transactions entered with the related
parties by the Company during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s


http://www.heromotors.com/

25.

26.

217.

HERO

FIOTOR .

length basis and the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder are not applicable.
Thus, the disclosure under Form AOC-2 as per section 134 of the Act is not required.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to section 135 of the Act, the Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee (“CSR Committee”), which comprises the following members:

i) Mr. Abhishek Munjal, Whole-time Director;

ii) Mr. Amit Gupta, Managing Director & CEO;

iii) Mr. Keshav Misra, Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director; and
iv) Ms. Pratibha Goyal, Non-Executive, Independent Director.

The CSR policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website at www.heromotors.com.

The Annual Report on the CSR activities for the financial year 2022-23 is attached as Annexure-C
and forms part of this report.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. The risk management
framework works at various levels across the enterprise. These levels form the strategic defense cover
of the Company’s risk management. The Company has a robust Organizational structure for managing
and reporting on risks. Your Board has taken various steps and introduced various safeguards to
mitigate the risks. However, the Board does not see any risk affecting the existence of the Company.
The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on January 20, 2023 constituted a Risk
Management Committee comprising of the following members:

i) Mr. Amit Gupta-Managing Director & CEO;

ii) Mr. Sridhar Narayan-Nominee Director;

iii) Mr. Keshav Misra-Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director; and
iv) Mr. Darpan Vashishtha-Chief Financial Officer

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, and based on the representations received
from the management, the Directors hereby confirm that:

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that
period;
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(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 on a
going concern basis; and

(e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee vide resolution by circulation dated September 01,
2022 and the Board of Directors at its meetings held on September 09, 2022 and the shareholders at
the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 02, 2022 approved the remuneration of
Mr. Amit Gupta, Managing Director & CEO and Mr. Abhishek Munjal, Whole-time Director of the
Company effective from January 01, 2023 till the expiry of their respective terms.

During the financial year 2022-23, the following remuneration was paid to the Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Amit Gupta - Rs. 240.00 lakhs
Mr. Abhishek Munjal - Rs. 335.05 lakhs

COMPLIANCE WITH SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination
and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has zero tolerance policy for sexual
harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace and also complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. During the year under review, no complaint on
sexual harassment was received.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, the details of employee drawing remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000/-
(Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs Only) or more per annum and pursuant to Rule 5(2) of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of top ten
employees in terms of remuneration drawn is annexed as “Annexure D”.

COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards i.e.
Secretarial Standard 1-Meeting of the Board of Directors and Secretarial Standard 2-General Meetings.
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32. STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

a) The Company is not required to maintain cost records as per Section 148(1) of the Act.

b) No application was made against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016
(“IBC 2016”) during the year and no proceeding is pending against the Company under IBC 2016
as at the end of financial year under report.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the bankers, business
associates and employees of the Company, who have been a part of the team and made their best efforts
during this year under review.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Hero Motors Limited

Place: Uttar Pradesh
Date: 30.09.2023

Sd/- Sd/-
Amit Gupta Abhishek Munjal
Managing Director Whole-time Director

DIN: 02990732 DIN: 05355274
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ANNEXURE-A

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. lakhs)

Sl. | Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name of the subsidiary Hero Motors Thai Ltd. [Hero EDU Systems [Hewland Engineering
Private Limited Limited
2. | The date since when subsidiary [07.07.2021 27.12.2022 20.02.2023
was acquired
3. | Reporting period for the [N.A. N.A. N.A.
subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding
company’s reporting period
4. | Reporting currency and [THB N.A. GBP
Exchange rate as on the last date
of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
5. | Share capital 1,419.00 100.00 20.95
6. | Reserves & surplus 1,351.00 - 2,925.14
7. | Total assets 7,057.00 100.85 7,667.22
8. | Total Liabilities 7,057.00 100.85 7,667.22
9. | Investments 82.00 - -
10.] Turnover - - 11,698.51
11.| Profit/ (Loss) before taxation  [(53.00) (3.36) 1,043.84
12.| Provision for taxation - 0.85 -
13.| Profit (Loss) after taxation (53.00) (2.51) 106,103.37
14.| Proposed Dividend - - -
15.| Extent of shareholding (in 99.99% 100% 51%
percentage)
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Act related to Associate Companies and Joint
Ventures

S. No. Name of Asseeiates/Joint Ventures HYM Drive Systems Private Limited
(“HYM Drive”)
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2023
2. Date on which the Joint Venture was | 18.02.2022
acquired
3. Shares of Joint Venture held by the
company on the year end
No. 28,800,000 equity shares
A, Amount of Investment in Joint Venture Rs. 2,880 lakhs
5. Extend of Holding% 90%
6. Description of how there is significant | HYM Drive is a joint venture of Hero Motors
influence Limited and Yamaha Motor Co. Ltd.
7. Reason why the joint venture is not | N.A.
consolidated
8. Net worth attributable to shareholding as | 307.55
per latest audited Balance Sheet
0. Profit/(Loss) for the year
i) Considered in Consolidation (106.64)
ii) Not Considered in Consolidation -

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Hero Motors Limited
Place: Uttar Pradesh
Date: 30.09.2023

Sd/- Sd/-
Amit Gupta Abhishek Munjal
Managing Director Whole-time Director

DIN: 02990732 DIN: 05355274
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FORM NO.MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

The Members,

Hero Motors Limited,

Regd Off: Hero Nagar, G.T. Road NA,
Ludhiana, Punjab-141003

CIN: U29299PB1998PLC039602

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit in respect of compliance with specific applicable
statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by Hero Motors Limited
(hereinafter called the Company/ HML). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me with a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct /statutory
compliance and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, the explanations and clarifications given to me and the representations made by the
Management, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Acts’) and the rules made thereunder, as applicable;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder-
Not Applicable being an unlisted company; :

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

Page1o0f8
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(iv) Being an unlisted company, none of the following Regulations prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were applicable during the
year under review; -

a.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018 and

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 1998

(v) The Management has identified and confirmed the following laws and rules as being
specifically applicable to the Company:

a.

b.

c.

Explosives Act, 1884,

Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management & Transboundary Movement) Rules,
2016, and

The Batteries (Management and Handling) Rules 2001

{ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the;

(i) Secretarial Standard 1 & 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)Being an unlisted company the Listing Agreement was not entered into by the

Company with any Stock Exchange.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

| further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. However, the Company s -have three
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Independent Directors whereas it has only two. The Company has appointed one Woman
Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act;

2. Adequate notices were given to all the Directors regarding holding of the Board Meetings,
agendas were sent in advance before the meeting. There exists a system for Directors to
seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting;

3. Decisions at the Board Meetings were carried through with requisite majority & recorded
as part of the minutes of the meetings. (No dissent was there).

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that:

a. The management has confirmed that based on the recommendations of the erstwhile
auditors, the Company did not consolidate financials of one subsidiary, Hero Motors
Thai Ltd. for FY 2021-22.- This was because Hero Motors Thai Ltd. had previously been
consclidated with the former parent company, Hero Cycles Limited ("HCL"). However,
consequent to completion of demerger between HCL and the Company effective
November 30, 2022, Hero Motors Thai Ltd., has now been consolidated for the FY 2022-
23 with the Company.

b. During the year upder review, Mr. Rohit Maheshwari resigned as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company w.e.f. 31/03/2022 and Mr. Darpan Vashishtha was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 01/05/2022.

C. During the year under review, Ms. Prerna Joshi resigned as Company Secretary of the
Company w.e.f. 01/05/2022 and Ms. Sheeba Dhamija was appointed as Company
Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 01/05/2022.

d. During the year under review, Mr. Pankaj Munjal resigned from directorship w.e.f.
30/04/2022 and was re-appointed as an additional director w.e.f. 30/05/2022. Further,
his appointment was regularized as Director in the AGM held on 30/12/2022.

e. Investment was made in Hewland Engineering Limited, England during the year under
review aggregating to 51% of its capital (making it subsidiary of the company) and loan
was given to Hewland Engineering Limited of Rs. 12.56 Cr.

f. Ms. Charu Munjal resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 9/09/2022.

g. The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 09/09/2022 approved the appointment of
Mr. Amit Gupta as an additional director and Managing Director of the Company w.e.f.
09/09/2022 and also approved the remuneration w.e.f. 01/01/2023. urther
shareholders approved his appointment and remuneration as Manag: Dﬁﬁe’t}a
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their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 02/12/2022 and his appointment was
regularised by shareholders in the AGM held on 30/12/2022.

Mr. Keshav Mishra was appointed as an additional director w.e.f. 09/09/2022 and his
appointment was regularized as Director at the AGM held on 30/12/2022.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 09/09/2022 approved the appointment of
Mr. Abhishek Munjal as Whole-Time Director w.e.f. 09/09/2022 and also approved the
payment of remuneration w.e.f. 01/01/2023. His appointment as Whole-Time Director
was approved by shareholders in their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
02/12/2022.

During the year the company has incorporated a company in the name and style of Hero
EDU Systems Private Limited. The company took 9,99,994 shares in its own name and 6
shares in the name of its nominees. Thus, making it a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

As per annual financial statements of the company for the FY ended 2021-22 Hero
Motors Thai Ltd. has been shown as its subsidiary. As per management the said
company has become subsidiary of HML as a consequence of scheme of arrangement
as approved by the Hon’ble NCLT Chandigarh. The management has confirmed that
Hero Motors Thai Ltd. becoming a subsidiary of the Company was in alignment with the
mutually expressed intentions of both shareholders, HCL and the Company. The
interpretation of the transfer of all assets related to the auto component business was
intended to encompass the subsidiary specifically associated with auto components,
namely, Hero Motors Thai Ltd. However, no such reference is there in the scheme of
arrangement as filed by HCL with Hon’ble NCLT Chandigarh. Further, HML has given
Loans to Hero Motors Thai Ltd. of Rs. 44.62 Crore.

During the Financial Year under review the, investment in AMP Solar Urja Private
Limited were transferred to HML as an effect of demerger. As per management the
investment in the said solar project was done by Hero Motors (a division of Hero Cycles
Limited). Consequence of Scheme of Arrangement as approved by the Hon’ble NCLT
Chandigarh, the management has confirmed that the transfer of investment in the said
companies was in alignment with the mutuaily expressed intentions of both
shareholders, HCL and the Company. The interpretation of the transfer of all assets
related to the auto component business was intended to encompass the investments
specifically associated with auto components, namely, AMP Solar Urja Private Limited.
However, no such reference is there in the scheme of arrangement as filed by HCL with
Hon’ble NCLT Chandigarh. As per the management, all the compliances for this solar
project were done by Hero Cycles Limited. The management further confirmed that for
further investment in the solar project, the Company would take fresh approval and
ensure necessary compliances.

The debentures of AMP Solar Urja Private Limited were transferred to HML as an effect

of demerger during the period under review. As per the managem%ﬁ&e\
compliances for this solar project were done by Hero Cycles Limited. / (2
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A loan of Rs. 2.50 crore as given to Spur Technologies Private Limited by Hero Cycles
Limited (auto division) was transferred to HML as an effect of demerger. As per the
management the compliances for this loan were undertaken by Hero Cycles Limited.

After demerger, the Company is required to ensure compliance under section 89. The
management has confirmed that the requisite form shall be filed.

The company came out with a Hero Motors Employees Stock Option Plan 2022 and
granted options thereof.

Authorised Capital of the company was increased to Rs.4,795,000,000/- divided into
380,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each and 99,500,000 preference shares of Rs. 10/-
each.

The company allotted 20,971,941 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares on
preferential basis to foreign entities.

The company in its general meeting approved borrowing limits under section 180(1)(c)
upto Rs. 426 Crore.

The company in its general meeting approved creation of charge limits under section
180(1}{a) upto Rs. 426 Crore.

The company altered its object clause by replacing existing sub clause (1), (2) and (3),
and inserted a new sub clause 6 after sub clause 5 in Clause i1l {A) of Memorandum of
Association.

The company in its general meeting fixed limit under section 186 to give loan/give
security or give guarantee upto Rs. 300 Cr.

During the year under review, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh
Bench vide its order dated November 04, 2022 approved the Scheme of Arrangement
(“Scheme”) between Hero Cycles Limited (“HCL”) and Hero Motors Limited (“HML”) and
the order was filed with Registrar of Companies on November 30, 2022. Through this
scheme the auto components division of HCL has been demerged into HML. As a part
of the implementation of the Scheme, the Company is yet to take effect of transfer of
Debentures, from HCL to HML, as detailed in Para 5.9 of the Scheme. As per
management the matter has been taken up with the Debenture Holders, HDFC Bank
and Beacon Trusteeship Limited and response is awaited from them.

Further the Board in its meeting held on March 1, 2023 passed a resolution for issue of
Non-convertible debentures on private Placement basis aggregating Rs. 33.33 Crores
pursuant to the said Scheme to eligible investors. However, as explained by the
management neither any allotment was made during the period under review nor any
‘'security was created.

Further corporate action in respect of 26,936 equity shares is pending. These shares are
to be bought back by Hero Cycles Limited as prescribed in para 4.3 of the Scheme. As
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Securities Depository Limited. On receipt of their approval necessary actions will be
taken.

X. The Company has obtained External Commercial Borrowing from Axis Bank Limited for
giving loan to Hero Motors Thai Limited upto an amount of Rs. 29.00 Crore.

y. The company made allotment 318,981,247 equity shares pursuant to the Scheme of
Arrangement between Hero Motors Limited and Hero Cycles Limited.

z. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
Secretarial Audit was applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company appointed
M/s Ankit Singhal & Associates, Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor to carry
out Secretarial Audit of the company for the financial year 2021- 2022.

aa. Appointment of Mr. Sridhar Narayan as nominee Director of the company w.e.f.
04/01/2023.

bb. Articies of Association of the Company was altered during the year under review.

cc.  Mr. Kulbir Singh was appointed as an additional director (independent) w.e.f.
01/02/2023.

dd.  Mr. Pawan Puri resigned from directorship (Independent Director) w.e.f. 01/03/2023.

ee. The company has purchased 10 equity shares at the rate of Rs. 2400 per equity shares
of Spur Technologies Private Limited from Hero Cycles Limited a related party.

ff. During the year, provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 were applicable
to the Company. The Company was required to spend Rs. 42.00 lakhs on CSR activities
during the financial year 2022-23. As per annual action plan approved by the Board in
its meeting (as recommended by CSR Committee held on March 1, 2023) held on March
01, 2023, the Company has spent an amount of Rs. 13.42 lakhs (including 11.42 lakhs
on basic training and stipend paid to apprentices and Rs. 2.00 lakhs on administrative
overheads). Total unspent amount of INR 28.58 lakhs as on March 31st, 2023 has been
deposited in Prime Minister relief Fund in 6 months period from the end of the financial
year.

ge. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and Rule 6(2) of the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit Rules) 2014, Cost Audit was applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
Company appointed M/s. Ramanath lyer & Co., Cost Accountant, (Firm Registration
no.000019), as Cost Auditors for conducting the cost audit of the Company for the
Financial Years 2021- 2022 and 2022-23 during the period under review.

hh. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Act and the Companies (Accounts)

.....

Rules, 2014, the Company appointed M/s Grant Thornton Bharat LLF’/pg'iﬁé“ilhi#erna!
~N\
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the period under review.

Practicing Company Secretary
CP No: 2514 M.No. 2599
Peer Review No0.:1496/2021
UDIN: FO02599E001135654

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30/09/2023

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date by the Secretarial Auditor, which
is annexed to this report and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members,

The Members,

Hero Motors Limited,

Regd Off: Hero Nagar, G.T. Road NA,
Ludhiana, Punjab-141003

CIN: U29299PB1998PLC039602

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Ihave not verified the correctness, appropriateness and implications of financial records,
Books of Accounts of the company and auditor’s report, as this is the domain of the
Statutory Auditors.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the;;:\&
)

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conduc%&;- BH4 o9
the affairs of the company.

Practicing Company Secretary
CP No: 2514 M.No. 2599
Peer Review No.:1496/2021
UDIN: FO02599E001135654

B

Place: New Delhi
Date:30/09/2023
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Annexure-C

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“CSR Policy”) of Hero Motors Limited (“Hero”) is framed to enhance value creation in the society and in the
community in which it operates, through its services, conduct and initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the society and community in fulfillment
of its role as a Socially Responsible Corporate with environmental concern. The CSR Policy is available on the Company’s website at
Www.heromotors.com.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of meetings | Number of meetings of
No. of CSR Committee CSR Committee attended
held during the year | during the year

i Mr. Abhishek Munjal Member-Whole-time Director 1 1

ii. Mr. Amit Gupta Member-Managing Director & CEO 1 1

iii. Mr. Keshav Misra Member-Non-Executive, Non-Independent | 1 1

Director
iv. Ms. Pratibha Goyal Member-Non-Executive, Independent Director | 1 1
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR : www.heromotors.com

projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company


http://www.heromotors.com/

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of : Not applicable
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,

2014, if applicable (attach the report)
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Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

SI. No. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off
preceding financial years (in Rs) for the financial year, if any
(in Rs)
Nil Nil Nil
Total
(in lakhs)

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 2102.00
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 42.00
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous :  Nil
financial years
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c¢) Rs. 42.00
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(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

HERO

MOTORS NG

Total Amount Spent for
the Financial Year
(inRs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs. lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR
Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VI1I as

per second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of fund Amount Date of transfer
13.42 NIL NIL Prime Minister's National | 28.58 27.09.2023
Relief Fund
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: No ongoing project
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) () ®3) (4) (5) (8) (10) (11)
Sl Name of the Item from the Local Location of the project Amount spent Mode of Mode of
No. Project list of activities | area (Yes in the project | Implementation Implementation -
in Schedule / No) (in Rs. lakhs) —Direct Through Implementing
V11 to the Act (Yes/ No) Agency
State District Name CSR
Registration
number

1. Expenditl_m_e on Promoting Yes Uttar Gautam 11.42 Yes N.A. N.A.

be_15|c training and education, Pradesh Buddh

stipend _ payable to including Nagar

apprentices, over special

and above of 2.5% | oq,cation and

i.e. minimum employment

mandate_ as per The enhancing

Apprentices vocation skills.
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Act.
Total 11.42
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Rs. 2.00 lakhs
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 13.42 lakhs
(9) Excess amount for set off, if any N.A.
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Rs. 28.58 lakhs
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NIL
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the No capital asset was created / acquired for fiscal 2023

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year through CSR Spent

(asset-wise details)
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset)
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11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average  : The Company could not identify projects beyond skill
net profit as per section 135(5) development, and as a result, the unallocated funds from the

previous period have been transferred to the Prime Minister’s
National Relief Fund. The Company shall make every effort
to allocate the recommended CSR expenditure set forth by
the Board for FY 24 towards appropriate projects, and ensure
compliance with the relevant provisions.

Sd/- Sd/-
Abhishek Munjal Amit Gupta
Whole-time Director and Member of CSR Committee Managing Director & CEO and Member of CSR Committee

DIN: 05355274 DIN: 02990732
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Annexure-D

Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

A) Top 10 employees (including Directors) in terms of remuneration drawn during the year

(Rs. in lakhs)

S. Name of Employee Designation Total Qualification | Experience Date of Age Last employment
No. Remuneration (Inyears) | Commencement | (In
drawn of employment | years)
during the (Company Date
financial year of Joining)
2022-23
(including all
perquisites,
reimbursement
part of salary,
provident fund
amount and
variable)*
1. | Mr. Abhishek Munjal Whole-time 335.05 Graduate 8 March 10, 2016 31 Hero Cycles Limited
Director
Mr. Amit Gupta Managing Director 240.00 Chartered 20 April 09, 2008 45 Munjal Kiriu
2. & CEO Accountant Industries Private
Limited
3. | Mr. Darpan Vashishtha | CMeT Financial 160.00 Chartered 27 April 04,2022 | 50 | Hero Cycles Limited
Officer Accountant
4. | Mr. sanjay Singh VP-Supply Chain 74.00 MBA 28 April 04,2022 | 54 | CAaPar0Engg.India

Management

Ltd.




HERO

HOTORS NG

ZF Hero Chassis

5. M_r. Chandra Shekhar COO—Gear_ Project 72 60 PG-Business 99 August 06, 2015 47 Systems Private
Mittal Operations Management .
Limited
B. Tech-
6. Mr. Anil Rathi COO_BPT 72.50 Mechanical 17 January 01, 2013 40 Hero Cycles Limited
Operations . .
Engineering
. . Chartered
7. Mr. Sanjay _Slngh VP-Finance 57.42 Accountant, 20 October 06, 49 Hero Cycles Limited
Suryavanshi . 2009
MBA-Finance
VP-Business Gestamp Automotive
8. Mr. Gopinath MK 56.09 PGXPM 18 August 20, 2021 43 Chennai Private
Development o
Limited
. General Manager- Motherson Health
9. Mr. Vineet Arora BPT Operations 55.00 B.E. 10 August 23, 2022 48 Solutions Limited
L B.E.- .
. VP-E . . E A
10. | Mr. Ajay Gupta ngineering 52.32 Mechanical 28 April 01,2013 | 57 scorts Agri
Process . . Machinery
Engineering

Note:
- Nature of employment is permanent in all the above cases.
- None of the employee holds equity shares in the Company.
- Mr. Abhishek Munjal is the son of Mr. Pankaj Munijal, Director of the Company

* including Employer contribution of provident Fund.
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B) Employees drawing salary of Rs. 1.02 crores or above per annum and posted in India (employed throughout the financial year)

S. Name of Employee Designation Total Qualification | Experience Date of Age Last employment
No. Remuneration (Inyears) | Commencement | (In
drawn of employment | years)
during the (Company Date
financial year of Joining)
2022-23
(including all
perquisites,
reimbursement
part of salary,
provident fund
amount and
variable)*
1. Mr. Abhishek Munjal Whole-time 335.05 Graduate 8 March 10, 2016 31 Hero Cycles Limited
Director
2. Mr. Amit Gupta Managing Director 240.00 Chartered 20 April 09, 2008 45 Munijal Kiriu
& CEO Accountant Industries Private
Limited
3. | Mr. Darpan Vashishtha | CMef Financial 160.00 Chartered 27 April 04,2022 | 50 | Hero Cycles Limited
Officer Accountant

C) Employees drawing salary of Rs. 8.50 lakhs or above per month and posted in India (employed for part of the financial year)-

NIL




Place: Uttar Pradesh
Date: 30.09.2023

Sd/-

Amit Gupta

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 02990732

HERO

HOTORS NG

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Hero Motors Limited

Sd/-

Abhishek Munjal
Whole-time Director
DIN: 05355274
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- Chartered Accountants
DEIOItte 7th Floor Building 10
= Tower B

Haskins & SellsLLP DLF Cyber City Complex
DLF City Phase Il
Gurugram-122 002
Haryana, India
Tel: +91 124 679 2000
Fax: +91 124 679 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Hero Motors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Hero Motors Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income) and the Statement of Cash Flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income and its cash flows and the statement of change in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Ruies made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethica!l
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board’s report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

+ QOur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« When we read the Board’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditor’s
responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

,&s’\“nsd,--.

Reg-d. Office; One International Center, Tower 3, 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP |dentification No. AAB-8737)
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financiai position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
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+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 prepared in accordance
with Ind AS included in these standalone financial statements have been audited by the predecessor auditor. The
report of the predecessor auditor on the comparative financial information dated December 19, 2022 expressed an
unmodified opinion

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matter on the comparative
financial information.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Cash Flows and statement of change in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

fii.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements - Refer Note 36(a) to the standalone financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 60 to the standalone financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company - Refer Note 46 to the standalone financial statements;

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

Note 37(c) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

Note 37(c) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries..

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final
dividend for the year.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable
to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs

3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 1173 GWIW 100018)

\z\askin's |

o)
: (Partner)
(Membership No. 105546)
UDIN: 23105546BGXMVU6696

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF HERO MOTORS LIMITED
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“'the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Hero Motors
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on “the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.” These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on “the criteria for internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.”

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartefed Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117346W/W - 100018)

Rajesh Ku#far &grwal
(Pactner)

Membership No. 105546
UDIN: 23105546BGXMVU6696

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF HERO MOTORS LIMITED
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment, and Intangible Assets:

A. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant, and Equipment, capital work in progress and relevant details of right-of-use-
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

B. The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, (capital work-in-progress,
investment properties and right-of-use assets) so to cover all the items once every three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program no such assets were due for physical verification during the year. Since no physical verification of
property, plant and equipment was due during the year the question of reporting on material discrepancies
noted on verification does not arise.

C. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deed, comprising all the immovable
property of land which is freehold, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company except for the following) disclosed in the
financial statements is held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(Amount in ¥ lacs)

Description | Gross Carrying | Held in | Whether Period held | Reason for not
of Carrying | Value Name promoter, indicate Being held in
immovable | Value of director or | range, name of Company
properties their relative | where
taken on or employee | appropriate
lease
Agreement has

316098 Sq. Hero Land in name | April 1, 2022 geen enter_ed

; | etween the parties
Ft. in 443273 | 1.019.46 Cycles of Hero Cycles | to Mar 31, and the company is
Ludhiana ! ) ! ) Limited | Limited 2023

in the process of
| | getting it registered

D. The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets) and
intangible assets during the year.

E. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31t March
2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended
in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) In respect of Inventory:

(a) The inventories except for goods in transit and inventory lying with third parties, were physically verified
during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and based on information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. In respect of goods in transit,
the goods have been received subsequent to the year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories, when compared with

/;7';::7;2 books of account.

22 gl
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(b) Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National company law tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November
9, 2022, the auto business of Hero Cycles Limited has been transferred to Hero Motors Limited and hence
the obligation to submit monthly statement comprising inventory statement, book debt statement and
creditors statement, is applicable from December 2022. During the year, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks
on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, above mentioned statements have been filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement
with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective months starting from December 2022
as applicable.

(iii) The Company has made investments in, and granted loans, unsecured, to its subsidiary and other
companies, during the year, in respect of which

a) The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given below:

_(Amount in ¥ lacs)

___Particulars B Loan

A. Aggregate amount of loans granted during the year -

- Wholly owned Subsidiary - 4,462.16
- Subsidiary B 1,256.14

- Related Party - - 250.00 |
| B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases* B ]
| - Wholly owned Subsidiary B B 5,058.81

- Subsidiary - 1,387.61

- Related Party 250.00

b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the above mentioned loans granted
by the Company during the year, are in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

c) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per
stipulation.

d) According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, in
respect of loans provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the
balance sheet date.

e) None of the loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.

f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, the
Company has not granted any loans without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

(iv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
section 185 or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2023 and
therefore the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government
for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion
_thé:'t, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have,

_eKing

: ¢




Deloitte

(vii)
a)

b)

Name
Statute

skins & SellsLLP

however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have
generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Income-
tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, other than the amount reported below, there are
no dues of Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Excise Duty and Customs Duty which have not been deposited
by the Company with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(Amount in ¥ lacs)
Amount
paid

Period to which | Amount
the amount

relates

'Forum  where
dispute is

Nature of
Dues

of the

Sales Tax Ai:t,

1956

Sales Tax

| pending

Supreme Court

2003-04

27.64

8.08

Central Excise Act,
1944

Excise Duty

Special appeal has
been filed in

2020-21

474.82

Nil

Supreme Court

(viii)

(ix)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us, in respect of borrowings:

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied
by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that the Company has
taken funds from the following entities and persons on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary
as per details below:

fund taken

On account of or to meet the obligations of subsidiary
Amount Name of company Relation Nature of transaction for
Involved which funds utilized
(Rs. in lacs)

of | Name of

lender

Nature

Hero Motors Thai | Subsidiary | Capital ExEn_diture
Limited

External | Axis Bank
Commercial

Borrowing

2,900.60

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or joint

£

vefitures or associate companies.
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(x) In respect of issue of Securities:

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) or term loans and hence, reporting under clause (x)(a) of the order is not applicable.

b) The Company has made private placement of shares during the year. For such allotment of shares, the

(xi)

a)

b)

c)
(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)

a)

b)
(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)

. w1 Y
N ._9;—)
N RE e

Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the
funds raised have been, prima facie, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the
funds were raised. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of (fully or
partly or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.

In respect of Fraud:

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year (and upto the date of this report).

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In respect of Internal Audit:

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National company law tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November 9,
2022, the auto business of Hero Cycles Limited has been transferred to Hero Motors Limited and thus the
Company is in process of establishing its internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

Since the company is in the process of establishing its internal audit system, thus no Internal audit could be
carried out during the year for the company and hence we were unable to consider the report in our audit.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicabte to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause (xvi){a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and we have taken into
consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

O_,n‘\t\he basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
.'gﬁj-figapcial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
TE N\
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(xx)

Place:
Date:

Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

A) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the
Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount, to a fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 before the date of this report and within a period of six months of
the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub - section (5) of Section 135 of the
said Act.

B) There are no ongoing projects where the Company is required to transfer unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) amount, to a Special account before the date of this report and within a period of 30
days from the end of the financial year in compliance with section 135(6) of the Act.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered.Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117 66W})N-100018)

%%
/
7 ~
®
0y &
S {Membership No. 105546)

UDIN: 23105546BGXMVU6696

Gurugram
September 30, 2023



Hero Motors Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
CIN : U29299PB1998SPLCO39602

(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

- Note As At As At
Particulars No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Assets

1. Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 20,555.66 16,419.78
(b) Right of Use Assets 4A 1,019.46 .
() Capital work in progress 5 477.06 912.13
(d} Intangible assets 6 231.84 75.83
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments
- Investment in subsidiaries 7A 4,408.40 397.87
- Other investment 7A 113.40 N
(if) Loans 8 6,698.62 583.92
(iii) Other financlal assets 9 315.07 793.26
(f) Non current tax assets (net) 10 92.29 -
(g) Other non current assets i1 705.52 818.16
Total Non-current assets 34,617.32 20,000.95
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 15,494.74 14,147.30
(b) Financial assets
() Investments 7B 1,530.27 2,446.52
(i) Trade receivables . 13 21,298.45 19,134.30
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 385.65 5,012.09
(iv) Bank balances other than cash 15
and cash equivalents 8,053.00 =
(v} Loans 8 18.94 12.92
(vi) Other financial assets 9 4,798.16 2,805.,84
(c) Other current assets i1 1,378.58 3,763.35
Total Current Assets 52,857.79 47,322.32
Tatal Assets 87,575.11 67,323.27
B. Equity and liabilities
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 35,357.84 3,459.71
(b) Other equity 17 203.08 12,230.77
Total Equity 35,560.92 15,690.48
2. Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities :
(i) Borrowings 18A 6,063.85 5,833.33
(ia) Lease Liabilities 4B 882.47 -
(ii) Others financial liabilities 19 413.40 385.30
(b) Other Non-current Liabilities 20 - 13.11
(c) Provisions 21 1,652.61 780.63
(d) Deferred tax liabilities [net) 22 395.92 1,128.08
Total Non- Current Liabilities 9,408.25 8,140.45




Hero Motors Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
CIN : U29299PB1998PLC039602

{Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

. Nate As At As At
Paticalans No.  March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current liabilities
{(a) Financiatl liabilities
(i) Borrowings 188 18,158.36 19,170.93
{Ia) Lease Liabilities 4B 347.2¢9 -
(ii) Trade payables 23
- Total outstanding due of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 1,590.86 1,898.22
- Total outstanding due of creditors
other than micre enterprises and small
enterprises 19,430.63 17,867.85
(ii) Other financial liabilities 19 2,279.24 3,711.21
(b} Other current liabilities 20 631.06 589.45
(c) Provisions 21 168.50 195.10
(d) Current Tax Liabilities 10 - 59.58
Tatal Current Liabilities 42,605.94 43,492.34
Total Equity and Liabilities 87,575.11 67,323.27

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalor_\e financial statements 1-63

As per our Report of even date attached

For Delojtte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartersfd Accduntants

(Firm’s \Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
/Q\")
/o i)
Rajesh Kume =/ Charlered |&
(Partner) s Accounlan!s.g_‘
(Membership No. 105546)  \\"® 4
Place;Gurugram O % P

Date:September 30,2023

For & on behalf of Board of Directors of

Hero Motors Limited

Abhishek Munjal

Whole Time Director
(DIN;: 05355274)

Place: Noida
Date:September 30,2023

-*\\\ 14
A e\ ate~
A

Darpan Vashishtha
Chief Financial Officer
Pan No. : ACGPV3123M
Place: Noida.
Date;September 30,2023

Amit Gupta

Managing Director

(DIN: 02997032)

Place: Boston,US
Date:September 30,2023

159

Ao -
SHeeba Dhamija
Company Secretary
M. No. 29705

Place: Noida
Date:September 30,2023




Hero Motors Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN

: U29299PB1998PLCO39602

(Amount in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Pacticulsrs Note)No: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I Revenue from operations 24 1,05,527.52 90,397.88
JII Cther income 25 1,403.84 636.68
III Total income (I+1I) 1,06,931.36 91,034.56
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumied 26 72,196.83 52,044.41
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 27 402.83 13,236.88
(¢) Changes in inventories of finished gonds, work In progress a 28 (577.56} (2,698.52)
(d) Employee benelits expense 29 9,038.57 5,479.83
(e) Finance costs 30 2,560.11 1,432.76
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 1,724.67 1,590.26
{g) Other expenses 32 15,562.58 12,927.73
Total expenses 1,00,908.03 84,013.35
V  Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 6,023.33 7,021.21
VI Exceptional Items 33 6,574.05
VIl Profit before tax (V-VI) 6,023.33 13,595.26
VIII Tax expense: 22
(a) Current tax 1,731.22 2,688.43
(b) Deferred tax . (570.14) 1,119.56
Total tax expense 1,161.08 3,807.99
IX Profit for the year (VII-VIII) 4,862.25 9,787.27
X Other comprehensive income
(A) (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
(a) Re-measurement gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans (643.77) 33.84
(i) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 162.02 (8.52)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (481.75) 25.32
XI Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,380.50 ' 5,812.59
XII Earnings per share: (face value INR 10 per share) 34
1) Basic (amount in INR}) 3.90 28.29
2) Difuted (amount in INR) 3.67 28.29
Surmmary of Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements 1-63

As per our Report of even date attached

For Deloifte Haskins & Sells LLP

nts
' No. 117366W/W-100018)

Zoeking S

. s

“Z\B ’\\<f N\

@ Gy
Rajesh =/ Charered | ©
(Partner) "5 | Accountants |
{Membership No. 105546) |\ S [ @
Place. Gurugram N\ & - ,\" ;
Date:September 30,2023 N ol 974

For & on behalf of Board of Directors of
Hero Motors Limited

&y

Abhishek Munjal
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 05355274)

Place: Noida
Date:September 30,2023

—
A\ S lecam

Darpan Vashishtha
Chief Financial Officer
Pan No, : ACGPV3123M
Place: Noida
Date:September 30,2023
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Amit Gupta

Managing Director

(DIN: 02997032)

Place: Boston,US
Date:September 30,2023

2

)
Sheeba Dhamija
Company Secretary
M, No. 29705
Place: Noida
Date:September 30,2023



Hero Motors Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U29299PB1998PLC0O39602

(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
- March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Cash flows from operating

A activities N
Profit before and tax 6.023.33 13,595.26
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 1,724.67 1,590.26
Irterest Paid 1,841.33 1,301.65
Other borrowing cost 718.78 131.11
Employee stock option 1,334.52 -
Frovision/Sundry Balances written back 1.94 0.37
Grant amortised during the year - -
Unrealized fateign exchange loss gain 232.54
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Froperty Plant Equipment 17.89 {6,572.58)
Rental intome (6,06) {6.41)
Gther Non Oparating Income {136.02) 5
Interest income {661.14) {130.039)
Operating profit before working capital changes 11,092.25 9,909.57
Working Capital adjustments:
Adjustment for (Increase) / decrease in Operating Assets :
Trade Receivables (2,307.46) (3,876.27)
Inventories (1,347.44) (3,647.37)
Other financial assgts ~ non-curient 493,12 (526.86)
Other financial assets - current (1,689.20) (965.64)
Other aszsets - non-cureent 52.40 (377.59)
Other assats « current 2,384.77 (1,615.53)
Adjustment for Increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities :
Trade Payables 1,155.68 6,7862.74
Other financial liabllities - non-currant 28.10 25.15
Other financial Habilities ~ current (974.10}) 2,464.73
Provisions - non-currant 228,21 17.93
Frovisions - current (26.60) 11,43
Other liabilities - non+ current (13.11)
Other liabilities - current 41,61 65.14
cash generated from operations 9,118.23 B,274.49
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (1,883.09] (2,246 £6)
Net cash inflow from/{used in) operating activities (A) 7,235.14 6,027.83
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Cayplital Expendifure on Property, rlant al:’d Equipment (Including Capital Ad (5,561.72) (3,087,583}
Pieceeds from Sale of Property, Plaat an
Equipment 127,58 9,368.20
Investment in subsidiaties {4,010.53) {397.87)
Ciher Investment (113.40) B
Sale of Mutual Fund 1,043.74 (2,446.52)
Loan granted (6,106.10) (583.92)
Loan and advarice to employee (6.02) {12.32)
Irterest received 351.64 130 09
Rent received B8.06 6.41
Bank balante not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalent (8,053.00) . =
Net cash inflow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (22,321.75) 2,976.14
C. Cash flows from financing activities
;rgcee.ds from / (Repayment) of Long Term 230.52 (6,925.93)
UIOwing
Repayment of / (Froceeds from) short term
bo“m’;mgs _ (1,012.57) 2,852.41
Procesds  from  Non-Cumwulabive  Compulso
Convertible preference shares s 14,500.00
Share 1zsue evpenses (345.07)
Other borruwing cost {718.78) (131.11)
Interest paid (2,193.93) (1,301.65)
Net cash inflow from/{used in) financing activities (C) 10,460.17 (5,506.28)

-~




Hero Motors Limited

standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN : U292959PR1998PLCO39602
{Amount in ¥ {akh, unless otherwise stated)

Net Increase (decrease) In cash and cash
equivatlents (A+B+C)
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalent {(Note no. 15)

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash, Cheque/drafts on hand
With banks - Current account
With banks - Deposit actount

Total cash and cash equivalent (Note no. 14)

Notes :

(4,626.44) 3,497.69
5,012.09 1,514.40
385.65 5,012.09
3.20 1.23
382.45 326.86

- 4,654.00

385.65 5,012.09

a) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with 'indiject method’ as set outin Ind AS - 7 - ‘Statement of Cash

Flows', as nolified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

b) Disclosure as required in terms of amendments to Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows',

Particulars ' A;:E;;r;h Cash Flows Nop Cash Changes As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Borrowings 5,833.33 221,92 B.60 6,063 85
Current Borrowngs 19,170.93 {1,012.57) 18,158.36
Closing balance of Loan 25,004.26 (790.65) 8.60 24,222.21
Particulars A; :. t;;:'fh Cash Flows Non Cash Changes As at March 31, 2022
Nan Current Borrowings 12,759.27 (6,925.93) - 5,833.33
Current Borrowings 16,318.52 2,852.41 19,170.93
Closing balance of Loan 29,077.79 (4,073.52) - 25,004.26

The aceompanying netes form an integral part of these standaione financial statements 1-63

As per our Report of even date attached -

For Deloifte Haskins & Sells LLP

Place:Gurugram
Date:September 30,2023

For & on behalf of Board of D’

Hero Motors Limited

2y’

Abhishek Munjal
Whote Time Director
{DIN: 05355274)
Place:Noida
Date:September 30,2023

— N

Darpan Vashishtha
Chief Financial Officer
Pan No. : ACGPV3123M
Place;Noida

Date'September 30,2023

Amit Gupta

Managing Direstor

(DIN: 02997032)

Place: Boston,US
Datle:September 30,2023

Uy A
i

Sheeba Dhamija
Company Sacretary

M. Na, 29705
Place:Neida
Date:September 30,2023
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1 Corporate Information

Hero Motors Limited, ‘the Company’ was incorporated on April 30, 1998 as a unlisted Limited Company under the Companies Act, 1956, vide Current
Registration Number U29299PB1998PLC039602 . The Registered Office of the Company is at Hero Nagar G. T. Road Ludhiana Ludhiana PB 141003,

The main objective of the Company’s business is manufacturing, buying, selling, importing, exporting, improving, assembling, repairing and dealing of all
kinds of component parts, replacement parts, gears , power train solutions, spare accessories, tools, implements and fittings for engines scooters,
motorcycles, three Wheelers, e-bikes or otherwise.

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November 09, 2022 for which the certified copy of the order
dated November 09, 2022 was received on November 16, 2022, the Demerged Undertaking (Primarily related to Auto Business consisting, inter-alia, of all
assets including movable and immovable properties and liabilities related thereto) was demerged from the Demerged Company and transferred to the
resulting Company, with effect from April 01, 2021, the appointed date.(refer note-41)

2 Significant Accounting Policies:
2.1 Statement of Compliance:

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, as applicable.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2.2 Basis of Preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using the historical cost basis and on a accrual method of accounting except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the policies below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at reporting date

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division II to Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in
the Schedule II to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under
the notified accounting standards.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The Company’s Financial statements and notes to the Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also its functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest of lakhs with two decimals (* 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.3 Operating cycle:
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-
current.
An asset / liability is treated as current when it is:-
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal operating cycle.
* Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
* Expected to be realised / settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at ieast twelve months after the reporting period.

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

2.4 Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of manufactured goods is recognized at & point in time when the control of the same is transferred to the customer. In case of domestic
sales, the transfer of control on sale of goods occurs when the goods are transferred to the transportation agent, as per the terms of contract. While in case

(i) of export sales, the transfer of control on sale of goods occurs on the date of bill of lading. Following dispatch of goods or date of bill of lading, the customer
has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.

For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

As per Ind AS 115, the Company determines whether there is a significant financing component in its contracts. However, the Company has decided to use
practical expedient provided in Ind AS 115 and not to adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing components in the
contracts, where the Company expects, at contract inception that the period of completion of contract terms are one year or less. Therefore, for short-term
@a‘gw@rﬁ? thq company does not account for a financing component. No long-term advances from customers are generally received by the Company.
‘Z‘ Sales-related warranties associated with goods cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-
Jﬁggglﬂt@_ﬂirs Accordingly, the Company accounts for warranties in accordance with Ind AS 37.

s

untants ¢

\{ in le of services

s'he_Compary’s service revenue contracts include providing delivery services . The Company recognises revenue from these contracts on satisfaction of
* perfg¥marice obligation towards rendering of such services over time, as and when the services are rendered in accordance with the specific terms of
coritracts with customers, The Company’s performance obligation is limited to providing resources required for these services

Q-
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Note

s forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(iii) Duty drawback and export incentives

2.5

2.6

The Company makes export sales, which qualify for benefit of Duty drawback, RODTEP (Remission of duties and taxes on export products) as laid down by
the Foreign Trade Policy. The Company recognises duty drawback income in respect of its entitlement towards export benefits on recognition of related export
sales.

Disaggregated revenue information

The Company presents disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March, 2023 by type of goods and services and timing
of revenue recognition. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash
flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors .

Interest and Other Income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset

Claims receivables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, if any, and, for assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, finance costs. Cost includes import duties and any non-refundable taxes on such
purchase, after deducting rebates and trade discounts and is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. All cost are capitalized which are
directly attributable to bringing assets to the condition and location essential for it to operate in a manner as intended by the management. In respect of
assets due for capitalization, where final bilis/claims are to be received/passed, the capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final adjustments, for
costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of ascertainment of actual cost and finalisation of claim.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Capital work in progress includes the cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use and the cost of assets not put to use
before the Balance Sheet date.

Transition to Ind AS: On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment as at
April 1, 2021, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation : Depreciation on PPE are provided to the extent of depreciable amount on straight line basis (SLM). Depreciation is provided at the rates and
in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.The residual values, useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
appropriately.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line basis on the estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule I to Companies Act , 2013 with

the following exception :
- Leasehold land & Leasehold improvement has been amortised over the lease term.
- Freehold Land is not depreciated.

Useful life considered for calculation for various assets class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Building 30-60 years
Plant & Machinery 0 to 25 years
Furniture & Fixture 3 to 10 years
Office Equipment's 3 to 5 years
Vehicles 8 to 10 years
Computer 3 to 6 years
Intangible Assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. Intangibie assets with finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumnulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures, qualifying as Intangible Assets are amortized over estimated useful
life.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognized as at April 01, 2021, measured as
per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

Subsequent Expenditure: Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which
it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives: Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and these are assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indicalion that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
.a;é'gqiiaméﬁ*ag least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
Aehts 'Emtsoaied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
gfstimates. The gfhortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditur'e forms part

' 3oof @hcyi’mgwblu&oi-another asset. The amortisation method, residual value and the useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually and adjusted as

)
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|\~ Bpecialized sr,lkwjje are amortized over a period of 3 years or license period whichever is later
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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2.8

2.9

2.10

/r\clksjqp f the beneflts in the cost of an asset. Benefits such as salaries, wages and short-term compensated/é& ence.s bon

w
| |ﬁ P'bstl-émﬁoyment benefits :

Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, wherever considered necessary. Cost of
inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective
present tocation and condition. The cost of various components of inventory is determined as follows;-

Goods Cost includes purchase cost, duties, taxes and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to
0o their present location. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

Cost include appropriate proportion of overheads wherever applicable. Goods in transit are valued at

Work in Progress cost excluding import duties wherever applicable

Scrap Scrap is valued at Net realisable value.

Leases

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 116:

The Company as a lessee_

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception
of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the iease.

Lease arrangements may include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities may include
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease pius any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-fine basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases,
the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates pertaining to the company. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension
or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flow activities.

Foreign Currency Transaction and translations :

The functional currency and presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupee. Functional currency of the Company and foreign operations has been
determined based on the primary economic environment in which the Company and its foreign operations operate considering the currency in which funds are
generated, spent and retained.

Initial recognition

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are carried at historical cost.

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

Employee's Benefits

gquires or permits the
and ex-gratia etc. are

%coamaejqﬁ Slatement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(9

'ﬁ‘Hﬂ&aéontﬁﬁbutlon Plan

i @nlnbutlon plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions to a statutory authority and thereafter, will have

na Ien‘zal or-fonstructive obligation to pay further amounts. Provident Fund are defined contribution scheme and contributions paid / payable are recognised as

an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the year in which the employee renders the related service.
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Defined Benefit Plan

The Company’s gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on government securities as
at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service
cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to
the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

a. service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
b. net interest expense or income; and

C. remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit or when the
entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short term and other long term employee benefits :

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange of services rendered by employees are recognised during the
period when the employee renders the services. These benefits include salaries, wages, performance incentives and compensated absences.

The liability in respect of accumulated compensated absences is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out at the year-end using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which they occur.

Share - based payment
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity settled transaction
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transactions at each reporting date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be nonvesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or nonvesting condition is
satisfied, provided that ail other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

Taxation

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or in
equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Mapaaement periodically evaluates

appropriate.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities if, and only if, a legally enforceable right exists to set off
intention either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneous!y.

Deferred Tax

Defecred-tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
fax ha;gprygecf iu the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are ‘gernerally gcognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
educhble tempdrarny differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
-.recqgwpgbrh(gther than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
_'taon,.dgfﬁgeé’:tam liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
e

ca-‘éum Ampunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
-:u r|C|engtaxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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2.13

2.14

(1)
(i)
(i)

2.15

_ef 1058,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in the year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit available as
an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for
which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which Company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement ". The Company reviews the "MAT Credit Entitlement" asset at each reporting date and
writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

In accordance with Ind AS 12 Company is grouping MAT credit entitlement with Deferred Tax Assets / Liability (Net).

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is material, the carrying
amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is
recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

* by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will
accept certain responsibilities; and

* as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

ntingent liabilitie
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events

where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. The Company does
not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

ntin
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision making body in the
Company to“make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation. The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the
management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments. Segment accounting policies are in line with the
accounting policies of the Company.

Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. Statement of
cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using
indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and
all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as on the
date of Balance Sheet.

Input tax credit:
Goods and Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying goods or services r
is no uncertainty in availing / utilizing the credits.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument S shafher entity. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are recognised immediately in profit
.')'_ aresadded to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
irectlicatt {L_;/u'raiule to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

[ Q@
mx: Fimeial@ssm\\

Accountants |
—-All regular w-w ‘ﬁu,h hases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or

$ak.s of flnam.la“1 assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

'A‘.r-_reé,;ggnised'financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the

financial assets.
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(a)
(b)

(a)
(b)

(B)

f ﬂ_’ ﬁEﬁSure%g’l aguordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.
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Classification of financial assets
For the purpose of Subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial assets in three categories:

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FYTPL. Interest income is recognised
in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item

Financial assets
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTOCI with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

All equity instruments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part
it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit
or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity.

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Eguity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabiliti

Initial recognition and measurement
All financiat liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities are adjusted to
the falr value on initial recognition.

~cking
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange
between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the
recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations on foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Company limits the effect of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations by following established risk management policies including the use of derivatives, The Company enters into derivative financial instruments (i.e.
foreign currency forward contract) where the counterparty is primarily a bank.

Derivatives are recognised and measured at fair value. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as cost. Subsequent to
initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are remeasured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

2.17 Impairment of financial assets:

The company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables, debt
instruments, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12
months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of
a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous
period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk
of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default accurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115,
the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

2.18 Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding OCI) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Pifuted 'ﬁ?él'rfir‘rlc_;s per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributabie to equity shareholdgrs-as adjusted for dividend, interest
"aprw ather gwarges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average J
" ‘period as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to h#g
I o=5h E‘: would dggresse the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity sh€a;
*-'bggg ﬁﬁ"&? tme:éériod, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.19 Operating cycle

2.20

2.21

2,22

2.23

(| ‘-:

Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Borroewing Costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest and amortization of ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the arants are intended to compensate.

Research & development costs

Research and development costs that are in nature of tangible assets and are expected to generate probable future economic benefits are capitalised as
tangible assets. Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it is incurred.

Exceptional items

VIIETT ILRINS UL INILVITNIE dilu BXPEIISE WILHIN Slalelliene ot PrONL ahu 0SS 11O UTUINAry dalliviles arg Ul sucn SILE, llawure Or mciuence gl Lem antiosure Is
relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional
iteme

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers - The Company applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers, such as identifying performance obligations in a bundied sales transactions, wherein, the Company sell goods,
transportation and warranty services bundled together with sales of goods. The Company allocated the portion of the transaction price to goods basis on its
relative standalone prices.

Business Combination: Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their fair
value on the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Further details about business combinations are given in note 50.

Compound financial instrument: The Company had issued Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares and Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares on private placement basis which has a fixed to fixed conversion terms. The Company has analysed the conversion terms related to timing
of conversion, future cash flows along with other factors and arrived at equity component of these instruments.

Impairment testing: The Company has reviewed its carrying value of long term investments in equity shares as disclosed in note- 5 of standalone financial
statements at the end of each reporting period, for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying amount of
assets may not be recoverable. If the recoverable value, which is based upon economic circumstances and future plan is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted.

Expected credit losses on financial assets: The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Company’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Determining lease term - The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the iease, together with any periods covered by an option
to extend the fease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised. The Company has some property lease arrangements with its holding company that include option to terminate the contract by either party at any
time by giving advance notice. The Company applied judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain for both the parties to terminate the property
lease contract before the lease term. It considered all the factors that create economic incentive for the parties to continue with lease or terminate including
alternatives available for the office lease, use of underlying property, leasehold improvements made and accordingly determined lease term.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The

assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Useful life of assets of (Property, plant and equipment)
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the
end of its life. The useful lives and residua!l values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at

each financial year end.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next nine years as the plant is not reaching optimal capacity utilization by the end of 5 years hence a
longer period projections considered. The Company expects that the business plan for optimal utilization of the plant is expected to be reached only in 2029.
It do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance
of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to property, plant and equipment recognised by the Company.

Contingencies : Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and other
claims. By virtue of their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates regarding the outcomne
of future events.

Recoverability of deferred taxes : In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the losses can be utilised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment.

Estimation of Taxes - Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability the Company considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences
relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised before they expire. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Standards issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31st, 2023, the MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning from April 1st, 2023, as
below:

(i) Ind AS 1 - Disclosure of material accounting policies:

This amendment require companies to disclose their material accounting policies information rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose
financial statements. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its financial statements due to this amendment.

(ii) Ind AS 8 — Definition of accounting estimates:

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a “change in accounting estimates”
has been replaced with a definition of “accounting estimates.” Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “*monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty.” Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

(i) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes:

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Similarly, a deferred tax liability for alt deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with:

a) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

b) decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognized as part of the cost of the related asset.

Therefore, if a company has not yet recognised deferred tax on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities or has recognised deferred tax on net basis, the same
need to recognize on gross basis based on the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendments and the impact is not
expected to be material.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in % lakh, unless otherwise stated)

4A. Right of Use Assets
Below are the carrying amounts of right to use assets and lease liabilities and the movements during the year. The Company’s
leased assets consists of leases for Land.

Particulars Lease Hold Land Total
Balance as on April 1, 2022 16.97 16.97
Additions 1,132.73 1,132.73
Derecognition of ROU - -
Balance as on March 31, 2023 1,149.70 1,149.70
Accumulated deprecation

Balance as on April 1, 2022 16.97 16.97
Charge for the year 113.27 113.27
Derecognition of ROU - -
Balance as on March 31, 2023 130.24 130.24

Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2022 - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,019.46 1,019.46

4B.Leases Liability
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the perioc

Particulars Lease Hold Land Total

Balance as at April 1, 2022

Additions 1,132.73 1,132.73
Finance cost accrued during the period 97.03 97.03

Payment of lease liabilities -
Reversal of Lease liability

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,229.76 1,229.76
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulars Current Non - current

As at March 31, 2023 347.29 882.47

As at March 31, 2022 - -

Others Disclosures :-

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 113.27 16.97

Interest expense on lease liabilities 97.03 -

Expense relating to short-term leases -
Total Cash outflow for leases =




‘ueid Jeu|BHO 51 01 paJedwiod Se 1S3 S| PaPRRDXD Sey O 2NPIBAO S| USHS|AWOD 3SOUM ZZ0Z “TE UDIBW 1€ SB pue £Z02 ‘TE YdIBW 18 Se Ssa1604d ul-3om-e3ides ou aJe aseyl 210N

papuadsns Ajelodws) syosfold

E€T1°2T6 - - 08'S6T EE9TL ssalboud u) s1oa(o.d
:M.“_Mubmz SiedAh £- Siedh z-T 1eak T uelyy sso1
1ejol sienonied
J0 polriad e u10j JIMD Ul JUnowy
'ZTOT “TE€ Ydiel 1e se dIMD Jo 3 npayds bujaby
- - - - papuadsns Afesodwa) s1oafold
90°LLY - - - 90'LLY ssaiboud u) sy0afold
A
:”_Muuhmz sieah €-2 sieal z-1 Jeak T ueyj ssa1
12301 saenoued
Jo pouad e 10} dIMD Ul JUnOWY
IETOT ‘TE Y24eW e Se dIMD JO 9jnpayds Buiaby
€1°TI6 90°LLY
(ogczt'T) (eT'12¥'E) 1e3A 23 Bunnp Juswdinbs g jueld ‘Auedold 0] paJlajsues) 1SS
96°G65°T 90'986'C 4eaA ay) Bupnp spew uonIppy :ppyY
£8°6Eb €T°CTI6 Je2A ayj Jo Buuuibaq ayy je souejeg

TTOT ‘'TE Y2MenW

e sy

€T0T ‘1€ Yydiey

je sy

siended

ssa4boad u1 yaom jeyde) : 5 90N

(pojels asimioy3o ssajun ‘pje| 2 ul dJe sJUNoLWe ||y)

ETOT ‘I€ YdJeKW papus l1edA ay) 105 SJUSWSIE]S [eIDURUL SUO|RPUR)S Y] JO Jed Hujw.io) sa3oN

pajuI] SI0J0 OIDH



Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6 : Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software Total

At Deemed cost
Gross carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2021 63.70 63.70
Add: Additions during the year 30.04 30.04
Balance as at March 31, 2022 93.74 93.74
Add: Additions during the year 204,01 204.01
Less: (Disposals) / adjustments during the year (1.75) (1.75)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 296.00 296.00
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2021 1.28 1.28
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 16.62 16.62
Less: (Disposals) / adjustments during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17.90 17.89
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 48.00 48,00
Less: (Disposals) / adjustments during the year (1.75) (1.75)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 64.15 64.14

Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2022 75.83 75.83
As at March 31, 2023 231.84 231.84




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All Amount are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7A : Investment (Valued at Cost)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Non- Current
I) Investments in equity shares of Subsidiaries - (unquoted)

a) Hero Motors Thai Limited
5,89,998 equity shares (March 31, 2022: 1,64,998) of THB 100 each fully paid up

b) Hewland Engineering Limited
10,513 equity shares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of GBP 1 each fully paid up

¢) HYM Drive Systems Private Limited
2,88,00,000 equity shares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of INR 10 each fully paid up

d) Hero EDU Systems Private Limited
10,00,000 equity shares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of INR 10 each fully paid up

I Investment in other equity instruments
(valued at fair value through OCI)
a) AMP Solar Urja Private Limited
182 equity shares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of INR 10 each fully paid up

~

b) Spur Technologies Private Limited
10 equity shares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of INR 100 each fully paid up

Inr Investments in Debenture of Others - (unquoted)
‘(valued at fair value through OCI)
a) AMP Solar Urja Private Limited
11,340 Debentures (March 31, 2022: Nil) of INR 1000 each fully paid up

These cumulative convertible debenture shall be entitled to Interest at rate of 0.01%
per annum.Interest shall be due and receivables at the end of every financial year.

Grand Total

i) Aggregate value of unquoted investments
ii) Aggregate value of unquoted investments (net of impairment)

(a) Movement during the year in subsidiary investment

1,418.32

10.08

2,880.00

100.00

397.87

4,408.40

397.87

0.02

0.24

113.14

113.40

4,521.80

4,521.80
4,521.80

397.87

397.87
397.87

Name of Company

Proportion (%) of equity interest

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Subsidiary
Hero Motors Thai Limited
Hewland Engineering Limited
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited

100.00%
51.00%
90.00%

100.00%

99.99%




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All Amount are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7B : Investment Others

Current Investment

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Investments in Debentures measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Quoted Investments

Nil (March 31, 2022 : 51) market linked debentures of Shriram Transport
Company of Rs 10,00,000 each

Nil (March 31, 2022 : 144) market linked debentures of Tata Capital
Financial Services Limited of Rs 10,00,000 each

Investments in Mutual funds measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Quoted Investments

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund

1,23,036.20 (March 31, 2022 : NIL) market linked Mutual Fund
HDFC Liquid Fund

24,496.84 (March 31, 2022 : NIL) market linked Mutual Fund

a) Aggregate book value of quoted investments
b) Aggregate market value of quoted investments

c) The number of units in note above represents absolute numbers.
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- 583.05
- 1,863.47
446.72 -
1,083.54 -
1,530.27 2,446.52
1,514.19 1,950.00
1,530.27 2,446.52
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 10 : Non Current Tax Asset

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance Income Tax 92.29 -
(Net of provision of 1,868.8 lakh (March 31, 2022 : Nil)
92.29 :
e As at As at
Note 10A : Current Tax Liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Tax Liabilities - 59.58
(Net of Advance Tax of Nil (March 31, 2022 : 2,628.86 lakh )
- 59.58
Note 11 : Other assets
Non - Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
(i) Capital Advances (Refer Note No. 36)
Unsecured, considered good 604.35 664.59 - -
604.35 664.59 - -

(ii) Balances with Government Authorities
Unsecured, considered good

Goods and Service Tax Receivables 18.20 1,292.42
Amount Deposit Under Protest 101.17 148.03 - -
101.17 148.03 18.20 1,292.42
(iii) Others
Export incentive receivable - - 536.02 1,099.01
Prepaid expenses - 5.54 63.33 54.54
Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind - - 4.47 34.10
Advances to suppliers - - 756.55 1,072.84
Other Receivables - = - 210.44
- 5.54 1,360.37 2,470.93
705.52 818.16 1,378.58 3,763.35




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 12 : Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and or realisable value)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Raw Materials (Refer note i (a) below) 4,159.07 3,596.99
Work in Progress (WIP) 3,128.05 2,096.62
Finished Goods (Refer note i (b) below) 6,431.06 6,587.53
Traded Goods - 225.47
Stores and Spares 1,706.00 1,169.18
Loose Tools - 329.01
Scrap 70.56 142.50
Total 15,494.74 14,147.30
Notes:
(i) Includes goods in transit:
(a) Raw material 531.66 41.15
(b) Finished goods 4,689.22 5,710.86
5,220.88 5,752.01
Note 13 : Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Secured ,Considered good - 385.30
Unsecured Considered good 21,298.45 18,749.00
Unsecured- Credit Impaired - -
Less: Allowance for receivables (credit impaired) - -
Total 21,298.45 19,134.30

Notes :
(i) The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days-75 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.

(ii) Trade receivables are from related parties, there are no indicators at the period end for default in payments. Accordingly, the Company
' does not anticipate risk of recovery and expected credit loss in respect thereof.

... Of the trade receivables balance as at the year end, the Company's largest customers who represents more than 10% of the total balance
(i) of trade receivables are as follows;

. As at As at
Particulars Type of Customer March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Customer A Domestic 9,659.13 5,096.07
Customer B Export 4,389.76 5,640.82

There are no other customers other than mentioned above, who represent more than 10% of the total balance of the trade receivables.

The company's exposure to credit and current risk and loss allowance related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 39
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14 : Cash and cash equivalents

- As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks:
- Current account 382.45 326.86
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months {Refer Note 'b'’
- 4,684.00

below)
Cash in hand 3.20 1.23

385.65 5,012.09

a) For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, the cash and cash equivalent are same given above.

b) The deposits maintained by the company with Banks comprise of the time deposits which may be withdrawn by the company at any point of
time without prior notice and are made of varying period depending upon the cash requirements of the company and earn interest at respective

deposit rate.

Note 15 : Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents

: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months (Refer notes 8,053.00 1,004.34
below) *
8.053.00 1.004.34

* Earmarked balances with banks is Nil (March 31, 2022: 1004.34 lakh)

‘[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in & lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 : Other Equity

PARTICULARS As at March 31st, | As at March 31st,
2023 2022

a. Securities premium:
Balance at the beginning of financial year

Add: Premium on issue of equity shares (refer note 41) 43,381.86 -
Add: Premium on issue of Non-Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 12,402.80 -
Less: Share issue Expenses (345.07)

Balance at the end of financial year 55,439.60 -

b. Equity component of Non Cumulative compulsory convertible preference
shares(refer note below)

Balance at the beginning of financial year

Add: Issue of Non-cumulative Compulsory convertible preference shares 2,097.19 -

Balance at the end of financial year 2,097.19 -

c. Share-based payment reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year -
Add: Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 1,334.99 -

Balance at the end of financial year 1,334.99 -

d. Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of financial year 12,230.77 2,418.18
Add: Profit for the year 4,862.25 9,787.27
Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations(net of tax) (481.74) 25.32
Balance at the end of financial year 16,611.28 12,230.77
e. Demerger adjustment deficit account

Balance at the beginning of financial year (75,279.98) -
Add: Effect of Business combination - (75,279.98)
Balance at the end of financial year (75,279.98) (75,279.98)
f. Equity Share pending issuance

Balance at the beginning of financial year 75,279.98 -
Add:Share pending issuance (refer note 41) - 75,279.98
Less: Issue of equity shares (refer note 41) (75,279.98) -
Balance at the end of financial year - 75,279.98
Total other equity (a+b+c+d+e) 203.07 12,230.77
Notes:

i) For Movement during the period in Other Equity, refer "Statement of Change in Equity".
ii) The description of the nature and purpose of each reserves within equity is as follows:
Securities premium:

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Share-based payments reserve:

The Share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under employees stock options scheme.

Retained earnings:
Retained earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.

Equity Shares Pending Issuance
Shares pending for issuance as on March 31,2022 has been issued during the current financial year (Refer Note 41) as an effect of which company has

issued a total of 3,18,98,1247 shares and accordingly Out of total balance of INR 75,279.98 Lakhs, INR 43,381.44 Lakhs has been transferred to Security

premium and INR 31,898.12 lakhs has been transferred to Equity share Capital

List of Non Cumulative compulsory convertible preference share

Type of capital Facc.: Value of As at

Equity Share March 31, 2023
Name ®f Sphare-Holder _|No of share Amount (Lakh)
Sogith gdla Growis Tovest LLC 10 2,09,08,282 2,090.83
Shiuth Asia EBT Trugh \\ 10 63,658 6.37
2] rngored 1@ |1 2,09,71,940 2,097.19
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 19 : Other financial liabilities

Non - Current Current
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Security deposit 413.40 385.30 - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 118.06 470.66
Leave Encashment Payable - - - 14.49
Creditors for capital goods - - 161.82 267.09
Payable to Related parties - - 1,765.37 2,958.97
Bonus / Leave Travel Allowances - - 214.01 -
Forward contract payable - - 19.98 -
413.40 385.30 2,279.24 3,711.21
Notes:
a) The company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in note 39.
Note 20 : Other liabilities
Non- Current Current
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Deferred Government Grant - 13.11 - 0.97
Advance from customer - - 405.80 430.70
Statutory dues - - 225.26 157.78
- 13.11 631.06 589.45
Note 21 : Provisions
Non - Current Current
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 236.87 101.18 33.65 13.17
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 35) 1,415.74 679.45 134.85 181.93
1,652.61 780.63 168.50 195.10




Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,

(Amount in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

2023

Note 22 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,290.82 1,221.45
Deferred Tax Assets 894.90 93.37
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 395.92 1,128.08
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities relates to followings:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Forward Contract Receivable
Payment of leave Encashment

Deferred tax Assets relates to followings:
Employee benefit

Debentures

Deffere Government Grant

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings
Forward Contract

Employee Stock option Plan

Right of use asset

Deferred tax Liabilities (net)

Note 22(A) : Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss

1,287.18 1,193.74
- 27.71
3.65 -
1,290.82 1,221.45
500.95 48.18
- 3.89
3.54
- 37.75
5.03
335.99
52.93
894.90 93.37
395.92 1128.08

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Current tax expense:
Current year

Prior year Tax adjustment
Total current tax (A)

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities):

Current year origination and reversals of temporary difference
Prior year Tax adjustment

Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (B)

Total tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

1,868.80 2,688.43
(137.58)

1731.22 2688.43
(332.67) 1,119.56
(237.47)

(570.14) 1,119.56

1,161.07 3,807.99

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Income tax impact on Remeasurement of defined benefits
Total Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(162.02)

(162.02)

Note 22(A) : Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in the Statement

of profit and loss is as follows:

For the year

For the year ended

Particulars ended

31 March 2023 1 March 2022
Profit before tax 6,023.33 13,595.26
Applicable income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected Income tax expenses 1,515.95 3,421.65
Adjustments:
Corporate Social Responsibility 10.57 -
Income tax related to prior years (137.58) -
Deffered Tax adjustment related to prior year (237.49) -
Others 9.49 -
Impact of Business Combination - 332.54
Due to Capital gain Charged at different rate - 53.80

1,161.07 3,807.99

Reporteg ':H\;nme tax expenses

*PE‘riﬂﬁﬂ"’r‘T difirznce represents taxes on disallowance of corporate social responsibility expendltures expenses s to increase authorized

share capital L
g cap o

n3Fes Chartered =

:L ‘éf'%c€8Wb%W§ a5 elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the
2} TFhe Lomp;yrdt’w\-is recognised deferred tax liabilities (net of assets) only to the extent it is probable that future taxable income will be

avan\b]e @anbﬂ “which unused tax credit will be adjusted.

/



- - - - - - SJ9Yp0 — senp pajndsia (A1)
- - - - - - AWSIW — sanp paindsig (1)
98°£98'LT +1°602 v.'8 88’1/ 96'16 €1°98F LT SET6)
2C'868'T - - - - 27'868'1 (H17 910N 19j3d) JWSI ()
elol sanp sieal € siedh g-Z siedh -1 AedA T uey) ssan
panqun ueyy alowW slejnoied

juawied jo aqep anp wod} spolad Guimoijo) 1o} Buipueising

ZZO0Z "TE Ydiew e se 9npayds bBuisbe sajqeled apea) (e

0€8 ¥YIT'6T
- Z - - - - SISYI0 — Sanp paindsiq (Al
- = - - - - JWSW — Sanp paindsiq
€9'0EP 61 26°8S8 0v'9L 06°T 96°60¢C SP'E8Z 8T ssayiQ (1)
98°06S'T = = = = 98°065'1 (17 210N 4959] WS (1)
B101 sanp Siedh € SIR9A £-2 SIe9A Z-T Aead T uey) ssan
! pallqun ey ason " ssejnopaed

jJuawied jo ajep anp woly spojiad Buimoljo) 10) Guipuesing

I€Z0C 'IE YOIeW J© SE 9|npayds buebe se|qeAed opedl (e

£0°994°6T 6¥ TZT0'IT oL
G8°2987L1 £9°0€P'61 S9511d13IUD ||eWS pue 0.0|W UBY] JUIC SJ01IPaLD JO Sanp Bujpueising |ejoL
22'868'T 98'065'T s9s11d183ud ||eWwS pue ol Jo sanp Buipueising |ejol
S3JIAL9S pue spoob 10} 103ipal) Alpuns
TTOT 'TE Yoiew €20T 'TE YoIen
1@ sy 1€ sy siejnoed

sejqeied apel] : £ 910N

(paje3s asiMIBYIo Ssajun ‘Yjyej 2 uj Junowy)
£Z0Z ‘I€ Yok Popua Jeah ay) 10} SJUIWIIL)S [BIDULUL) JUC|EPUE)S 03 SIION
PalIWit SI0JO0W OI9H



Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24 : Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Sale of product
Sale of Service

Other Operating Revenues

- Scrap Sales

- Export Incentive

- Amortisation of Capital Subsidy

1,02,628.45 88,252.12
1,083.37 448.78
1,03,711.82 88,700.90
1,366.30 1,225.42
449.40 471.07

- 0.49
1,05,527.52 90,397.88

a) Performance obligation
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of products.

During the year, the company has not entered into long term contracts with customers and accordingly disclosure of unsatisfied or remaining
performance obligation (which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that

has not been materialized, tax laws etc.) is not applicable to the company.

b) Disaggregation of revenue: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of geographical
spread of the operations of the company. The company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount of revenues and

cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors:

Revenue based on Geography

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

India
Outside India

Revenue from operations

66,086.49 63,163.98
39,441.03 27,233.90
1,05,527.52 90,397.88

Revenue based on Customer-wise

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Related Party
Non- Related Party

Revenue from operations

12,314.34 15,982.52
93,213.18 74,415.36
1,05,527.52 90,397.88

c) Reconciliation of revenue from operations with
contracted price

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Contracted Price
Less:

Sales Returns
Rebate and Discount

1,02,628.45

88,252.12

1,02,628.45

88,252.12

Note 25 : Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest Income
- On bank deposits
- Interest received on Trade Investment
-Others(Inter Corporate Loan & Security) (refer note 8)
Other non-operating income:
Rental income
Profit on sale of Property Plant Equipment
Mark to Market on Mutual Fund
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain(net)
Excess Provision/ Liabilities Written Back
Other Non Operating Income (refer note below)

Note:
Profit on sale of Investment
Misc. Income others

260.73 96.46
150.50 33.63
249.92 -
6.06 6.41
9.56 0.17
16.08 110.11
573.03 389.53
1.94 0.37
136.02 -
1.403.84 636.68
127.48 -
8.54 =
136.02 -

Other Non Operating Income

2
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 26 : Cost of raw material consumed

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Raw Material

Balance at the beginning of the Year
Add:- Purchases during the year
Less:- Balance at the end of the Year

Cost of raw materials consumed

Note 27 : Purchase of stock in trade

3,555.84 2,600.57
72,800.06 52,999.68
76,355.90 55,600.25

4,159.07 3,555.84

72,196.83 52,044.41

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Purchases during the year

Note 28 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in
progress and stock in trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Finished goods in transit

Scrap Stock

Stock in trade

(A)

Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Finished goods in transit
Scrap Stock
Stock in trade
(B)

(Increase) / decrease in inventory (A-B)

Note 29 : Employee benefits expense

402.83 13,236.88
402.83 13,236.88

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

2,096.62 3,025.55
876.67 689.64
5,710.86 2,425.74
142,50 79.14
225.47 133.53
9,052.12 6,353.60
3,128.05 2,096.62
1,741.84 876.67
4,689.23 5,710.86
70.56 142.50
= 225.47
9,629.68 9.052.12
(577.56) (2,698.52)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Salaries, wages & bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer note 35)
Gratuity expense (Refer note 35)

Compensated absences

Staff welfare expenses

Share based payment expenses (Refer Note No.29A )

Note 30 : Finance costs

6,346.22 4,442.90
511.45 369.46
169.31 156.15
222.62 49.78
453.98 461.54

1,334.99 -

9,038.57 5.479.83

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest expense on

-term loans & working capital facilities
-redeemable non convertible debentures
-external commercial borrowings
-delayed payment of statutory dues
Other borrowing cost

- Reverse discount

- Buyer credit

- Sales bill discounting

- Others
Interest on lease liability

Note 31 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

1,480.13
343.83
17.38

177.61
47.58
304.65
91.90
97.03

2,560.11

1,432.76

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4)
Amjoritsation of intangible assets (Refer note 6)
Atrig¥jsation of Right of use assets (Refer Note 4A)

1,563.40 1,573.64

48.00 16.62
113.27 =

1.724.67 1,590.26




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(A

in T lakh, unl otherwise stated)

Note No : 28A Employee Stock option plan

Detalls of Stock Optlon Scheme

ESOP Scheme plan 2022

Option Value

Particulars (Rs.) Date of Grant Number of option Granted
Tranche-1 60.93 December 02, 2022 95,15,278
Tranche-2 27.44 December 30, 2022 49,43,511
Tranche-3 29.97 December 30, 2022 39,54,809
Tranche-4 32.34 March 01, 2023 11,54,196
Date of Board approval of the relevant scheme December 02, 2022

Date of Shareholder's approval of the relevant scheme December 02, 2022

Date of last modification by shareholders NA

Method of settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity

Vesting Period Minimum of 1 Year and maximum of 8 year from grant date

Exercise period 10 years from the vesting date

The options are granted to eligible employees at the latest available closing price of the shares of the company prior to the grant date

Exercise, price as per the valuation report obtained by the company

Vesting of options is a function of achievement of performance criteria or any other criteria as specified by the company in the grant

Vesting Condition letter ,further the vesting takes place on staggered basis over the respective vesting period.

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expenses arising from equity - settled share based payment transactions (Refer Note
29) 1,334.99 -
Total expense arlsing from share-based payment transactions recognized in 1334.99 N
’ X

statement of profit and loss

Notes:

The company has given stock options to certain employees and has considered the related compensation cost to recognize in the statement of profit and loss

M ,over the vesting period

The

details of activity under the ESOP Plans have been summarized below :

ESOP Scheme plan 2022

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Weighted Average .
Number of options Exercise Price Number of options Welghted Average Exercise
(INR) Price (INR)

Outstanding at the beginning of the
year

Granted during the year 1,95,67,794 44,53 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,95,67,794 44.52561974 - -
Exercisabie at the end of the year -

Remaining average contractual life (in 3.07

years) B

Fair value of options granted

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year pertaining to ESOP 2022 plan is INR 44.53 The fair value at grant date is determined
using the using the Black- Scholes model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected
expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The following tables list
the inputs used for fair valuation of options for the ESOP plans

For option granted during the For option granted during the

Particulars year as on March 31,2023 year as on March 31,2022
ESOP 2022 Plan ESOP 2022 Plan
Dividend yield 0.36% -
_Expecteduniatility 39.02%-39.98% -
“Righrbenptersst rate 6.87%-7.08% -
/O Expected fifedl stiare option 4 to 6.4 years -
Share price at geant 69.14 -




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 : Other expenses

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent 151.45 40.28
Contract Labour Charges 3,122.30 2,995.45
Power & Fuel 2,512.88 2,149.42
Consumption of Stores & Spare 2,518.62 2,474.40
Packing Material Consumed 2,440.88 2,212.91
Security Charges 176.73 120.89
Repair & maintenance
- Plant & machinery 603.43 757.12
- Buildings 65.16 97.25
-Others 22.45 18.10
Legal & professional expenses 536.18 232.37
Payment to the auditors (refer note ‘a’ below) 32.50 15.50
Freight & Forward Charges 1,557.87 1,179.57
Other selling expenses 256.42 180.10
Rates & taxes 78.85 42.04
Travelling & Conveyance 294.52 86.00
Insurance Expenses 206.50 90.23
Bank Charges 94.99 26.62
Loss on sale/write off of PPE 27.45 1.64
Mark to Market Loss on Forward Contract 19.98 -
Corporate Social Responsibilities (refer note 32A) 42.00 -
Miscellaneous expenses 801.42 207.85
Total 15,562.58 - 12,927.73
a) Details of payment made to auditors is as For the year ended For the year ended

follows: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022

i) Payment to Auditor
- Statutory audit fee 25.00 10.50
- Tax audit fee 2.50 2.50
- Other services and certification 5.00 2.50
32.50 15.50

. . For the year ended For the year ended

Note 33 : Exceptional Items March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit on sale of land (Refer Note 'b' below) - 6,712.87

Loss on Demolition of Building - (138.82)
- = 6,574.05




Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Amount in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32A : Corporate Social responsibility expenditure(CSR)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year
Amount spent during the year on :

- National Apprenticeship Promotion Scheme

- Other

Unspent amount at the end of the year

Amount spent during current year pertaining to previous years

Total of previous year unspent balance

Reason for unspent balances :

- For Current Year

- For previous Year

Nature of CSR activities

Details of related party transaction to CSR expenditure as per
relevant Accounting Standard :

Movement in the CSR provision during the year :
Opening Provision

Provision made during the year

spent during the year

Provision at the end of the year

42.00

11.42
2.00

28.58

As the project are ongoing
project, the spending is
distributed beyond 2022-23

Nil
Skill Development and
Entrepreneurship
Nil
42,00
13.42
28.58

Nil

Nil

Total unspent amount of INR 28.58 lakhs as on March 31st, 2023 has been deposited in Prime Minister relief Fund in 6 months

period from the end of the financial year.




Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 : Earnings per share (EPS)

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Particulars March 31, 2023
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders (A) 4,862.25
Number equity shares for Basic EPS (B) 35,35,78,380
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (C) 12,46,11,019
Nominal value of Equity shares (INR) 10
Basic Earning per share (A/C) (in) 3.90
Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of pending issuance
Weighted average number of potential equity shares for Non-Cumulative compulsory

: 52,86,078
convertible preference shares
Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of Pending Employee

) 26,53,552

Stock option Scheme
Weighted average number of Equity shares (including dilutive shares) outstanding for 13.25.50,649
Dilutive EPS (D) e
Nominal value of Equity shares INR 10
Diluted earnings per share (A/D) (in INR) 3.67

[This space has been left blank intentionally]

9,787.27
3,45,97,133
3,45,97,133

10
28.29

31,89,82,976.00

35,35,80,109

10
2.77
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 : Contingent liabilities and commitments

a)

I

I

1II

b)

Contingent liabilities (To the extent not provided for)

The Company has reviewed all its pending claims, litigations and other proceedings and has adequately provided for wherever required.

Particulars a8 A€ As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sales tax demand
Amount deposit under protest 8.08 Lakh (March 31, 2022: 10.06 lakh). The case 27.64 27.64
is pending before Hon'ble Supreme Court of India.
Legal Cases of labour pending before Labour Court 44,08 41.59

Several Legal Cases of labour pending at labour Court, Civil Court and High Court. The Company has assessed and believe that none of these
cases, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any material adverse effect on its standalone financial statements. However,
Since it is difficult for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash outflows, if any, no further provision or separate disclosure is made in
books of account.

During the year 2022-23, company imported goods worth Rs 2,233.63 lakh on which company saved the duty amounting Rs 410.94 lakh on
EPCG Licences for which company has to fulfil export obligation amounting Rs 1,637.02 lakh.

During the year 2022-23, Company imported goods worth Rs 1,443.12 lakh on which company saved the duty amounting Rs 418.88 lakh on
advance licences. The remaining export obligation is Rs 2.56 lakh.

A Vendor - Sadhu Forging Limited, has filed suit claiming Rs. 39.29 lakhs as balance payment against supply of material. Hero Motors Limited
has resisted the claim on the basis that the material supplied was faulty by the vendor, material was rejected by Hero Motors Limited & Debit
Note raised to the Vendor.The case is pending with Civil Court, Faridabad

The excise department issued a show cause notice to demand duty of Rs. 474.82 lakhs along with interest and penalties. Vide final order dated
September 05,2017 the CESTAT set aside the SCN and dropped the demand.

The Department filed Civil Appeal Diary No. 42952/2019 which is pending consideration before the Supreme Court impugning the final order
passed by CESTAT.

N As At As At
Commitments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Capital Commitment: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on the capital account (net of capital advances of INR 604,34 lakh {March 31, 190.34 1,413.36
2022 : INR 664.59 lakh)

The Company does not have any other long term commitments or material non cancellable contractual commitments, which may have a
material impact on the standalone financial statement.

Note 37 : Related party transactions

a)

List of related parties

Nature of Relationship Name of the Related Party
Hero Motors Thai Ltd. (September 20 , 2021)

Hero EDU Systems Private Limited (Februray 17 , 2023)
Hewland Engineering Limited (Februray 21 , 2023)
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited (April 07,2022)

Subsidiaries

Bhagyoday Investments Private Limited
Firefox Bikes Private Limited

Hero Cycles Group Private Limited

Hero Cycles Limited

Hero E-Cycles Private Limited

Hero PBG Cycles Private Limited

Hero Transmission Private Limited

High Rise Industries

Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited

Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited
Munjal Sales Corporation

Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limited
OMA Living Private Limited

Spur Technologies Private Limited

ZF Hero Chassis Systems Private Limited

Enterprise over which Key Managerial
Personnel exercise Significant influence




Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & their relative

Mr. Pankaj Munial

Director and Shareholder

Mr. Amit Gupta

Managing Director & CEO

Appointment-September 09,2022

M

=

, Abhishek Munjal

Whole-time Director

Change in designation-September
09,2022

Mr. Keshav Misra

Director

Appointment-September 09,2022

Mr. Sridhar Narayan

Nominee Director

Appointment- January 04,2023

Mr. Kulbir Singh

Independent Director

Appointment-Februrary 01,2023

Ms. Pratibha Goyal

Independent Director

Mr. Pawan Puri

Director

Cessation-March 01,2023

Mr. Darpan Vashishtha

Chief Financial Officer

Appointment-May 01,2022

Ms. Sheeba Dhamiia

Company Secretary

Appointment-May 01,2022

Ms. Prerna Joshi

Company Secretary

Cessation-May 02,2022

b) Related Party Transactions
A. Tt ctions with related parties during the year
: ] Year Ended Year Ended |
S-No_ [Particulars Relation March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
a. Sale of goods
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 1,298.23 1,709.24
Bsh Ventures Private Limited Significant Influence - 45.76
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.47
Hero Cycles Limited* Significant Influence 9,496.48 14,082.92
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Influence 977.79 127.48
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary 146.21 -
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 203.23 -
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 192.40 -
High Rise Industries* Significant Influence - 16.65
b. Purchase of goods
Nipman Fastners Industries Private Limited |Significant Influence - -
Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited Significant Influence 2,612.54 2,188.50
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 0.28 (2.12)
Hnf Gmbh Significant Influence - -
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Influence 1.14 -
High Rise Industries* Significant Influence 1,054.45 371.70
Hero Cycles Limited* Significant Influence 11,022.45 13,174.22
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence 7.20 -
Oma Living Private Limited Significant Influence 3.53 -
c. Consultancy Fees
Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Ltd Significant Influence 259.06 -
d. Purchase of Assets
Hero Cycles Limited* Significant Influence 187.69 -
e. Loan Granted
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 250.00 -
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.40
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary 4,462.16 579.20
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 1,256.14 -
Loan received
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 500.00 -
f. Investment in equity shares
Hero Motor Thai Ltd. Subsidiary 1,021.06 397.87
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00 -
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 10.08 -
a. Purchase of Services
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 137.94 -
h. Interest Income on loan
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary 226.65 18.04
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 11.28 -
i Interest Paid on loan
HYM Drive Systems Pvt Limited Subsidiary 4.43 -




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

j. Other Expense
Hero Global Designs Limited Significant Influence 0.24 0.81
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 10.18 106.39
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence 0.38 -
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Influence 9.90
Hero Cycles Limited* Significant Influence 731.89 300.15
Munjal Sales Corporation Significant Influence 0.10 -
High Rise Industries Significant Influence - 0.01
Transmission Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.12
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary 81.63 75.39
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 6.39 -
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 12.25 -
Hero Edu Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 2.36 -
k. Rent Received
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 0.40 1.20
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.40
i Remuneration paid to Key Management
' Personnel*
Amit Gupta Managing Director and CEQ 240.00 242.00
Darpan Vashishtha CFO 160.00 -
Abhishek Munjal Whole Time Director 335.05 -
Prerna Joshi Company Secretary - 2.42
Rohit Maheshwari Key Financial officer - 6.00
Sheeba Dhamija Company Secretary 18.72 -
m, Directors sitting Fees:
Pratibha Govyal Independent Director 0.54 0.90
Pawan Puri Director 0.90 0.90
B. Balance Outstanding with related parties at end of the year
- - Year Ended Year Ended
S.No |[Particulars Relation March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a. Trade Receivable
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 281.00 -
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Influence 832.00 -
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 11.50
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary 292,32 75.39
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 185.06 -
Hero Edu Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 2.36 -
b. Trade Payable
Hero Cycles Limited Significant Influence 1,765.00 3,002.51
Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited Significant Influence 972.23 -
Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limited Significant Influence 27.54 -
ZF Hero Chassis Systems Private Limited Significant Influence 5.51 -
High Rise Industries Significant Influence 153.52 -
C. Investment in Equity Shares
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 2,880.00 -
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary 1,418.93 397.87
Hero Edu Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00 -
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 10.08 -
d. Loan Receivable
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary 5,058.80 579.20
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 1,387.61 -
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 250.00 -
Note a) Refer Note 16 , for movement of shareholding pattern from erstwhile shareholders to new shareholders
b)* These are the transactions appearing in the respective ledgers of these parties in the books of Hero Motors Limited
c) The status of stock options pending vesting/exercise, granted to Key Management Personnels are as below
Mr. Amit Gupta Mr. Keshav Misra
Name of Key Managmenet Personnel ESOP Scheme Plan 2022 ESOP Scheme Plan 2022
ESOP tranche Tanche-1 Tanche-2 Tanche-1
Exercise price (INR per option) 10 69.14 69.14
Share option outstanding as at 31st March
2023 (In Nos) 95,15,278 49,43,511 39,54,809
Share option outstanding as at 31st March _ _ _
2022 (In Nos)
c) Ultimate Beneficiary
0] The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign s adEles) with
the understanding {(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall
P 5(@)‘@]%;;?;39(\indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behilidt the Compéniy {ultimate
o7 EReficiarig) () 8 G‘,g‘
o~ 9 d‘ \ » NA
1 L}'{g"i%e aRy dparantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries
3 X H | —
e NS uftants | o |
7w he ompa_n'){%as not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding parties) with the understanding
( __Qd-wjle_th_ej réso/rded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shali

={a) ﬂgcu\r dr'indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the funding Parties

L/

(ultimate beneficiaries), or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries




Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38 : Fair value measurements

I Financial instruments
a) Financial instruments by category

Except Investment in equity instruments (Quoted) and investment in mutual funds which are measured at fair value through profit or
loss, all other financial assets and liabilities viz. trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
interest receivable, other receivables, trade payables, employee related liabilities and borrowings, are measured at amortised cost.

b) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the standalone financial instruments that
are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the
standalone financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of

each level follows underneath the table.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financials liabilities, including their levels of in

the fair value hierarchy:

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Level

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Financial assets measured at fair value through Profit and loss

Investment in Debentures Level 1 - 2,446.52
Investment in Mutual Funds Level 1 1,530.27 -
Forward Contract Receivable Level 1 - 110.11
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other comprehensive Income

Other investment Level 3 113.40 -
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Investment in equity shares (Unquoted) Level 3 4,408.40 397.87
Loan to employees Level 3 21.26 17.64
Loan to related parties Level 3 6,696.29 579.20
Security Deposits Level 3 1,051.96 261.32
Interest accrued but not due on margin money Level 3 140.00 13.33
Interest accrued but not due on loan to related parties Level 3 226.65 18.04
Interest accrued and due on Deposit with UPSEB Level 3 2.42 19.66
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months Level 3 - 1,004.34
Other Receivable Level 3 2,072.53 2,172.30
Trade receivables Level 3 21,298.45 19,134.30
Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 8,438.65 5,012.09
Other bank balances Level 3 - -
Receivables from related party Level 3 1,619.67 -
Total Financial Assets 47,619.96 31,186.72
Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Forward contract payable Level 1 19.98 -
Financial liabilities valued at amortized cost

Borrowings Level 3 24,222.21 25,004.26
Security Deposits Level 3 413.40 385.30
Lease Liabilities Level 3 1,229.76 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings Level 3 118.06 470.66
Interest accrued and due on borrowings Level 3 - -
Trade payables Level 3 21,021.49 19,766.07
Employee Benefit Payable Level 3 214.01 14.49
Payable to Related parties Level 3 1,765.37 2,958.97
Creditors for capital goods Level 3 161.82 267.09
Total Financial Liabilities 49,166.10 48,866.83

c) Capital management

The company’s capital management objectives are:
(a) to ensure the company’s ability to continue as a going concern
(b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the

level of risk.

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company and other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital
n"raga'g_le’rvﬁe'n_t_is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholders value.
o ¥ 3 S :

(S < \
2NN
.. 6 AQN{S_(;'
Toy N

0o

x &7

oy




Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Equity Share Capital

Free Reserve(i.e. retained earnings,security premium,demerger adjustment

deficit account)

Reserve to Share Capital (in no. of times)

Gearing Ratio

35,357.84 3,459.71
(1,131.90) 12,230.77
(0.03) 3.54_

The Company has outstanding long term debt of INR 6,063.85 lakh at the end of reporting period (previous year INR 5,833.33 Lakh)
and short term debt of INR 18,158.36 Lakh at the end of reporting period (previous year INR 19,170.93 Lakh). Accordingly, the

gearing ratio is worked out as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Long term Borrowing (Refer Note 18A)
Short Term Borrowing (Refer Note 18B)
Total Debt

Less:Cash and Cash Equivalent

Net Debt

Total Equity

Net Debt to Equity

6,063.85 5,833.33
18,158.36 19,170.93
24,222.21 25,004.26
8,438.65 5,012.09
15,783.56 19.992.17
35,560.92 15,690.48
44% 127%
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 40: Segment Reporting

The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business segment. The Company is organised into
key business segments — Power Train & Alloy & Metallics . Segments have been identified and reported based on the nature of

the products, the risks and returns, the organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems.

The following is the segment information for :

Year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Power Train AIon_& Unallocable Total
Metallics

Revenue - External customers 46,351.99 59,175.53 - 1,05,527.52
Other Income 537.91 21.10 - 559.01
Unallocable Other income - - 844.82 844.82
Total revenue 46,889.90 59,196.63 844.82 1,06,931.36
Segment Expenses (40,171.93) (55,891.37) - (96,063.30)
Unallocable Expenses - - (2,284.62) (2,284.62)
Unallocable Finance Exenses - - (2,560.11) (2,560.11)
|Segment profit (Before Tax) 6,717.97 3,305.26 (3,999.91) 6,023.33
Less: Current Tax - - (1,731.22) (1,731.22)

Deffered Tax - - 570.14 570.14
Segment profit (After Tax) 6,717.97 3,305.26 (5,160.99) 4,862.25
Total assets 38,971.06 27,424.37 21,179.68 87,575.11
Total liabilities 5,994.34 16,256.27 29,763.58 52,014.19
Year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Power Train AIon_& Others Total
Metallics

Revenue - External customers 32,760.21 57,632.31 - 90,392.52
Other Income * 499.63 - - 499.63
Unllocable other Income - - 6,716.46 6,716.46
Total revenue 33,259.84 57,632.31 6,716.46 97,608.61
Expenses (28,853.68) (53,725.73) - (82,579.41)
Unllocable Other Expenses - - (1.18) (1.18)
Unllocable Finance Expenses - - (1,432.76) (1,432.76)
|Segment profit 4,406.16 3,906.58 5,282.52 13,595.26
Less: Current Tax - - (2,688.43) (2,688.43)

Deffered Tax (1,119.56) (1,119.56)
Segment profit (After Tax) 4,406.16 3,906.58 1,474.53 9,787.27
Total assets 27,756.60 20,382.80 19,183.87 67,323.27
Total liabilities 2,363.17 15,504.69 33,764.93 51,632.79

* Other income inludes Exceptional profit from sale of land INR 6574.05lakh

Geographical information

Secondary segment reporting is performed on the basis of geographical location of customers. The operations of the Company
are 63% in India, with exports contributing to approximately 37% (Previous Year 30%) of its annual sales. The management

views the Indian market and export market as distinct geographical segments.
Revenue from external customers (Refer note 24)

Non-current assets:

(INR in Lakh)

March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
India 22,284.03 17,407.74
Outside India -
Total 22,284.03 17,407.74

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of Property, Plant and Equipment,Right of Use Assets, CWIP and Intangible assets.

Segment revenue and profit

The e;pﬁﬂst:g:that are not directly attributable to the business segments are shown as unallocable expenses.

Segfient Hkse \and liabilities

S;.éfﬁ\eﬂt assets j cl\ude all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of debtors, inventories, advances and
{fq&frlalhg]%l;g: ahg Equipments. Assets at the unallocable level including cash and bank balances , investment and tax assets are
notrellhfz)a,laledms‘igpihents on a reasonable basis and thus the same have not been ailocated.

F\é grent habllmes include all operating liabilities and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabilities.
Th

5 not have revenues from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of

f&ev?tal ‘rﬁ'\/enne §




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41 : Scheme of Arragement

The Board of Director of Hero Cycle Limited (HCL) ("Transferor Company”) as its meeting held on August 27, 2021 had
approved a scheme and subsequently filed with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for demerger of Auto business of HCL
into Hero Motors Limited ("resulting Company").

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November 09, 2022 for which
the certified copy of the order dated November 09, 2022 was received on November 16, 2022 and it was submitted to Registrar
of Company on November 30, 2022, the Demerged Undertaking (Primarily related to Auto Business consisting, inter-alia, of all
assets including movable and immovable propertities and liabilities related thereto) was demerged from the Demerged
Company and transferred to the Resulting Company, with effect from April 01, 2021, the appointed date.

Shareholders of the Demerged Company will receive 81,174 share of the Resulting Company for every 100 share they hold in
the Demerged Company.

As per the Scheme, all assets and liabilities of the Auto Business (*Demerged Undertaking”) stand transferred to the Resulting
Company from the appointed date. The employees of the Demerged Undertaking have also moved to the Resulting Company
and consequently the employee related benefits and all contracts and agreements in relation to them have been taken over by
the Resulting Company. The approved Scheme has accordingly been given effect to in these standalone financial statements as
on the appointed date.

In the preparation of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, pursuant to the approved Scheme, the Resulting
Company had given effect to the scheme in the standalone financial statements for demerger of Demerged Undertaking.
Further, as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 “Business Combination”, the comparatives for the year ended
March 31, 2021 were restated as if the common control business combination had occurred from the beginning of the earliest
period presented. The Accounting treatment included the following:

1. Assets, Liabilities and Reserves of the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company were
recorded at their carrying values as appearing in books of the Demerged Company at the time of the demerger effective date
and in accordance with requirements of relevant Ind AS.

2. The Resulting Company will issue new equity shares pursuant to the approved Scheme to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company

3. The inter-company balances between Demerged Company and Resulting Company relating to Demerged Undertaking, if any,
in the books of accounts of Demerged Company and Resulting Company got cancelled.

4. The difference between assets, liabilities and reserves transferred and the purchase consideration on Demerger is recorded
as "Demerger Adjustment Deficit Account” of Resulting Company.

5. As per para 43 of Ind-AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows, transactions that do not require the use of cash and cash equivalents
(i.e. the above transfer of assets and liabilities under the scheme of demerger) have been excluded from the standalone cash
flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022.

The details of Demerged Undertaking as per the scheme approved by National Company Law Tribunal into Resulting Company
is as follows:

Particulars As on April 01, 2021
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 15,411.59
(b) Capital work in progress 439.87
(c) Other Intangible assets 62.42
(d) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 266.40
(e) Non current tax assets (net) 7.96
(f) Other non current assets 439.09
Total Non-current assets 16,627.33
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10,499.94
(b) Financial_assets
(i) :rad’g\(aqgwagles 15,258.03
@iy Qas-h and Cl‘lb&‘ equnvalents 1,486.78
[HL %’?\artcrcd | 0.60
u)'—'lD maesfinanc 151- F}ssets 1,840.20
(c) Qt ar current aqqets 2,145.93
Total cﬁ'n*e;t agsets 31,231.48
al ssets 47,858.80




Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Equity and liabilities
Equity
(b) Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Others financial liabilities
(b) Provisions

Total non- current liabilities

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
- Total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Excess of assets over liabilities

Less: Issue of equity share capital of the Company due to demerger as per scheme
(Refer Note 16)

Amount debited to Demerger Adjustment Deficit Account pursuant to the above
scheme of demerger

3,214.36

3,214.36

12,759.27
360.15
741.47

13,860.89

16,318.52

1,389.05
11,424.92

927.38
520.90
202.78

30,783.55

47,858.80

Nil
75,279.98

(75,279.98)

Note : Equity shares pending for issuance at the end of previous year i.e. March 31, 2022 has been issued in current financial

year.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

Transfer Pricing:

The Company has established a comprehensive system on maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing
legislation under 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be
contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the internationa! transactions entered into with
the associated enterprises during the year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the due date as required under law. The
management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm‘s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on
the financial statements.

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006:

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises had issued an Office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the
Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated
after filing of the Memorandum. Based on information received and available with the Company, there are no amounts payable to Micro and
Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2023 except as follows: -

. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 1,590.86 1,898.22

unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

(ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

(iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay

in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the

appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest - -
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006

(iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year;

(v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even

in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues

above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of - -
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected
by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Exceptional items includes below income & expenses :
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit on sale of land - 6,712.87
Loss on Demolition of Building - I _(138.82)
Total - 6,574.05

There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educational and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to emplioyee benefits during employment and post employment received Presidential assent
in September 2020 and was published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the code will come into effect has not been notified.
The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes
effective.

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The CSR activities and spend are as per
the CSR Policy recommended by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lakhs of Indian Rupees ('INR’ or 'Rs.") and are rounded to the nearest lakh,
unless stated otherwise.

50, 7. &\ﬁlﬂi& ith Struck-off Companies
W Wi

q,T]' e Compan\/%d}- not incurred any transaction with struck-off companies i.e., investments in securities, receivables, payables, shared held by

'I foar] #trﬁ%ﬁftﬁ‘f%n}gghies and other balances during the period.
O‘ Accountants

||lJ

51 CR(E;:ustratlo:\qf charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

Thcre'g 'mff'large created on the assets of the Company with the Registrar of Companies other then assets specified in Note 18



Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(ANl amounts are in € lakh, unless otherwise stated)

52 1Inclusion of Prior period errors

No prior period items have been recorded or exists as on date.

53 Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not done any investment or trading in crypto and virtual currencies.

54 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceedings has been initiated or pending agatnst the Company for holding any
Benami property. '
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a Company as a wilful defaulter at any time

5 during the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are approved.

56 In respect of immovable properties that have been taken on lease and disclosed in the financial statements as right to use asset as at the
balance sheet date, the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company, except for the following:

| T mote |
Description of Whether pro Ty
immovable Carrying Gross Carrying [Heldin | director or their | Pefjod held Indicate | Reason for not Belng
properties taken | Value Value Name of relative or nge, "lm«e oo
on lease I employee appropriate pany
Hero p . Company is in the process |
3.16,&9dﬂmsat:.;:t. 2 1,019.46 1,132.73 Cycles l.ang I:'::Efn;;fe:era April 1, 2(;%22::0 Mar 31, | of duly executing the lease
Limited 4 agreement

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of account but has been surrendered or disclosed as income
57 during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act 1961 {such 2s, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income-tax Act, 1961).

58 The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

59 Previous year's numbers have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current year classification.

60 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

As per the notification of the Ministry of Corporate Affalrs (MCA) dated August 05, 2022, the Central Government has notified the Companies (Acoounts)
Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred as 'Rutes’). As per said Rules, the Companies

61 are, inter-alla, required to maintain back-up of the books of accounts and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode in servers physically located in
India on a dally basis. The books of account along with other relevant records and papers of the Company are maintained In electronic mode and the same Is
physically tocated in India and backups are being carried out on a daily basis,

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
62 (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

€3 The Board of Directors approved the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and authorised for issue on September 30, 2023.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors of \\ f ,
Hero Motors Limited \ \\ /
@__7__7/ ,{\i
Abhishek Munjal Amit Gupta
Whole Time Director Managing Director

(DIN: 05355274)
Place: Noida
Date: September 30,2023

(DIN: 02997032)
Place: Boston,US
Date: September 30,2023

Sheeba Dhamija

R Darpan Vashlstha
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/,5',2{?? R R Pan No. : ACGPV3123M M. No. 29705
) i\ &} Place: Noida Place: Noida
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Hero Motors Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hero Motors Limited ("the Parent”) and
its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on financial information of subsidiaries, referred to in the Other Matters
section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to
in the sub-paragraphs (a) of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Parent company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

« Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

 In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information when it becomes available, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by the
_other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other
ﬁ%éﬂﬂﬁtgg‘;and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
@/ 0 AP
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statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial statements
audited by the other auditors.

» When we read the Board’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor's
responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Parent company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated balance sheet, consolidated profit and loss including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash
flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group including in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business
activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited
by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries namely Hero Motors Thai Limited, HYM Drive
System Private Limited, Hero EDU System Private Limited and Hewland Engineeriing Limited, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs.18,162.85 Lacs as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of Rs. 101.77
Lacs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 266.18 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial

-skig'tjltements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these

<4
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subsidiaries, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The above consolidate financial statements includes the Group’s share of the loss after tax of Rs. 693.97
lacs for the period September 1, 2022, till March 31, 2023 as considered in the consolidated financial
statement in respect of one foreign associate which became subsidiary from March 31, 2023. Refer note
6A of the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has not prepared its consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
for the reasons stated in Note 2.3(¢) of the Consolidated financial statements. Current year consolidated
financial statements includes comparative numbers for the year ended March 31, 2022, which have been
furnished to us by the management and have not been audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of other auditors on the

separate financial statements subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the
extent applicable that:

a)

b)

Q)

d)

e)

f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books,
and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on March
31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated

in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent company and its subsidiary company to whom internal
financial controls over financial reporting is applicable. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of those companies.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

h)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the auditor’s reports of subsidiary companies incorporated in India, the remuneration paid by the Parent
and such subsidiary companies to their respective directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated

i)

i)

iv

v)

St

financial position of the Group, Refer Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements;

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts including derivative
contracts - Refer Note 62 to the consolidated financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India - Refer Note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements;

a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated
in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and
to the other auditors of such subsidiaries to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Parent/ Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent Company or
any of such subsidiaries (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b) The respective Managements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“*Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which
are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, have not declared or paid any dividend during the year
and have not proposed final dividend for the year.
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vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable w.e.f.
April 1, 2023 to the Parent Company and its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India,
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO"/ “the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by
us and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated financial statements to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent Company, we report that there
are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports of the said companies
included in the consolidated financial statements.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartéred Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 1173 6W/W - 100018)

25Xins @ R
)
Rajesh Kuriar Agarwal
A 2 (Partner)
) ~ {Membership No. 105546)
A% x> o UDIN: 23105546BGXMVV6601

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE "A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consclidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of Hero Motors Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) and its subsidiary companies, which includes
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financiai
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors of the
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal

financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
s
NS
\
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and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent, its
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
criteria for internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to two subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors
of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters,
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartergd Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 11736¢W/\W - 100018)

£9% (
= ‘i_/ (Membership No. 105546)

UDIN: 23105546BGXMVV6601
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 30, 2023



Hero Motors Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

CIN : U29299PB1998PLCO39602

{Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As At As At
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Assets
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 23,529.08 16,419.80
(b} IRight of Use Assets 45 1,486.98 N
(c} Capital work in progress 5 6,787.21 1,944.33
(d) Other Intangible assets 6 334.92 75.84
{e) Goodwill 6A 797.25 -
(F) Financial assets
(1) Investments
- Other investment 7A 113.40 -
{ii) Loans 3 252.32 4,72
(iii) Other financial assets 9 397.14 775.22
(9) Non current tax assets (net) 10 88.76 -
(h) Other non current assets 11 1,046.78 818.16
Total Non-current assets 34,833.84 20,038.07
2. Current assets
{a) Inventories 12 19,159.75% 14,147.30
(b) Financial assets
{i) Investments 7B 1,530.27 2,446.52
(ii} Trade receivables 13 24,101.40 19,058.91
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 755.79 5,035.46
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash 13 8,555.18 -
equivalents
(v) Loans B 33.57 12.92
{vi) Other financial assets 9 4,094.56 2,805.84
(c) Other current assets 11 1,897.37 3,765.62
Total Current Assets 60,127.89 A47,272.57
Total Assets 04,961.73 67,310.64
B. Equity and liabilities
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 35,357.84 3,459.71
(b) Other eauity 17 (401.87) 12,215.06
{c) Non controliing Interest 17 (1,131.41) -
Total Equity 33,824.56 15,674.77
2. Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
(&) Financial liabilities
(1} Borrowings 18A 6,063.85 5,833.33
(ia) Lease Liabilities 4B 882.47 -
(ii) Others financial liabilities 19 413.40 385.30
{b) Other Non-current Liabilities 20 - 13.11
(¢) Provisions 21 6,780.13 780.63
(d) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 22 362.54 1,128.08
Total Non- Current Liabilities 14,502.39 8,140.45
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Hero Motors Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
CIN : U29299PB1998PLCD39602

(Amount in Z lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As At As At
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabitities
(i) Borrowings 18B 18,236.89 19,170.83
(ia) Lease Liabilities 4B 347.29 -
(ii) Trade payables 23
- Total outstanding due of micro enterprises 1,591.76 1,898.22
and small enterprises
- Total outstanding due of creditars other 21,956.62 17,870.90
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
{iii) Other financial liabilities 19 2,720.68 3,711.21
{b) Other current liabilities 20 1,472.37 589.45
{¢) Provisions 21 309.17 195.10
(d} Current Tax Liabilities 10A - 59.58
Total Current Liabilities 46,634.78 43,495.39
Total Equity and Liabilities 94,961.73 67,310.61

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements .
As per our Report of even date attached
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(Partner)
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Chief Financial Officer
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For & on behalf of Board of Directors of
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1 I

Amit Gupta
Manaqing Director
{DIN: 02997032).
Place.Baoston,US

Date: September 30, 2023

Shi}exa Dhamiija

Company Secretary
M. No. 28705
Place : Noida

Date: September 30, 2023




Hero Motors Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U29299PB1998PLC039602 .

(Amount in ¥ Takh, unless otherwise stated}

Particulars Note No. For the year ended March For the year ended March 31,
31, 2023 2022
I Revenue fram operations 24 1,05,194.54 90,397.88
II Other income 25 1,495.53 636,69
III Total income (I+II) 1,06,690.07 91,034.57
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 26 71,862.81 52,044.41
{b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 27 402,83 13,226.88
(c) Changas in inventuries of finished guods, 28 {578.69) (2,692.52)
wurk in progress and stock in trade
(d) Employee benefits expense 29 9,118 81 5,479 83
{e) Finance costs 30 2,560.07 1,432.76
(f) Deprecialion and amortisation expense 31 1,756.33 1,550.26
(9) Other expenses 32 15,734.47 12,942.97
Total expenses 1,00,856.63 84,028.59
V  Profit/ (loss) before share of net Profit / (Loss) of associates, 5.833.44 7.005.98
exceptional items and tax (III-IV)
VI Add : Share of Net profit / (lozs) of 2ssaciates (162.48) &
V Profit/ (Joss) before exceptional items and tax (1II-1IV) 5,670.96 7,005.98
VI Exteptional [tems 33 - 6,574.05
VIl Profit/ (loss) before tax (V-VI) 5,670.96 13,580.03
VIIT Tax expense: 22
(8) Current tax 1,737.13 2,688.43
(b) Deferred tax (603.52) 1,119.56
Total tax expense 1,133.61 3,807.99%
IX Profit/(loss) for the year (VII-VIIIL) 4,537.35% 9,772.04
X Other comprehensive income
(A) (i) Items that will nat be reciassified to profit or less
{a) Re-measurement gains/ (lcsses) on defined benefit plans (643.77) 33.84
{ai)Share of gains / {lcszes) related to assaciate (531.49)
(it} Income tax on ilerns that wilt not be reclagsified to profit or loss 162.02 (8.52)
(B) (i} Ttems that wiil be reclassified to of profit or loes
(a) Eschange differences In translating the financisl statements of foreign 256.52 -
operations
Other comprehensive income for the year, nek of tax (756.72) 25.32
X1 Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,780.63 9,797.36
XIT Profit for the year attributable to :
Equity holder of parent 4,804.51 10,891.59
Non-Controlling intesest (10.67) -
4,793.84 10,891.59
XIIT Other comprehensive Income for the year attributable to :
Equity holder of parent (1,013.24) -
Non-Controlling interest - -
) (1,013.24) -
XIV Total comprehensive Income for the year attributable to !
Equity holder of parent 3,791.27 10,891.59
‘Non-Caritiplling inteérest (10.67) -
3,780.60 10,891.59
XV Earnings per share: {face value INR10D per share) 34
1} Basic (amount in INR) 3.64 28 25
2) Diluled (amount in INR) 3.42 28.25
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
The arcompanying ndtes form an integral part of these consolidated financial i-566
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Hero Motors Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U20290PB1998PLCO39602

{Amount in ¥ lakh, unfess otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
A. Cash ftows from operating activities
Profit before and tax 5,670.96 13,580.03
Adjustments for:
Depreclation and amertization 1,756.33 1,590.26
Interest Paid 1,841.33 1,301.65
Other borrowlng cost 718,78 13111
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 256,52
Provision/Sundry Balances written back 1.94 0.37
Grant amortised during the year . N
Less/(Profit) on sale of Property Plant Equipment 17,89 (6,572.58)
Employee stock option 1,334.99 -
Rental Income {6.06) (6.41)
QOther Non Operating Income (136.02) -
Share In Profit / Loss of asscociates (693.97) B
Interest income (681.51) (130.10)
Operating profit before working capital changes 10,081.18 9,894.33
Working Capital adjustments:
Adjustment for (Increase) / decrease in Operating Assets :
Trade Receivables {2,305.21) (3,800.88)
Inventories {1,716.60) (3,647.37)
Other financial assets - non-current 345.11 (508.49)
Other financial assets - current {1,212.26) (965.64)
Other a2gsets - non-current 51.12 (377.59)
Other assets - current 2,035.87 (1,617.80)
Adjustment for Increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilitles :
Trade Payables ‘ 1,011.99 6,792.78
Other financiat liabllities - non-current 28.10 25.15
Other financial liabilities - current (945.58) 2,464,73
Pravisions - non-current (284.586) 17.9%
Provisions - current (1.66) 11.43
Other liabilities - non- current (13.11) -
Other liabilities - current 51.96 65.14
Cash generated from operations 7,122.35 8,353.78
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (1,885.47} (2,246.66)
Cash flow before exceptional items 5,236.88 6,107.12
Exceptional items:
Frofit/(loss) on sale of Pioperty Plant Equipment -
Net cash inflow from/ (used In) operating activities (A) 5,236.88 6,107.12
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital Expendlture on Property, Plant and Equipment (Including (13,187.74) {4,120.13)
Capital Advances)
proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 127.58 9,368.20
Investment In debenture (113.40) -
Sale of Mutual Fund 1,043.74 (2,446.52)
Loan granted {247.60) (4.72)
Loan and advance to employes (20.65) (12.32)
Interest received 646.56 130.10
Rent received 6.06 6.41
Bank balance not considered as Cash & Cash Equivalent (8,555.18) -
MET cash inflow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) {20,300.63) 2,921.02
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from / (Repayment) of Lang Term Borrowing 230.52 (6,925.93)
Repayment of / {Proceeds from) short term borrowings {1,012.57) 2,852.41
Procaeds from issue non-cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares 14,500.00 -
Share issue expenses (345.07) -
Other borrowing cost {718.78) (131.11)
Interest paid {1,950.63) (1,301.65)
Net cash inflow from/{used in) financing activities (C) 10,703.47 {5,506.28)




Hero Motors Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiows for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN : U29299PB1998PLCO39602

{Amount in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022

Net Increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (4,360.28) 3,521.86
{A+B+C)

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalerts 5,035.46 1,514.40
Cash of subsldiary [.e. HEL acquired during the year 80.61

Total cash and cash equivalent (Note no. 14) 755.79 5,035.46
Components of cash and cash equivalents N

Cash, Cheque/drafts on hand 3.20 1.23
With banks - Current account 752.59 350,23
With banks - Deposit account D 4,684.00
Total cash and cash equivalent (Note no. 14) 755.79 5,035.46

Notes ;

a)'The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared In ordance with ‘indirect method' as set out in Ind AS - 7 ~ 'Statement of Cash Flows', as notified under
section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

b) Disclosure as required in terms of amendrments to Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows

Particulars _ As at March 31, 2022 Cash Flows Non Cash Changes As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Borrowings 5,833.33 221.94 8.58 6,063.85
Current Borrowings 19,170.93 {934.04) - 18,236.89
Ciosing balance of Loan 25,004.26 {712.10) 8.58 24,300.74
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Cash Flows Non Cash Changes As at March 31, 2022
Non Current Borrowings 12,759.27 (6,925.93) = 5,833.33
Current Borrowings 15,318.52 2,852.41 B 19,170.93
Closing balance of Loan 29,077.79 (4,073.52) - 25,004,26
Summary of Significant Accounting Policles 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

1

2.2

2.3
(@

Corporate Information

Hero Motors Limited, ‘the Company or Parent Company’ was incorporated on April 30, 1998 as a unlisted Limited Company under the Companies
Act, 1956, vide Current Registration Number U29299PB1998PLC039602 . The Registered Office of the Company is at Hero Nagar G. T. Road
Ludhiana Ludhiana PB 141003.

The main objective of the Company’s business is manufacturing, buying, selling, importing, exporting, improving, assembling, repairing and dealing
of all kinds of component parts, replacement parts, gears , power train solutions, spare accessories, tools, implements and fittings for engines
scooters, motorcycles, three wheelers, e-bikes or otherwise.

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November 09, 2022 for which the certified copy of
the order dated November 09, 2022 was received on November 16, 2022, the Demerged Undertaking (Primarily related to Auto Business
consisting, inter-alia, of all assets including movable and immovable properties and liabilities related thereto) was demerged from the Demerged
Company and transferred to the Resulting Company, with effect from April 01, 2021, the appointed date. (refer note 41)

Basis of consolidation and summary of significant accounting policies:
Basis of accounting and preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (to the extent notified) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter (Indian GAAP). Accordingly, the Group has prepared these financial statements which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended March 31, 2023, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information on accrual and going concern
basis. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in previous year.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Parent Company, its subsidiary companies i.e. Hero EDU Systems
Private Limited , HYM Drive Systems Private Limited,Hewland Engineering Limited and Hero Motor Thai Limited (together called as ‘the Group') as
at March 31, 2023. Contro! is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

(i) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give It the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
(ii) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

(iii) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(i) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

(ii) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

(i) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

(iv) The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If
a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events

in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent Company,
i.e., year ended on March 31, 2023

Consolidation Procedure:

Subsidiaries :

(i) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose,

income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at
the acquisition date.

(if) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

(iii) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group
(profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as Inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlfing interests, even if this results in the noncontrolling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in fufl on consolidation.
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A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over
a subsidiary.

(i) Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

(ii) Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests

(iii) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

(iv) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

(v) Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

(vi) Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

(vii) Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

Associates: (Also refer note 6A)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies. The Group’s investment in its associate are accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which it becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the
investment and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as follows:

» Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Such goodwill is not amortised.

» Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment (if material)
is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition
date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Statement of Profit and Loss includes the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCI of those investees is
presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the Statement of Changes in Equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring
the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its
associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value, and then recognises the loss as share of profit or loss of associate in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Following subsidiary company has been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Name of the entity and its Country of Ownership held by | % of Parent and its voting % of Parent and its
relationship incorporation power as at March 31, voting power as at March
2023 31, 2022

Hero Motors Thai Limited (HMTL)* Thailand Hero Motor Limited 100.00% 100.00%

Hero Motor Limited 51.00% N
Hewland Engineering Limited (HEL)** United Kingdom

Hero Motor Limited 90.00% - ]
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited***  |india |
Hero EDU Systems Private - Hero Motor Limited 100.00% =

Limited{HESPL)**** India

* On September 20, 2021, Hero Motors has acquired 100% shares in Hero Motors Thai Limited.

** On October 03,2022 the Hero Motor Limited has acquired 32% share in Hewland Engineering Limited from Hero International B.V. pursuant to
which Hewland Engineering Limited has become an associate of Hero Motor Limited; On February 21, 2023 the stake of Hero Motor Limited in
Hewland Engineering Limited has further increase to 51%;post which the Hewland Engineering Limited has became subsidiary of Hero Motor Limited.

Post demerger, the Company is no longer be the subsidiary of Hero Cycles, thus for the comparative purpose, the Company has presented
comparative numbers for the year ended March 31, 2022.

*** On April 07, 2022, Hero Motors has acquired 90% share in HYM Drive systems private Limited

**%* on Februrary 17, 2023, Hero motors has acquired 100% shares in Hero EDU systems Private Limited.

Statement of Compliance:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) as per section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act’), other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
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(i)

Basis of Preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, using the historical cost basis and on a accrual method of accounting except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as expiained in the policies below,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at reporting date

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division II to Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as
prescribed in the Schedule 1I to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements along with the other
notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards.

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group
operates (‘the functional currency’). The Group’s Financlal statements and notes to the Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR),

which is aiso its functional curl\‘ency and all values are rounded to the nearest of lacs with two decimals (' 00,000), except when otherwise
indicated.

Operating cycle:

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash

equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and
non-current.

An asset / liability is treated as current when it is:-

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal operating cycle.

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

* Expected to be realised / settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of
manufactured goods is recognized at a point in time when the control of the same is transferred to the customer. In case of domestic sales, the
transfer of control on sale of goods occurs when the goods are transferred to the transportation agent, as per the terms of contract. While in case
of export sales, the transfer of control on sale of goods occurs on the date of bill of lading. Following dispatch of goods or date of bill of lading, the
customer has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
For allocating the transaction price, the Group has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

As per Ind AS 115, the Group determines whether there is a significant financing component in its contracts. However, the Group has decided to
use practical expedient provided in Ind AS 115 and not to adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
compenents in the contracts, where the Group expects, at contract inception that the period of completion of contract terms are one year or less.

Therefore, for short-term advances, the Group does not account for a financing component. No long-term advances from customers are generally
received by the Group.

Sales-related warranties associated with goods cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance that the products sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group accounts for warranties in accordance with Ind AS 37.

Sale of services

The Group’s service revenue contracts include providing delivery services . The Group recognises revenue from these contracts on satisfaction of
performance obligation towards rendering of such services over time, as and when the services are rendered in accordance with the specific terms

of contracts with customers. The Group’s performance obligation is limited to providing resources required for these services.
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Duty drawback and export incentives
The Parent Company makes export sales, which qualify for benefit of Duty drawback and RODTEP (Remission of duties and taxes on export

products) as laid down by the Foreign Trade Policy. The Group recognises duty drawback income in respect of its entitlement towards export
benefits on recognition of related export sales.

Disaggregated revenue information

The Group presents disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended 31 March, 2023 by type of goods and services
and timing of revenue recognition. The Group believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors .

Interest and Other Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
Claims receivables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Group is reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, If any,
and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, finance costs. Cost includes import duties and
any non-refundable taxes on such purchase, after deducting rebates and trade discounts and is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other
incidental expenses. All cost are capitalized which are directly attributable to bringing assets to the condition and location essential for it to operate
in @ manner as intended by the management. In respect of assets due for capitalization, where final bills/claims are to be received/passed, the
capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final adjustments, for costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of
ascertainment of actual cost and finalisation of claim.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work in progress includes the cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use and the cost of assets not
put to use before the Balance Sheet date.

Transition to Ind AS: On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment as
at 1 April 2021, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation : Depreciation on PPE are provided to the extent of depreciable amount on straight line basis (SLM). Depreciation is provided at the
rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.The residual values, useful lives are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted appropriately.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line basis on the estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule II to Companies Act ,
2013 with the following exception :

- Leasehold land & Leasehold improvement has been amortised over the lease term.

- Freehold Land is not depreciated.
Useful life considered for calculation for various assets class are as follows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Building 30-60 years
Plant & Machinery 0 to 25 years
Furniture & Fixture 3 to 10 years
Office Equipment's 3to 5 years
Vehicles 8 to 10 years
Computer 3 to 6 years

Intangible Assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are measured at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures, qualifying as Intangible Assets are amortized over
estimated useful life.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognized as at April 01, 2021,
measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

,(,5_“. S
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Subsequent Expenditure: Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives: Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and these are assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. The amortisation method, residual value and the useful lives
of intangible assets are reviewed annually and adjusted as necessary. Specialized software are amortized over a period of 3 years or license period
whichever is earlier.

Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, wherever considered necessary. Cost

of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to
their respective present location and condition. The cost of various components of inventory is determined as follows;-

Goods Cost includes purchase cost, duties, taxes and all other
costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
location. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost
Method.

Work in Progress Cost include appropriate proportion of overheads
wherever applicable. Goods in transit are valued at cost
excluding import duties wherever applicable

Scrap Scrap is valued at Net realisable value.

Leases

The Group evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 116:

The Group as a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these

short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Lease arrangements may include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
may include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any Initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates pertaining to the Group. Lease

liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes Its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flow
activities.

Foreign Currency Transaction and translations :

The functional currency and presentation currency of the parent company is Indian Rupee. Functional currency of the parent Company and its
subsidiaries has been determined based on the primary economic environment in which the parent Company and its subsidiaries operate
considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

Initial recognition

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items

carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are carried at historical cost.

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on

foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in tfie of those assets when

they are re_gardeld'ié}l’:fam-adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.
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Exchange Difference on consolidation of Foreign operations

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into Indian Rupees using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (and
attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the group are reclassified to profit or loss.

Employee’s Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employee benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. When an employee has rendered service to the Group during an accounting period, the Group recognises the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as an expense unless another Ind AS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Benefits such as salaries, wages and short-term compensated absences,
bonus and ex-gratia etc. are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment benefits :

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions to a statutory authority and
thereafter, will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Provident Fund are defined contribution scheme and contributions

paid / payable are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the year in which the employee renders the related service.
Defined Benefit Plan

The Group’s gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

a.service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
b.net interest expense or income; and
c.remeasurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’, Curtailment
gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit or
when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Other Long Term Benefits :

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange of services rendered by employees are recognised

during the period when the employee renders the services. These benefits include salaries, wages, performance incentives and compensated
absences.

The liability in respect of accumulated compensated absences is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out at the year-end using
the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which they occur.
Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
(OCI) or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities if, and only if, a legally enforceable right exists to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for ali deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset

realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in the year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Group recognises MAT credit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period,
i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which Group recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is
created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement ". The Group reviews the "MAT Credit
Entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

In accordance with Ind AS 12 Group is grouping MAT credit entitlement with Deferred Tax Assets / Liability (Net).

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is material, the
carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a
provision is recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it Is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made. The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financia! statements.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision making
body in the group to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation. The reporting of segment information is the same as
provided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments. Segment accounting
policies are in fine with the accounting policies of the Company.

Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from
operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-

non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and

all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general use
as on the date of Balance Sheet.

Input tax credit:

Goods and Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying goods or services received Is accounted and
when there is no uncertainty in availing / utilizing the credits.

Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

eking
COE

~
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(A) Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of
the financial assets.
Classification of financial assets
For the purpose of Subsequent measurement, the Group classifies financial assets in

() Financial assets at amortized cost

(i}  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(iii)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets shali be measured at amortized cost If both of the following conditions

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
Ali financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI as described
Effective Interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an Integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is
recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item
Financial assets
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTOCI with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive
income.
Financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
All equity instruments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).
De-recognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset),
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such galn or
loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

(B) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liabitity and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financia! liabilities are
adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement
approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, and commitments issued by the Group to provide a loan at below-market
interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities subseguently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent

accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the

effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the

relevant period. The effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreian exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value
gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecodnition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange
between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial tiability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial fability and the recognition of a
new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payabie is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there is a current legally enforceable right to

set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations on foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group limits the effect of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations by following established risk management policies including the use of derivatives. The Group enters into derivative financial
instruments (i.e. foreign currency forward contract) where the counterparty is primarily a bank.

Derivatives are recognised and measured at fair value. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are remeasured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financia! liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising Impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease

receivables, debt instruments, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset and financial guarantees not
designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Group estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalis that will result
if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Group measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the
end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as
compared to the previous period, the Group again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.
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When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the change in
the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To
make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 115, the Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share ("EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding OCI) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity
shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.

Operating cycle
Based on the nature of activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents,

the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest and amortization of ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Research & development costs

Research and development costs that are in nature of tangible assets and are expected to generate probable future economic benefits are

capitalised as tangible assets. Revenue expenditure on research and development Is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year In
which it is incurred.

Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their
disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Group for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed
separately as exceptional items.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates couid result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in

which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers - The Group applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers, such as identifying performance obligations in a bundled sales transactions, wherein, the Group seil goods,

transportation and warranty services bundled together with sales of goods. The Group allocated the portion of the transaction price to goods basis
on its relative standalone prices.

Determining lease term - The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised. The Group has some property lease arrangements with its holding Group that include option to terminate the contract
by either party at any time by giving advance notice. The Group applied judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain for both the
parties to terminate the property lease contract before the lease term. It considered all the factors that create economic incentive for the parties to
continue with |ease o+ terminate including alternatives available for the office lease, use of underlying property, leasehold improvements made and
accordingly ﬂ%tgr\oiin@'g’ege term.
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The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The
assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

Estimates and Assumptions - The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Expected credit losses on financial assets: The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Company’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances

Impairment testing: The Company has reviewed its carrying value of long term investments in equity shares as disclosed in note- 5 of
standalone financial statements at the end of each reporting period, for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that
indicate that carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. If the recoverable value, which is based upon economic circumstances and future
plan is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted.

Impairment of goodwill: Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount

of a Cash Generating Unit (CGUs) is less than its carrying amount. For the impairment test, goodwill is allocated to the CGU or groups of CGUs
which benefit from the synergies of the acquisition and which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. The recoverable amount of CGUs is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. Key assumptions in the

cash flow projections are prepared based on current economic conditions and comprises estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost
of capital and estimated operating margins.

Business Combination: Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are Initially recognised at
their fair value on the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

Further details about business combinations are given in note 41 and 6A.

Financial instrument: The Company had issued non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares and Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares on private placement basis which has a fixed to fixed conversion terms. The Company has analysed the conversion terms

related to timing of conversion, future cash flows along with other factors and arrived at equity component of these instruments.
Useful life of assets of (Property, plant and equipment)
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual

value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired
and reviewed at each financial year end.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds Its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next nine years as the plant is not reaching optimal
capacity utilization by the end of 5 years hence a longer period projections considered. The Group expects that the business plan for optimal
utilization of the plant is expected to be reached only in 2029. It do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These
estimates are most relevant to property, plant and equipment recognised by the Group.

Contingencies : Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal and
other claims. By virtue of their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The

assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of
estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Recoverability of deferred taxes : In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the
projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

Estimation of Taxes - Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability the Group considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable
temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the
unused tax Josses or unused tax credits can be utllised before they expire. Significant management judgement is required to determine the

amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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Standards issued but not effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifles new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31st, 2023, the MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:
(i) Ind AS 1 - Disclosure of material accounting policies:
This amendment require companies to disclose their material accounting policies information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary

users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect to have any significant impact in its financial statements due to this
amendment.

(ii} Ind AS 8 - Definition of accounting estimates:

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a “change in accounting
estimates” has been replaced with a definition of “accounting estimates.” Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.” Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in
financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any

significant impact in its financial statements.
(lii) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes:

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Similarly, a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with:

a) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

b) decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognized as part of the cost of the related asset.

Therefore, if a company has not yet recognised deferred tax on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities or has recognised deferred tax on net basis,

the same need to recognize on gross basis based on the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after Aprit 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendments and the
impact is not expected to be material.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)
4A. Right of Use Assets

Below are the carrying amounts of right to use assets and lease liabilities and the movements during the year. The Group’s leased assets

consists of leases for Land.

Particulars Lease Hold Land Total
Balance as on April 1, 2022 16.97 16.97
Additions 1,611.78 1,611.78
Derecognition of RQU - ]
Balance as on March 31, 2023 1,628.75 1,628.75
Accumulated deprecation

Balance as on April 1, 2022 16.97 16.97
Charge for the year 124.80 124.80
Derecognition of RQU - -
Balance as on March 31, 2023 141.77 141.77
Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2022 - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,486.98 1,486.98

Note :

The HYM Drive System Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) has obtained 2 acres of land from Hero E-Cycles Private Limited for 33 years for
it's Operation by making one time payment. Such land has been recognized as ROU in financial Statements so as to amortize such land over the
lease period as provided in IND AS 116 Leases. Yearly Amortization is recorded for Rs. 11.53 Lakh,

4B.Leases Liability

Particulars Lease Hold Land Total

Balance as at April 1, 2022

Additions 1,132.73 1,132.73

Finance cost accrued during the period 97.03 97.03

Payment of iease liabilities - -

Reversal of Lease liability - .

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,229.76 1,229.76

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulars Current Non - current

As at March 31, 2023 347.29 882.47

As at March 31, 2022 - 1

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the period :

Other Disclosures

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 124.80 16.97

Interest expense on lease liabilities 97.03 97.03

Expense relating to short-term leases
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6 : Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software Development Cost Total
(Motor Design)

At Deemed cost

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2021 63.70 - 63.70
Add: Additions during the year 30.04 - 30.04
Balance as at March 31, 2022 93.74 - 93.74
Add: Additions during the year 204.01 105.20 309.21
Less: {Disposals) / adjustments during the year (1.75) - (1.75)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 296.00 105.20 401.20
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2021 1.28 - 1.28
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 16.62 - 16.62
Less: (Disposals) / adjustments during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17.89 - 17.89
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 48.00 2.14 50.14
Less: (Disposals) / adjustments during the year (1.75) - (1.75)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 64.14 2,14 66.28
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2022 75.84 - 75.84
As at March 31, 2023 231.85 103.06 334.92

[This page has been left blank intentionally]




Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6A : Investment in Hewland Engineering Limited (HEL)

No of shares Amount in INR Lakh
Particulars As at March As at March As at March As at March
31,2023 31,2022 31,2023 31,2022
Hewland Engineering Limited 10,513 - 10.08 -

On Qctober 03,2022 the Hero Motor Limited has acquired 32% share in Hewland Engineering Limited from Hero International B.V. pursuant to
which Hewland Engineering Limited has become an associate of Hero Motor Limited; On February 21, 2023 the stake of Hero Motor Limited in
Hewland Engineering Limited has further increase to 51%;post which the Hewland Engineering Limited has became subsidiary of Hero Motor
Limited.

Hewland Engineering Limited follow accounting year September to August which has been changed to April to March 2023.Thus for the purpose of
consolidation the result for the period September till March 2023 has been added in the profit of the parent (Considered Hewland Engineering
Limited as an associate) for the purpose of consolidation.

The management is of the view that the impact of the leftover/braoken period is immaterial.

Currently the management is in process of finalizing the purchase price allocation for this acquisition and difference between net book value and
the purchase consideration has been considered as goodwill (INR 797.25 lakhs has been allocated to Goodwill under equity method of
consolidation).

Asset acquired and liability assumed of Hewland Engineering Limited as on March 31, 2023 and accounting year August 31,2022 is as below :

Balance Sheet

Particulars As at March As at August
31,2023 31,2022
Property, plant and equipment 1,389.88 1,357.10
Inventories 3,295.85 2,858.94
Trade receivables 2,733.28 2,738.83
Cash and cash equivalents 80.60 130.50
Other current assets 167.62 -
Total Assets (A) 7,667.23 7,085.38
Loans 1,672.05 1,503.43
Provisions 5,108.80 3,432.59
Borrowings 78.53
Trade payables 2,765.34 2,843.86
Other current liabilities 830.96
Provisions 115.73
Total Liability (B) 10,571.41 7,779.87
Identifiable net assets at fair value (A-B) (2,904.18) (694.50)
Fair value of net assets (2,904.18) (694.50)
Less : NCI Share (1,423.05) -
Net asset for holding (1,481.13) -
Purchase Consideration 10.08 -
Goodwill / (Capital Reserve) 1,491.22 -
Current year loss adjusted through other equity considering as associate company (162.48)

(Please refer note below)

Current year loss adjusted through other equity considering as associate company (531.49)
(Please refer note below)

Goodwill Recognized 797.25




Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6A : Investment in Hewland Engineering Limited (HEL)

Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Period ended
September to

Year ended
August 31, 2022

March,2023

Turnover 7,196.51 9,769.81
Cost of sales (5,745.50) (7,439.71)
Gross Loss/ (Profit) 1,451.01 2,330.10
Administrative expenses (2,120.85) (2,630.74)
Other operating income 76.55 108.76
Other Operating cost (2,044.30) (2,521.98)
Operating Loss (593.30) (191.88)
Interest receivable and similar income 0.90 0.24
Interest payable and similar expenses (133.13) 34.32
Gther finance income (88.43) (115.21)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (813.96) (272.53)
Taxation on loss from ordinary activities 306.23 437.35
{Loss)/profit for the financial period/year (507.73) 164.82
Other comprehensive income for the period/year

Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension scheme {(1,660.92) 3,140.27
Other comprehensive income for the period/year (1,660.92) 3,140.27
Total comprehensive {loss}/income for the period/year (2,168.65) 3,305.10

Note : Share of Profit / Loss of the Parent Company Limited for the period September 2022 to March 31,2023 i.e. 32% of INR 2,168.65 Lakh i.e.

693.97 added in the profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2023.

The Break up share of loss considered in profit and loss statement of parent company is as follows :

Disclosed in profit and loss
Disclosed in other comprehensive income

(162.48)
(531.49)

Total

(693.97)




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All Amount are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7A : Investment (Valued at Cost)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1} Investments in equity shares of Others - (unquoted)
(valued at fair value through OCI)
a) AMP Solar Urja Private Limited
182 equity shares (March 31, 2022: Nil) of INR 10 each fully paid up 0.02 -

b) Spur Technologies Private Limited
10 equity shares(March 31, 2022: Nil) of INR 100 each fully paid up 0.24 -

I} Investments in Debenture of Others - (unquoted)
(valued at fair value through OCI)
a) AMP Solar Urja Private Limited
11,340 Debentures (March 31, 2022: Nif) of INR 1000 each fully paid up 113.14 -
The CCD shall be entitled to Interest at rate of 0.01% per annum.Interest shall be due and
receivables at the end of every financial year.

113.40 -
i) Aggregate value of unquoted investments 113.40 -
i) Aggregate value of unquoted investments (net of impairment) 113.40 -
Note 7B : Investment Others
Current Investment
Particulars o8] st A9, at
March 31. 2023  March 31, 2022

Investments in Debentures measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Quoted Investments
Nil (March 31, 2022 : 51) market linked debentures of Shriram Transport - 583.05
Company of Rs 10.00.000 each
Nil (March 31, 2022 : 144) market linked debentures of Tata Capital Financial - 1,863.47
Services Limited of Rs 10,00,000 each
Investments in Mutual funds measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Quoted Investments
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund 446.72 -
1,23,036.20 (March 31, 2022 : NIL) market linked Mutual Fund
HDFC Liquid Fund 1,083.54 -
24,496.84 (March 31, 2022 : NIL) market linked Mutual Fund

1,530.27 2,446.52
a) Aggregate book value of quoted investments 1,514.19 1,950.00
b) Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1,530.27 2,446.52

¢) The number of units in note above represents absolute numbers.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
{Amount in T lakh. unless otherwise stated)

Note 8 : Loans measured at amortized cost
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non - Current Current

Particulars As at As at As at

As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loans to Employees

Loans Receivables considered good — Unsecured 2.32 4.72 33.57 12.92

Loans to Related Party (Refer Note No. 37 and below note 'a")
Spur Technologies Private Limited 250.00 - - -
252.32 4,72 33,57 12.92
a) The above loan given to related party is repayable on demand in 3 vears carrying interest rate @ 9% p.a
Note 9 : Other financial assets-At Amortized Cost
Non - Current Current

Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

n r nsider

1. Interest accrued but not due
Unsecured, considered good

- Margin Money 35.11 4.56 104.90 8.77
- Loan to Subsidiary - (0.00) - -
ii.Interest accrued and due on Deposit
Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued and due on Deposit with UPSEB 2.42 - - 19.66
iii.Others
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with Banks:
In Deposit Accounts (with remaining maturity of less than twelve - 509.34 774.41 495.00
months)(refer note Below)
Security deposits -Others(Electricity and others) 359.61 261.32 14.31 -
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months (Refer note - - - -
15)
Forward Contract Receivable - - - 110.11
Receivables from related party 1,128.43
Other Receivables - - 2.072.51 2.172.30
397.14 775.22 4.094,56 2.805.84
Note:
1. Balances with Banks held as Marain Monev Deposits against Letter of Credit issued by Axis Bank.
Note 10 ; Non Current Tax Asset
Particulars M As at As at
arch 31. 2023 M™arch 31, 2022
Advance Income Tax 88.76
(Net of provision of INR 1,868.80 Lakh (March 31, 2022 : Nil)
88.76 -
Note 10A : Current Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities - 59.58
(Net of Advance Tax of Nil (March 31, 2022 : INR 2628.86 Lakh)
B 59.58
N H r assets
. Non - Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
rch 31, 2 Mar 2022 M h 2023 March 31 2
(Unsecured, considered qood, uniess otherwise stated)
(i) Capital Advances (Refer Note No. 36) 944,33 564,59 - -
Unsecured. considered aood 944.33 664.59 - -
(i) Balances with Government Authorities
Unsecured. considered acod
Goods and Service Tax, VAT and Custom duty recoverable - - 281.64 1.294.69
Amount Deposit Under Protest 101,17 148,03 - =
101.17 148.03 281.64 1,294.69
(iii) Others
Export incentive receivable - - 536.02 1.099.01
Prepaid expenses 1.28 5.54 232.79 54.54
Advances Recoverable in Cash or Kind - - 4.47 34.10
Advances to_suppliers.. - - 842.43 1,072.84
Other Reczivalldsing =, - - 0.02 210.44
/ ,z:b : (VNS 1.28 5.54 1,615.73 2,470.93
A\ 1,046.78 818.16 1,897.37 3,765.62




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 12 : Inventories
(valued at Lower of cost and or realisable value)

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Raw Materials (Refer note i (a) below) 7,802.43 3,555.84
Work in Progress (WIP) 3,129.18 2,096.62
Finished Goods (Refer note i (b) below) 6,431.95 6,628.69
Traded Goods - 225.47
Stores and Spares 1,725.63 1,169.18
Loose Tools - 329.01
Scrap 70.56 142.49
Total 19,159.75 14,147.30
Notes:
(i} Includes goods in transit:
(a) Raw material 531.66 -
(b) Finished goods 4,689.22 5,752.01
5,220.88 5,752.01

Note 13 : Trade receivables

As at As at
. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars
Secured ,Considered good - 385.30
Unsecured Considered good 24,101.40 18,673.61
Unsecured- Credit Impaired - -
Less: Allowance for receivables (credit impaired) = -
Total N 24,101.40 19,058.91
Notes :
(i) The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 to 75 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.

(i) Trade receivables are from related parties, there are no indicators at the period end for default in payments. Accordingly,

the Company does not anticipate risk of recovery and expected credit loss in respect thereof.

(iii) Of the trade receivables balance as at the year end, the groups' largest customers who represents more than 10% of the

total balance of trade receivables are as follows;

. As at As at
Particulars Type of Customer March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Customer A Domestic 9,659.13 5,096.07
Customer B Export 4,389.76 5,640.82

There are no other customers other than mentioned above, who represent more than 10% of the total balance of the trade
receivables.

The group's exposure to credit and current risk and losses allowance related to trade recivables are disclosed in Note 39
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14 : Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars M As at As at
arch 31,2023 = March 31,2022
Balances with banks:
- Current account 752.59 350.23
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 4,684.00
(Refer Note 'b' below)
Cash in hand 3.20 1.23
755.79 5,035.46

a) For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, the cash and cash equivalent are same given above,

b) The deposits maintained by the group with Banks comprise of the time deposits which may be withdrawn by the group at
any point of time without prior notice and are made of varying period depending upon the cash requirements of the group
and earn interest at respective deposit rate.

Note 15 : Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31. 2023  March 31, 2022
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 8,555.18 1,004.34

(Refer notes below) *

8.555.18 1.004.34

* Earmarked balances with banks is Nil (March 31, 2022: 1004.34 lakh)

‘[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 : Other Equity

e. Demerger adjustment deficit account
Balance at the beginning of financial year
Add: Effect of Business combination

As at March As at March
PARTICULARS 31st, 2023 31st, 2022
a. Securities premium:
Balance at the beginning of financial year - -
Add: Premium on issue of equity shares (refer note 41) 43,381.85 -
Add: Premium on issue of non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares 12,402.80 -
Less : Share Issue Expenses (345.07)
Balance at the end of financial year 55,439.59 -
b. Equity component of non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (refer
note below):
Balance at the beginning of financial year -
Add: issue of non-cumulative compulisorily convertible preference shares 2,097.19
Balance at the end of financial year 2,097.19 -
c. Share-based payment reserve
Balance at the beginning of financial year - -
Add: Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 1,334.99 -
Less: Adjustment with loan to ESOP Trust for 2016 ESOP Scheme - -
Less: Transfer to retained earnings (Exercise/ Lapse/ Forfeited of share options)* - -
Balance at the end of financial year 1,334.99 -
d. Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of financial year 12,215.54 2,418.18
Add: Profit for the year 4,547.99 9,772.04
Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations(net of tax) (1,013.24) 25.32
Balance at the end of financial year 15,750.29 12,215.54

(75,279.98)

(75,279.98)

Balance at the end of financial year (75,279.98) (75,279.98)
f. Equity Share pending issuance

Balance at the beginning of financial year 75,279.98 -
Add:Share Pending Issuance (refer note 41) - 75,279.98
Less: Issue of equity shares (refer note 41) (75,279.98) -
Balance at the end of financial year - 75,279.98
g. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of financial year (0.48) -
Add: Addition during the year 256.52 (0.48)
Balance at the end of financial year 256.04 (0.48)
h. Non controling Interest

Balance at the beginning of financial year

Pre acquisition reserve (370.68) -
Profit for the year / Addition during the year (1,073.30) -
Deemed Equity Contribution by Non Controlling interest 312.57 -
Balance at the end of financial year (1,131.41) -
Total other equity (a+b+c+d+e+f+g+h) {1,533.29) 12,215.06 |

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserves within equity is as follows :

1-66

Securities premium: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Share-based payments reserve: The Share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to

Retained earnings: Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Group.

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations: The Group transfers actuarial gain/ (loss) arising at the time of valuation of defined

Equity Shares Pending Issuance :

Shares pending for issuance as on March 31,2022 has been issued during the current financial year (Refer Note 41) as an effect of which
company has issued a total of 3,18,98,1247 shares and accordingly Out of total balance of INR 75,279.98 Lakhs, INR 43,381.44 Lakhs has

beer). trafsarred to Security premium and INR 31,898.12 lakhs has been transferred to Equity share Capital

OIS
,'I_"."is‘_t?:f non-cumujative compulsorily convertible preference shares :
© o Face value of
Ngme 6¥‘§ﬁ‘§1;reeﬁplde’r- 1 equity share No of share Amount in Lakh
ISa@uh Asia Growth Ini st LLC 10 2,09,08,283 2,090.83
St Asia EBT Frasy B 10 63,658 6.37
Tatdt N5 Cr [ 2,09,71,941 2,097.19

- ANV




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18A : Non Current Borrowing - At Amortised Cost

Non - Current

Current
Maturities*

Non - Current

Current
Maturities*

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Secured
(a) Term Loan from Bank
(b) External commercial Borrowing
(c) Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture

Less: Amount disclosed under other financial liabilities as
*Current Borrowings’ (refer note 18B)

*Amount disclosed under current Borrowing (Refer Note 18B)

Security

1,496.25 2,500.00 99.75 1,250.00
2,900.60 - - -
1,667.00 3,333.33 1,666.50 5,666.67
6,063.85 5,833.33 1,766.25 6,916.67
1,766.25 6,916.67
6,063.85 5,833.33 - -

(i} The term loan and ECB mentioned in (a) and (b) have been secured by first pari pasu charge on all movable fixed assets, Land and building of

Ghaziabad plant.

(i) The Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures (NCD) mentioned in (c) have been secured by a first pari passu charge (equitable mortgage) on the
Land and Building of Mangli plant held by Hero Cycles Limited and a first pari passu charge on Flat No 2A , 10th Floor Gurugram held by Hero Cycle
Limited. These non convertible debenture were transferred to the Company via demerger scheme and these NCDs are yet to be transferred in the name of

the Company. (refer note 41).

Terms of Repayment

paurity profile of secured term loans is as st out 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26|  2026-27 | Beyond 2026-27
(i) Term loan from banks are repayable in quarterly 99,75 399.00 399.00 399.00 299.25
instalments
(i} External Commercial Borrowings - 726.03 726.03 726.03 722.51
(iii) Redeemable Non convertible Debentures 1,667.00 1,667.00 - 1 b
Notes :
1. The rate of interest for term loan from bank is 1 year MCLR+ 0.2% spread.
2. The rate of interest for External commercial borrowings is 3M SOFR + 2.75% p.a.
3. The 7.5 % Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures have been issued through Beacon Trusteeship Services Limited.
Details of borrowings availed and repaid during the year :
. . e As at March
Particula
iculars Opening Adittion Repayment 31,2023
External Commercial Borrowing - 2,900.60 - 2,900.60
Non Convertible Debenture 9,000.00 - (5,667.00) 3,333.00
Term Loan 3,750.00 5,200.20 (7,354.20) 1,596.00
Note 18B : Current Borrowing - At Amortised Cost
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Secured
(a) Working Capital Demand Loan
(b) Buyer's Credit
(c) Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note 18A)
(d) Short Term borrowing (Note 4)

Security

16,202.35 11,122.00
189.76 1,132.26
1,766.25 6,916.67
78.53 -
18,236.89 19,170.93

(i) The WCDL and Buyers' Credit mentioned in (a) and (b) have been secured by first pari pasu charge on entire current assets of the company present

and future.

Notes :

1. The rate of interest for WCDL ranges from 6.25% - 8.50 %

2. The rate of interest for Buyer's Credit is 1M SOFR+ 0.90% -1.15% p.a.
3. Refer Note No. 18A for the terms and conditions, nature of security and maturity profile of the current maturities of long-term borrowings (forming part

of long term borrowings of the Company).

4. The bank overdraft is secured via a fixed and floating charge over all assets of the Company. All obligations held under finance leases are secured

against the assets in which they relate to.




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 19 : Other financial liabilities

Non - Current Current
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Security deposit 413.40 385.30 - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 361.36 470.66
Leave Encashment Payable - - - 14.49
Employee related payable - - 28.52 -
Creditors for capital goods - - 331.44 267.09
Payable to Related parties - - 1,765.37 2,958.97
Bonus / Leave Encashment / Leave Travel Allowance - 214.01 -
Forward contract payable - 19.98 -
413.40 385.30 2,720.68 3,711.21

Notes:

@) The group's exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in note 39.
Note 20 : Other liabilities

Non- Current

Current

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Deferred Government Grant - 13.11 - 0.97
Advance from customer - - 1,236.76 430.70
Statutory dues - - 235.61 157.78
- 13.11 1,472.37 589.45

Note 21 : Provisions

Non - Current

Current

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 35) 243.31 101.18 173.88 13.17
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 35) 6,536.82 679.45 135.29 181.93
6,780.13 780.63 309.17 195.10

[This space has been left blank intentionally]




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 22 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities 1,290.82 1,221.45
Deferred Tax Assets 928.28 93.37
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 362.54 1,128.08
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities relates to followings:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Payment of leave Encashment

Deferred tax Assets relates to followings:
Employee benefit

Debentures

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings
Carry forward Loss (of subsidiary HYDPL & HESPL)
Preliminary Expenses

Forward Contract

Employee Stock option Plan

Right of use asset

Deferred tax Liabilities (net)

Note 22(A) : Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss

1287.18 1193.74
3.65 27.71
1,290.82 1,221.45
500.95 48.18
0.00 7.43
0.00 37.75
32.85
0.53
5.03
335.99
52.93
928.28 93.37
362.54 1128.08

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Current tax expense:
Current vear

Prior year tax adijustment
Total current tax (A)

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities):

Current year origination and reversals of temporary difference
Prior year tax adjustment

Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (B)

Total tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

1,874.71 2,688.43
(137.58)

1737.13 2688.43
(366.03) 1,119.56
(237.49)

(603.52) 1,119.56

1133.61 3807.99

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Income tax impact on Remeasurement of defined benefits
Total Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(162.02)

8.52

(162.02)

8.52

Note 22(B) : Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in the Statement of

profit and loss is as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Profit before tax
Applicable income tax rate
Expected Income tax expenses

Adijustments:

Corporate Social Responsibility

Expenditure to increase autharized share capital
Deffered Tax adiustment related prior years
Other

Income tax related to prior year

Related to associate

Related to subsidiary

Impact of Business Combination

Due to Capital gain Charqged at different rate
Reported Income tax expenses

5670.96 13580.03
25.17% 25.17%
1427.27 3417.82
10.57 -
0.00 -
(237.49) -
9.35 -
(137.58) -
40.92 -
20.57 -

- 332.54

= 53.80
1133.61 3804.16
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24 : Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Sale of product
Sale of Service

Other Operating Revenues

- Scrap Sales

- Export Incentive

- Amortisation of Capital Subsidy

a) Performance obligation
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of products.

1,02,295.39 88,252.12
1,083.37 448.78
1,03,378.76 88,700.90
1,366.30 1,225.42
449.48 471.07

- 0.49
1,05,194.54 90,397.88

During the year, the group has not entered into long term contracts with customers and accordingly disclosure of unsatisfied or
remaining performance obligation (which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations,
adjustment for revenue that has not been materialized, tax laws etc.) is not applicable to the group.

b) Disaggregation of revenue: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of
geographical spread of the operations of the company. The company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,
amount of revenues and cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors:

Revenue based on Geography

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

India
Outside India

Revenue from operations

Revenue based on Customer-wise

Related Party
Non- Related Party

Revenue from operations

c) Reconciliation of revenue from operations with contracted

price

Contracted Price
Less:

Sales Returns
Rebate and Discount

Note 25 : Other income

65,747.88 63,163.98
39,446.66 27,233.90
1,05,194.54 90,397.88

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

11,975.73 15,982.52
93,218.81 74,415.36
1,05,194.54 90,397.88

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1,05,194.54

90,397.88

1,05,194.54

90,397.88

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest Income
- On bank deposits
- Interest received on Trade Investment
-Others(ICL & Security)
Other non-operating income:
Rental income
Profit on sale of fixed assets
MTM on Forward Contract
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain(net)
Excess Provision/ Liabilities Written Back
Other Non Operating Income (refer note below)
Y '-ag’kms @
o
NP@: Chartered | 2=
Profit| on sake of dnyvestment
Misg:lncome others’
Othe_"f-_dﬂon.oplgi"at'ing Income

279.80 96.46
151.79 33.64
249,92 -
6.06 6.41
9.56 0.17
16.08 110.11
644.36 389.53
1.94 0.37
136.02 -
1,495.53 636.69
127.48 -
8.54 -
136.02 -




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 26 : Cost of raw material consumed

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Raw Material
Balance at the beginning of the Year
Add:- Purchases during the year

Less:- Balance at the end of the Year

Cost of material consumed

Note 27 : Purchase of stock in trade

3,555.84 2,600.57
72,522.48 52,999.68
76,078.32 55,600.25

4,215.51 3,555.84

71,862.81 52,044.41

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Purchases during the vear

Note 28 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in
proaress and stock in trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Finished goods in transits

Scrap Stock

Stock in trade

Inventories at the end of the vear
Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Finished goods in transits

Scrap Stock

Stock in trade

(Increase) / decrease in inventory (A-B)

Note 29 : Employee benefits expense

(A)

(B)

402.83

13,236.88

402.83

13,236.88

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

2,096.62 3,025.55
876.67 689.64
5,710.86 2,425.74
142.50 79.14
225.47 133.53
9,052.12 6,353.60
3,129.18 2,096.62
1,741.84 876.67
4,689.23 5,710.86
70.56 142.50
- 225.47
9,630.81 9,052.12
(578.69) (2,698.52)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Salaries, wages & bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund (Refer note 35)
Gratuity expense (Refer note 35)

Compensated absences

Staff welfare expenses

Share based payment expenses (Refer Note No.29A )

Note 30 : Finance costs

6,419.59 4,442.90
515.43 369.46
169.31 156.15
222.62 49,78
456,87 461.54

1,334.99
9,118.81 5,479.83

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

Interest expense on
-term loans & working capital facilities
-redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
-external commercial borrowings
-delaved payment of statutory dues
Other borrowing cost
- Reverse discount
- Buyer credit
- Sales bill discounting
- Others
Interest on lease liability

Note 31 : Depreciation and amortisation expense

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,480.13 595.18

343.79 706.17
17.38 -

- 0.30
177.61 -
47.58 -
304.65 -

91.90 131.11
97.03 -

2,560.07 1,432.76

Particulars —

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Depreciatiaon.of ﬁﬁp?ﬁipiant and equipment (Refer note 4)
Amortisdtion of intangible assets (Refer note 6)
Amortlsatjgn otEnghtwlf Use dssets (Refer Note 4A)

untdn's (,,

1,592.92 1,573.64

50.14 16.62
113.27

1,756.33 1,590.26




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note No : 29A Employee Stock option plan
Details of Stock Option Scheme

ESOP 2022
Particulars Optllo:sv\alue Date of Grant Number of option Granted
Tranche-1 60.93 December 02, 2022 95,15,278
Tranche-2 27.44 December 30, 2022 49,43,511
Tranche-3 29.97 December 30, 2022 39,54,809
Tranche-4 32.34 March 01, 2023 11,54,196
Date of Board approval of the relevant scheme December 02, 2022
Date of Shareholder's approval of the relevant scheme December 02, 2022
Date of last modification by shareholders NA
Method of settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity
Vesting Period Minimum of 1 Year and maximum of 8 year from grant date

Exercise period 10 years from the vesting date

The options are granted to eligible employees at the latest available closing price of the shares of the parent company prior to

Exerclse price the grant date as per the valuation report obtained by the parent company.

Vesting of options is a function of achievement of performance criteria or any other criteria as specified by the parent company

Vesting Condition in the grant letter ,further the vesting takes place on staggered basis over the respective vesting period.

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expenses arising from equity - settled share based payment transactions (Refer

1,334.99 -
Note 29)
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions recognized 1.334.99 _
in statement of profit and loss 4 )

Notes:

o The parent company has given stock options to certain employees and has considered the related compensation cost to recognize in the statement of
profit and loss ,over the vesting period

The details of activity under the ESOP Plans have been summarized below :

ESOP 2022
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Weighted : .
N:n:?:;sof Average Exercise Number of options :\:‘cie‘l:zhtle’:!Rl;verage Exercise
P Price (INR) (

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - -

Granted during the year 1,95,67,794 44.53 -
Forfeited during the year - - -
Exercised during the year - - -
Expired during the year - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1,95,67,794 44,53 -
Exercisable at the end of the year -

Remaining average contractual life (in 3.07
years) . -

Fair value of options granted

The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year pertaining to ESOP 2022 plan is INR 44.53 The fair value at grant date is
determined using the using the Black- Scholes model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date

and expected expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The
following tables list the inputs used for fair valuation of options for the ESOP plans

For option granted during For option granted during the

Particulars ;hlezyge;; as on March year as on March 31,2022
e ']
S eking ESOP 2022 Plan ESOF 2022 Plan
Dividend.yield Y 0.36% -
Expetig volatality | g || 39.02%-39.98% -
Risk free | E%rc‘élsrt; e = 6.87%-7.08% -
Expected:life of share oftion

: 4 to 6.4 years -
Share‘-pi'ic? at grant-~, "/ 69.14




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
{Amount in ¥ lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 : Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022

Rent 151.45 40.28
Contract Labour Charges 3,122.30 2,995.45
Power & Fuel 2,514.11 2,149.42
Consumption of Stores & Spare 2,519.27 2,474.40
Packing Material Consumed 2,440.88 2,212.91
Security Charges 176.73 120.89
Repair & maintenance

- Plant & machinery 603.75 757.12

- Buildings 65.16 97.25

-Others 22.84 18.10
Legal & professional expenses 581.62 232.37
Payment to the auditors (refer note 'a' below) 35.81 15.50
Freight & Forward Charges 1,558.35 1,179.57
Other selling expenses 256.42 180.10
Rates & taxes 90.02 42.04
Travelling & Conveyance 294.70 86.00
Insurance Expenses 206.82 90.23
Bank Charges 95.55 26.62
Loss on sale/write off of PPE 27.45 1.64
Mark to Market Loss on Forward Contract 19.98 -
Corporate Social Responsibilities (refer note 32A) 42.00
Miscellaneous expenses 909.25 223.09
Total 15,734.47 12,942.97
a) Details of payment made to auditors is as For the year ended For the year ended

follows:

Payment to Auditor

- Statutory audit fee

- Tax audit fee

- Other Services and Certification

Note 33 : Exceptional Items

Profit on sale of land
Loss on Demolition of Building

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

28.31 10.50
2.50 2.50
5.00 2.50
35.81 15.50

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

6,712.87
(138.82)

6,574.05




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
Note 32A : Corporate Social responsibility expenditure

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Gross amount required to be spent by the parent company during the
year

Amount spent during the year on :

- National Apprenticeship Promotion Scheme

- Other

Unspent amount at the end of the year

Amount spent during current year pertaining to previous years
Total of previous year unspent balance

Reason for unspent balances :

- For Current Year

- For previous Year

Nature of CSR activities

Details of related party transaction to CSR expenditure as per relevant
Accounting Standard :

Movement in the CSR provision during the year :
QOpening Provision

Provision made during the year

spent during the year

Provision at the end of the year

42.00

11.42
2.00

28.58

As the project are ongoing
project, the spending is
distributed beyond 2022-23

Nil
Skill Development and
Entrepreneurship
Nil
42,00
13.42
28.58

Nil

Nil

Total unspent amount of INR 28.58 lakhs as on March 31,2013 has been deposited in Prime Minister relief Fund in 6 monthe period

from the end of financial year,




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
{Amount in Z lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 : Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders (A)
Number equity shares for Basic EPS (B)

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (C)
Nominal value of Equity shares INR
Basic Earning per share (A/C) (INR)

Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of Pending Issuance

Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of Pending Employee
Stock option Scheme

Weighted average number of Equity shares (including dilutive shares) outstanding for
Dilutive EPS (D)

Nominal value of Equity shares (INR)

Diluted earnings per share (A/D) (INR)

4,537.35
35,35,78,380.00

12,46,11,019.00
10.00
3.64

52,86,078.00
26,53,551.51
13,25,50,648.51

10.00
3.42

9,772.04
3,45,97,133.00

3,45,97,133.00
10.00
28.25

31,89,82,976.00
35,35,80,109.00

10.00
2.76
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35A : Subsidiary Companies’ i.e. HYDPL Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Gratuity

The Subsidiary has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure

at 15 davs salarv (last drawn salary) for each completed vears of service. The scheme is unfunded.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and amount recognized in

the Other Comprehensive Income in relation to re-measurement gain or loss.

Statement of Profit and Loss
Net employee benefit expenses recognized in the employee cost

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Current Service Cost

3.13
Net Interest Expense -
Past Service Cost -
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 3.13

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset/Liability

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Plan Liability

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation
Current Service Cost

3.13
Interest Cost B
Past Service Cost -
Benefits Paid -
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation -
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 3.13

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Discount Rate

7.26%
Increase in Compensation Cost 5.00%
Gratuity Plan
Particulars March 31,2023

Assumptions

Discount rate

Sensitivity level
Impact on defined benefit obligation

0.50% increase

0.50% decrease

Gratuity Plan
Particulars March 31,2023
Assumptions Discount rate

Sensitivity level
Impact on defined benefit obligation

0.50% increase

0.50% decrease

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of

reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
Demographic Assumption

Particulars

March 31,2023

i} Retirement Age (Years)
i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability

iii) Attrition at Ages

Up to 30 Years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Gratuity

58

100% of IALM (2012 - 14)

Withdrawal
Rate (%)
3

2
1

Particulars

March 31,2023

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

24.34
Between 2 and 5 years 34.11
Between 5 and 6 years e 0.09
Beyond 6 years 2 <\ 2.30
Total 7 NO [FE 60.84
o @
Leave Encashment 'I%| Charteregd |®

Net employee benefit expénses.recagnized-in the employee cost

Particulars

March 31,2023

e 1
Current Service Cost W \1\4 S
Net Interest Expense SO /g\

6.87



Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in ¥ lakh. unless otherwise stated)

Note 35A : Subsidiary Companies® i.e. HYDPL Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 6.87

Balance Sheet

Benefit Asset/Liability

Particulars March 31,2023
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation -
Plan Liability

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2023
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation -
Current Service Cost 6.87

Interest Cost
Benefits Paid
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 6.87
The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31,2023
Discount Rate 7.26%
Increase in Compensation Cost 5.00%

Leave Encashment Plan
Particulars March 31,2023

Assumptions

Discount rate

Sensitivity level

Impact on defined benefit obligation

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
Demographic Assumption

Particulars March 31,2023
1) Retirement Age (Years)

i) Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability

58
100 % of IALM (2006 -

08) hd
" Withdrawal
iii) Ages Rate (%)
Up to 30 Years 3
From 31 to 44 years 2
Above 44 years 1
Iv) Leave
Leave Availment Rate 5
Leave Lapse rate while in service Nil
Leave Lapse rate on exit Nil
Leave encashment Rate while in 5
service
Note :

Since, this is the first year of Subsidiary preparing financia! statement therefore no comparative figures have been provided of previous year 2021-
22




Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in T lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35B : Subsidiary Companies' i.e.HEL Pension and other post-employmen

The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme in the UK funded by employer's contributions with assets held in a separate trustee
administered fund. A full actuarial valuation was carried out at May 1,2009 and updated annually since 2015 by a qualified actuary, independent of
the scheme's sponsoring employer. The scheme was closed on May 31,2011 and the employer continues to make deficit funding contributions to the

scheme
Reconciliation of present value of plan liabilities:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

At the beginning of the period/year 20,693.40
Interest cost 510.27
Actuarial gains 5.08
Benefits paid (692.22)
At the end of the period/year 20,516.53

Reconciliation of present value of plan assets :

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023
At the beginning of the period/year 17,029.01
Interest income on plan assets 421.84
Return on assets less interest income (1,655.84)
Contributions by employer 304.94
Benefits paid (692.22)
At the end of the period/year 15,407.73

Particulars

For the year ended

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of plan liabilities
Net pension scheme liability

15,407.73
(20,516.53)
(5,108.80)

None of the fair values of the scheme's assets includes any of the Company's own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets

used by, the Company.

The Company expects to contribute INR 223.62 lakh (August 31, 2022 - INR 536.69 lakh ) to its defined benefit pension scheme during the period

ending March 31, 2023.
The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income are as follows

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Net interest cost

88.43

Analysis of actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive Income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Actual return less interest income (1,655.84)
Actuarial gains/(losses (5.08)
Total amount charged to other comprehensive income (1,660.92)

Composition of plan assets

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Liability driven investment funds

4,669.69
Cash 594.64
Global equity 1,343.78
Diversified growth fund units 4,683.92
Annuity policies 4,115.71
Total 15,407.73

Principal actuarial assumptions used at the Statement of financial position date

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

%

Discount rates at start of period/year 4.30
Discount rate at end of period/year 4.60
Inflation - RPI 3.30
Inflation - CPI 2.50
Pension increases in deferment (Non GMP) 2.50
Pension increases in payment (RPI, max 5%) 3.20
Pension increases in payment (RPI, max 2.5%) 2.30
Pension increases in payment (RPI, max 3%) 2.60
Pension increases in payment (RPI, max 3%,max 5%) 3.60
Mortality rates Number
- for a male aged 65 now 86.60
- at 65 for a male member aged 45 now 89.00
- for a female aged 65 now 87.30
- at 65 for a female member aged 45 now 89.90

o oeking T
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Note 36 : Contingent liabilities and commitments

a)
1

I

III

v

b)

Contingent liabilities (To the extent not provided for)

The Parent Company has reviewed all its pending claims, litigations and other proceedings and has adequately provided for wherever

As At As At
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Parent Company :
- Sales tax demand 27.64 27.63
Amount deposit under protest 8.08 Lakh (March 31, 2022: 10.06 lakh). The case is
pending before Hon'ble Supreme Court of India.
- Legal Cases of labour pending before Labour Court 44.08 41.59

Several Legal Cases of iabour pending at labour Court, Civil Court and High Court. The Parent Company has assessed and believe that
none of these cases, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any material adverse effect on its consclidated financial
statements. However, Since it is difficult for the Parent Company to estimate the timings of the cash outflows, if any, no further provision
or separate disclosure is made in books of account.

During the year 2022-23, Parent Company imported goods worth INR 2,233.63 lakh on which parent company saved the duty amounting
INR 410.94 lakh on EPCG Licences for which company has to fulfil export obligation amounting INR 1,637.02 lakh.

During the year 2022-23, Parent Company imported goods worth INR 1,443.12 lakh on which company saved the duty amounting INR
418.88 lakh on advance licences. The remaining export obligation is INR 2.56 lakh.

A Vendor - Sadhu Forging Limited, has filed suit claiming INR 39.29 lakh as balance payment against supply of material. The Parent

company has resisted the claim on the basis that the material supplied was faulty by the vendor, material was rejected by the parent
company & Debit Note raised to the Vendor.
The case is pending with Civil Court, Faridabad

The excise department issued a show cause notice (SCN) to demand duty of INR 474.82 lakh long with interest and penalties. Vide final
order dated Septemebr 05,2017 the CESTAT set aside the SCN and dropped the demand.

The Department filed Civil Appeal Diary No. 42952/2019 which is pending consideration before the Supreme Court impugning the final
order passed by CESTAT.

X As At As At
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Subsidiary Company :
Hewland Engineering Limited
H M Customs and Excise Duty Deferment Bond 0.52 -
Commitments
Parent Company :
Particulars As At As At

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Capital Commitment: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on the 190.34 1,413.36
capital account (net of capital advances of INR 604.34 lakh (March 31, 2022 : INR
664.59 lakh)
Subsidiary Company
Particulars As At As At

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited 186.01 -

Hewland Engineering Limited

The Group does not have any other long term commitments or material non cancellable contractual commitments, which may have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statement.
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Note 37 : Related party transactions

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

List of related parties Parent Company

Nature of Relationship

Name of the Related Party

Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise
Significant influence

Bhagyoday Investments Private Limited

Firefox Bikes Private Limited

Hero Cycles Group Private Limited
Hero Cycles Limited

Hero E-Cycles Private Limited

Hero PBG Cycles Private Limited

Hero Transmission Private Limited
High Rise Industries

Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited
Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited
Munjal Sales Corporation

Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limited
OMA Living Private Limited

Spur Technologies Private Limited

ZF Hero Chassis Systems Private Limited

List of related parties of subsidiary company i.e. HEL

Nature of Relationship

Name of the Related Party

Enterprise over which Key Managerial Personnel exercise
Significant influence

Hewland Engineering Limited 1972 Pension and Life Assurance Scheme

Hero International B.V

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & their relative of Parent compnay

Mr. Pankaj Munjal Director
Mr. Amit Gupta Managing Director & Appointment-September
CEO 09,2022

M

5

. Abhishek Munjal

Whole-time Director

(Relative of Pankaj
Munjal)

Change in designation-
September 09,2022

Mr. Keshav Misra

Director

Appointment-September

Mr. Sridhar Narayan Nominee Director Appointment-January
04,2023
Mr. Kulbir Singh Independent Director Appointment-February

01,2023

Ms. Pratibha Goyal

Independent Director

Mr. Pawan Puri

Director

Cessation-March 01,2023

Mr. Darpan Vashishtha

Chief Financial Officer

Appointment-May

Ms. Sheeba Dhamija

Company Secretary

Apoointment-May
01,2022

Ms. Prerna Joshi

Company Secretary

Cessation-May 02,2022

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & their relative of subsidiary company HEL

|A Gupta Director
W Hewland Director
A Morley Director
CS Mittal Director
A Munjal N Director

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & their relative of subsidiary company HYDPL

Mr. Amit Gupta

(Non-Executive & Non-Independent Directors)

Mr. Abhishek Munjal

(Non-Executive & Non-Independent Directors)

Mr._Anil Rathi

(Non-Executive & Non-Independent Directors)

Mr. Neera] Saxena

Chief Finance Officer

Ms. Prerna Joshi

Company Secretary

Mr. John Claribel

Manger

Cessation: June 30, 2023

Mr. Amardip Kumar

Manger

Appointment: July 12,
2023
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f) _Transactions with related parties of Parent Company
. . Year Ended Year Ended
S.No |Particulars Relation March 312023 March 31, 2022
a. |Sale of goods
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 1,298.23 1,709.24
Bsh Ventures Private Limited Significant Infiuence - 45.76
Lectro E-Mability Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.47
Hero Cycles Limited* Significant Influence 9,496.48 14,082.92
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Infiluence 977.79 127.48
High Rise Industries Sianificant Influence - 16.65
b. Purchase of goods
Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited Significant Influence 2,612.54 2,188.50
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 0.28 (2.12)
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Influence 1.14 -
High Rise Industries* Significant Influence 1,054.45 371.70
Hero Cycles Limited* Significant Influence 11,022.45 13,174.22
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence 7.20 -
Oma Living Private Limited Significant Influence 3.53 -
C. Consultancy Fees
Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Ltd Significant Influence 259.06 -
d. |Purchase of Assets
Hero Cycles Limited* Significant Influence 187.69 -
e. Loan Granted
Spur Technologies Private Limited Sianificant Influence 250.00 -
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.40
f. Interest Income on loan
Spur Technologies Private Limited Sianificant Influence 11.28 -
g. |Other Expense
Hero Global Designs Limited Significant Influence 0.24 0.81
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 10.18 106.39
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence 0.38 -
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Influence 9.90 -
Hero Cycles Limited* Siagnificant Influence 731.89 300.15
Munial Sales Corporation Siagnificant Influence 0.10 -
High Rise Industries Significant Influence - 0.01
Transmission Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.12
h. |Rent Received
Spur Technologies Private Limited Siagnificant Influence 0.40 1.20
Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited Significant Influence - 0.40
i Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel*
Amit Gupta Managing Director and 240.00 242.00
CEOQ
Darpan Vashishtha CFO 160.00 -
Abhishek Munial Whole Time Director 335.05 -
Prerna Joshi Company Secretary - 2.42
Rohit Maheshwari Key Financial officer - 6.00
Sheeba Dhamiia Company Secretary 18.72 -
j- |Directors sitting Fees:
Pratibha Goval Independent Director 0.54 0.90
Pawan Puri Director 0.90 0.90
g) |Related Party Transactions of HEL
a. |Lease Rental
W Hewland (6-year agreement for total contract value of Director 1,854.29 -
INR 1854.29
b. Purchase of Goods & Rendering of Services
Hewland Engineering Limited 1972 Pension and Life Significant Influence 394.00 -
Assurance Scheme
h. _|Related Party Transactions for HYDPL
a. Purchase of Goods & Rendering of Services
Hero Lectro(A div of hero cycles limited) Significant Influence 4.96
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Significant Influence 3.88
b. |Other Expense ——
Hero Lectr._a{A chivi af,-he__r-_'c:- cycles limited) Significant Influence 2.07
Spur Techolagies Private Limited Significant Influence 0.06
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i) Closing Balances Parent Company
. . Year Ended Year Ended
S.No |Particulars Relation March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivable
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 281.00 -
Hero E-Cycles Private Limited Sianificant Influence 832.00 -
Trade Payable
Hero Cycles Limited Siagnificant Influence 1,765.00 3,002.51
Munial Kiriu Industries Private Limited Significant Influence 972.23 -
Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limited Significant Influence 27.54 -
Zf Hero Chassis Systems Private Limited Significant Influence 5.51 -
High Rise Industries Significant Influence 153.52 -
Loan Receivables
Spur Technologies Private Limited Significant Influence 250.00 -
i} |Closing Balances Subsidiary Company
For HYM Drive System Private Limited
Trade Payable
Total Pavable Significant Influence 8.07 -
For Hewland Engineering Limited
Trade receivable
W Hewland Director 35.84
Loan
W Hewland Director 253.12
Hero International B.V Sianificant Influence 1,387.49
Note a) Refer Note 16 , for movement of shareholding pattern from erstwhile shareholders to new shareholders.
b)* These are the transactions/ balances taken from entries parked in the books of Hero Motors Limited.
¢} The status of stock options pending vesting/exercise, granted to Key Management Personnels are as below:
Name of Key Management Personnel Amit Gupta Mr. Keshav Misra
ESOP scheme ESOP 2022 ESOP 2022
ESOP Tranche Tranche-1 Tranche-2 Tranche-1
Exercise price (INR per option) 10 69.1 69.1
Share options outstanding as at March 31, 2023 {In Nos) 95,15,278 49,43,511 39,54,809
Share options outstanding as at March 31, 2022* (In Nos) - -
k) Ultimate Beneficiary
(i) The Parent Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent
Company (uitimate beneficiaries)
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries
(ii) The Parent Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding parties) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Parent Company shall

(@) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding

parties (ultimate beneficiaries), or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
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Note 38 : Fair value measurements

I Financial instruments

a) Financial instruments by category
Except Investment in equity instruments (Quoted) and investment in mutual funds which are measured at fair value through profit or loss, all other financial assets and
liabilities viz. trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, interest receivable, other receivables, trade payables, employee
related liabilities and borrowings, are measured at amortised cost.

b) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the consolidated financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.
An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financials liabilities, including their levels of in the fair value hierarchy:
As at March 31, 2023

As at As at

Rarticulars Level March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in Debentures Level 1 - 2,446.52
Investment in Mutual Funds Level 1 1,530.27 -
Forward Contract Receivable Level 1 - 110.11
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other comprehensive income
Other investment Level 3 113.40 -
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity shares (Unquoted) Level 3 - -
Loan to employees Level 3 35.89 17.64
Loan to related parties Level 3 250.00 579.20
Security Deposits Level 3 1,148.33 261.32
Interest accrued but not due on margin money Level 3 140.00 13.33
Interest accrued but not due on loan to related parties Level 3 - 18.04
Interest accrued and due on Deposit with UPSEB level 3 2.42 19.66
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months Level 3 - 1,004.34
Other Receivable Level 3 2,072.51 2,172.30
Trade receivables Level 3 24,101.40 19,134.30
Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 9,310.97 5,012.09
Other bank balances Level 3 - -
Receivables from related party Level 3 1,128.43 -
Total Financial Assets 39,833.63 30,788.85
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Forward contract payable Level 1 19,98 -
Financial liabilities valued at amortized cost
Borrowings Level 3 24,300.74 25,004.26
Security Deposits Level 3 413.40 385.30
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings Level 3 361.36 470.66
Trade payables Level 3 23,548.38 19,769.12
Employee Benefit Payable Level 3 242.53 14.49
Payable to Related parties Level 3 1,765.37 2,958.97
Creditors for capital goods Level 3 331.44 267.09
Total Financial Liabilities 50,983.19 48,869.88

c) Capital management

The group’s capital management objectives are:

(a) to ensure the group’s ability to continue as a going concern

(b} to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.

For the purpose of Group's capital management, capital includes equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the group and other equity reserves. The primary
objective of the group capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize sharehoiders value.

- For the year ended For the year ended
Earticulsrs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Equity Share Capital 35,357.84 3,459.71
Free Reserve(i.e. retained earnings,security premium,demerger adjustment deficit account) (1,736.87) 12,215.06
Reserve to Share Capital (in no. of times) (0.05) 3.53

Gearing Ratio

The Group has outstanding long term debt of INR 6,063.85 lakh at the end of reporting period (previous year INR 5,833.33 lakh) and short term debt of INR 18,158.36
Lakh at the end of reporting period (previous year INR 19,170.93 lakh). Accordingly, the gearing ratio is worked out as follows:

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
1 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Long term Borrowing (Refer Note 18A) 6,063.85 5,833.33
Short Term Borrowing (Refer Note 18B) 18,236.89 19,170.93
Total Debt - 24,300.74 25,004.26
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalent 9,310.97 5,035.46
NetDebt ,5"°!Ng ¢ 14,989.77 19,968.80
Total Equily 35,562.32 15,690.48
Net D&h&,tn 42.15% 127.27%
IE S )
o
®
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Note 39 : Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables, borrowings, current maturity of borrowings, interest accrued and
capital creditors. The main purpose of these financial liabilities Is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its
operations. The Groups' principal financial assets includes Investment in mutual funds, loans to related parties, security deposits, trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with bank, interest accrued in deposits, receivables from related and other parties and interest

accrued thereon.

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk,
- liquidity risk and
- market risk.

The Group's senior level management oversees the management of these risks and is supported by finance department that advises on the

appropriate financial risk governance framework.
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in finance loss to the Group. Credit risk arise from
Cash and cash equivalents, deposit with banks, trade receivables and other financial assets measure at amortised cost. The Group continuously

monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporate

this information into its credit risk control.

The Parent Company also uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss in Trade Receivables and makes an allowance of

doubtful trade receivables using this model.

B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses.
The Group's objective is to, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its
liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an
optimised cost.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’'s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Borrowings 18,236.89 6,063.85 - 24,300.74
Trade payables 23,548.38 - - 23,548.38
Other financial liabilities 2,720.67 413.40 - 3,134.07
Total 44,505.94 6,477.25 - 50,983.19

As at March 31, 2022 Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Borrowings 19,170.93 5,833.33 - 25,004.26
Trade payables 19,769.12 - 19,769.12
Other financial liabilities 3,711.21 385.30 - 4,096.51
Total 42,651.26 6,218.63 - 48,869.89

c. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commeodity risk.

i) Inter I risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The Group manages its net exposure to interest rate risk related to borrowings, by balancing a proportion of fixed rate

and floating rate borrowing in its total borrowing portfolio.

Interest Rate Sensitivity: The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all
other variables held constant, the Parent Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars

Increase or|Decrease /
decrease In basis|(increase) in profit

points before tax
March 31, 2023 +50 12.73
-50 (12.73)
March 31, 2022 +50 107.76
-50 (107.76)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivit
showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

y analysis is based on the currently observable

market environment,
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iM)

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

The carrying amount of the Company's unhedged foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
neriod are as follows:

Particulars Cu::::yMarCh = 20IZNBR Foreign currency
-Trade payables
-Trade payables EUR -132.67 0.51
-Trade payables GBP - -
-Trade payables JPY - -
-Trade payables SGD -0.64 -0.01
-Trade payables usb -3684.60 40.89
-Advance To Vendor
-Advance to vendor EUR 87.07 0.97
-Advance to vendor JPY 2.73 4.41
-Advance to vendor usb 162.31 1.98
-Trade Recivables
-Trade Recivables EUR 708.04 8.04
-Trade Recivables UsD 6,377.42 77.41
-Trade Recivables GBP - -
-Advance from Customer
-Advance from Customer EURO -96.51 -1.08
-Advance from Customer uso -287.96 -3.50

Note: External commercial borrowing is not prone to foreign exchange sensitivity risk as the same has been hedged.

-Bank

-Bank usb 0.00 0.00
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on certain transactions that are denominated in a currency other than entity's functional
currency, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The risk is that the functional currency value of cash flows will vary as a result of
movements in exchange rates. The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity (strengthening or weakening of Indian Rupee) to a reasonably
possible change in exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.
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USD sensitivity
INR/USD - increase by 5 %
INR/USD - decrease by 5 %

EURO sensitivity
INR/EURO - increase by 5 %
INR/EURO - decrease by 5 %

GBP sensitivity
INR/GBP - increase by 5 %
INR/GBP - decrease by 5 %

SGD sensitivity
INR/SGD - increase by 5 %
INR/SGD - decrease by 5 %

JPY sensitivity
INR/JPY - increase by S %
INR/JPY - decrease by 5 %

Impact on Profit before tax
YEar enuea Y

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

In;_l:act on total equity
RS AS dL

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(319.80) 480.17
319.80 (480.17)

(319.80) 480.17
319.80 -480.17

Impact on Profit before tax

Impact on total equity

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

-33.39 31.23
33.39 -31.23

-33.39 31.23
33.39 -31.23

Impact on Profit before tax

Impact on total equity

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(1.63) (1.61)
1.63 1.61

(1.63) (1.61)
1.63 1.61

Impact on Profit before tax

Impact on total equity

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

0.03 _ 0.03 0
(0.03) _ -0.03 0
Impact on Profit before tax Impact on total equity
Year ended Year ended As at As at
March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.14 -0.02 0.14 -0.02
(0.14) 0.03 -0.14 0.02

Note: External commercial borrowing is not prone to foreign exchange sensitivity risk as the same has been hedged.
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Note 40: Segment Reporting

The primary reparting of the Group has been performed on the basis of business segment. The Group is organised into key business segments - Power Train & Alloy &
Metallics . Segments have been identified and reported based on the nature of the products, the risks and returns, the organisation structure and the internal financial

reporting systems.

The following is the segment information for :

Year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Power Train Alloy & Metallics Unallocable Total

Revenue - External customers 46,019.01 59,175.53 = 1,05,194.54

Other Income 609.24 21.10 = 630.34

Unallocable income - - 865.19 865.19

Total revenue 46,628.25 59,196.63 865.19 1,06,690.07

Expenses (40,283.05) (55,891.37) = (96,174.42)
Unallocable expenses - - (2,284.62) (2,284.62)
Unallocable Interest expense - - (2,560.07) (2,560.07)
Segment profit befor tax 6,345.20 3,305.26 865.19 5,670.96

Current tax expenses - - 1,737.13 1,737.13

Deferred tax expenses - - (603.52) (603.52)
Segment profit after tax 6,345.20 3,305.26 (268.42) 4,537.35

Total assets 46,357.69 27,424.37 21,179.67 94,961.73

Total liabilities 15,117.34 16,256.27 29,763.56 61,137.17

Year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Power Train Alloy & Metallics Unallocable Total

Revenue - External customers 32,760.21 57,632.31 5.36 90,397.88

Other Income 499.63 - - 499.63

Unallocable income* - - 6,711.10 6,711.10

Total revenue 33,259.84 57,632.31 6,716.46 97,608.61

Expenses (28,868.68) (53,725.73) (82,594.41)
Unallocable expenses (1.18) (1.18)
Unallocable Interest expense - - (1,432.76) (1,432.76)
Segment profit befor tax 4,391.16 3,906.58 6,716.46 13,580.03

(a) Current tax - - 2,688.43 2,688.43

(b) Deferred tax - - 1,119.56 1,119.56

Segment profit after tax 4,391.16 3,906.58 2,908.47 9,772.04

Total assets 27,743.97 20,382.80 19,183.87 67,310.64

Total liabilities 2,366.22 15,504.69 33,764.93 51,635.84

* Other Income includes profit from sale of land INR 6,574.05 lakh

Geographical information

Secondary segment reporting is performed on the basis of geographical location of customers. The operations of the Group are 63% in India, with exports contributing
to approximately 37% (Previous Year 30%) of its annual sales. The management views the Indian market and export market as distinct geographical segments.

Revenue from external customers (Refer note 24)

Non-current operating assets: (Rs in Lakh)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
India 24,438.16 17,407.77
Qutside India 7.700.03 1,032.20
Total 32,138.19 18.439.97

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Assets, CWIP and Intangible assets.

Segment revenue and profit

The expenses that are not directly attributable to the business segments are shown as unallowable expenses.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of debtors, inventories, advances and Property Plant and Equipment's, Assets at
the unallowable level including cash and bank balances , investment and tax assets are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis and thus the same have not

been allocated.

Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabilities.

The Group does not have revenues from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the total revenue.
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Note 41 : Scheme of Arrangement

The Board of Director of Hero Cycle Limited (HCL) ("Transferor Company”) as its meeting held on August 27, 2021 has
approved a scheme and subsequently filed with National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for demerger of Auto business of HCL
into Parent Company (Hero Motors Limited) ("resulting Company").

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November 09, 2022 for which
the certified copy of the order dated November 09, 2022 was received on November 16, 2022, and it was submitted to
Registrar of Company on November 30, 2022 the Demerged Undertaking (Primarily related to Auto Business consisting, inter-
alia, of all assets including movable and immovable properties and liabilities related thereto) was demerged from the Demerged
Company and transferred to the Resulting Company, with effect from April 01, 2021, the appointed date.

Shareholders of the Demerged Company will receive 81,174 share of the Resulting Company for every 100 share they hold in
the Demerged Company.

As per the Scheme, all assets and liabilities of the Auto Business (“Demerged Undertaking”) stand transferred to the Resulting
Company from the appointed date. The employees of the Demerged Undertaking have also moved to the Resulting Company
and consequently the employee related benefits and all contracts and agreements in relation to them have been taken over by
the Resulting Company. The approved Scheme has accordingly been given effect to in these standalone financial statements as
on the appointed date.

In the preparation of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, pursuant to the approved Scheme, the Resulting
Company has given effect to the scheme in the standalone financial statements for demerger of Demerged Undertaking.
Further, as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 “Business Combination”, the comparatives for the year ended
March 31, 2021 have been restated as if the common control business combination had occurred from the beginning of the
earliest period presented. The Accounting treatment includes the following:

1. Assets, Liabilities and Reserves of the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company were
recorded at their carrying values as appearing in books of the Demerged Company at the time of the demerger effective date
and in accordance with requirements of relevant Ind AS.

2. The Resulting Company will issue new equity shares pursuant to the approved Scheme to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company

3. The inter-company balances between Demerged Company and Resulting Company relating to Demerged Undertaking, if any,
in the books of accounts of Demerged Company and Resulting Company got cancelled.

4. The difference between assets, liabilities and reserves transferred and the purchase consideration on Demerger is recorded
as "Demerger Adjustment Deficit Account” of Resulting Company.

5. As per para 43 of Ind-AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows, transactions that do not require the use of cash and cash equivalents
(i.e. the above transfer of assets and liabilities under the scheme of demerger) have been excluded from the standalone cash
flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022,

The details of Demerged Undertaking as per the scheme approved by National Company Law Tribunal into Resulting Company
is as follows:

{Amount in INR Lacs)

Particulars As on April 01, 2021
ASSETS
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 15,411.59
(b) Capital work in progress 439.87
(c) Other Intangibie assets 62.42
(d) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 266.40
(e) Non current tax assets (net) 7.96
(f) Other non current assets 439.09
Total Non-current assets _ 16,627.33
P 5\(“78 RN
7/ ¢
/s X el
Z RN =
o/w N, -’\/
o
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Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Loans
(iv) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets

Total current assets
Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
(b) Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Others financial liabilities
(b) Provisions

Total non- current liabilities

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
- Total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(¢) Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Excess of assets over liabilities

Less: Issue of equity share capital of the Company due to demerger as per scheme
(Refer Note 16)

Amount debited to Demerger Adjustment Deficit Account pursuant to the above
scheme of demerger

10,499.94

15,258.03
1,486.78
0.60
1,840.20
2,145.93

31,231.48

47,858.80

3,214.36

3,214.36

12,759.27
360.15
741.47

13,860.89

16,318.52

1,389.05
11,424.92

927.38
520.90
202.78

30,783.55

47,858.80

Nil
75,279.98

(75,279.98)

Note : Equity shares pending for issuance at the end of previous year i.e. March 31, 2022 has been issued in current financial

year.
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Transfer Pricing:

The Parent Company has established a comprehensive system on maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under 92-
92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the
process of updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the year and expects such records to be
in existence latest by the due date as required under law. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid
legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements.

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises had issued an Office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micre and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Based

on information received and available with the Company, there are no amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as at March 31,2023 except as follows:-

As at As at
Particulars
- March 31, 2023 ___March 31, 2022
(i} the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at 1,591.76 1,898.22

the end of each accounting year

(ii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

(iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding

the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006

(iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting - -
year;

(v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - -
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for

the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Exceptional items includes below income & expenses :
R As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit on sale of land - 6,712.87
Loss on Demolition of Building - (138.82)
Total - 6,574.05

There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educational and Protection Fund by the Group.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment received Presidential assent in September 2020
and was published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the
Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Parent Company . The CSR activities and spend are as per the CSR Policy
recommended by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board.

All the amounts included in the consolidated financial statements are reported in Lakh of Indian Rupees ('INR’ or 'Rs.") and are rounded to the nearest lakh, unless
stated otherwise.
Relationship with Struck-off Groups

The Parent Company has not incurred any transaction with struck-off companies i.e., investments in securities, receivables, payables, shared held by struck off
companies and other balances during the period.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There is no charge created on the assets of the Group with the Registrar of Companies other than those dislosed in note number 18.

Inclusion of Prior period errors

No prior period items have been recorded or exists as on date.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Group has not done any investment or trading in crypto and virtual currencies.

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceedings has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a Company as a wilful defaulter at any time during the financial year
or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are approved.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the group to or in any

other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or
on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

The group has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Parent company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of account but has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).
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59 The Group has not declared any dividend during the year,

60 Previous year's numbers have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary,

61 In respect of immovable properties that have been taken on lease and disclose
lease aareements are dulv executed in favour of the Parerft Companv,

62

(]

64

65

to conform to current year classification.

d in the financial statements as ri
exceot for the followina: ’

ght to use asset as at the balance sheet date, the

. Whether promoter Period held
Description of immovable - Gross Carrying R A ) .~ ' | indicate range, Reason for not Being
properties taken on lease Carrying Value Value Held in Name of relda Itri?,rztg: ::':h::ree where held in name of Company
ploy! appropriate
. . Company is in the process
. . Hera Cycles Land in name of Hero | April 1, 2022 to N
316098 Sq. Ft. in Ludhiana 1,019.46 1,132.73 Limited Cycles Limited March 31, 2023 of duly executing the lease

agreement

The group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements to Schedule 111 to the Companies

Act, 2013
Net assets, i.e., total assets minus total Share of profit / (loss) Share in total compreh income / (exp )
liabilities
Name of the entity As % of consolidated (Amount in INR Lakh | As % of consolidated Amount in INR Lakh As % of total Amount in INR Lakh
net assets profit ar loss comprehensive
Income
Parent Company
Hero Motor Limited 105.13% 35,560.90 106.21% 6,023.35 115.87% 4,380.53
Subsidiary Companies
Hero Motors Thai Limited 3.99% 1,350.62 -0.94% (53.29) -1.41% (53.29)
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited 9.09% 3,075.55 -2.35% (133.26) -2.82% (106.65)
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited 0.29% 97.49 -0.06% (3.36) 0.07% (2.51)
Assoclate Company
Hewland Engineering Limited -8.59% (2,904.19) -2.87% (162.48) -18.36% (693.97)
Inter Company Elimination and
Consolidation Adjustments
Inter Company Elimination and
Consolidation Adjustments -13.27% {4,487.23) 0.00% 6.79% 256.52
Non Controlling Interest
Non Controlling Interest 3.34% 1,131.41 0.00% 0 0.00% 0
TOTAL 100.00% 33,824.55 100.00% 5,670.96 100.00% 3,780.63

As per the notification of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated Au
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended the Companies (Accounts) Rufes,
required to maintain back-up of the books of accounts and other relevant b
The books of account along with other relevant records and papers of t|

electronic mode and the same is physically located in India and backups are being carried out

The group has complied with the number of |

Rules, 2017,

on a daily basis.

gust 05, 2022, the Central Government has notified the Companies (Accounts) Fourth
2014 (hereinafter referred as 'Rules’). As per said Rules, the Companies are,
ooks and papers in electronic mode in servers physically located in India on a daily basis.
he Companies which are part of the group and incoportaed in India are maintained in

inter-alia,

ayers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

66 The Board of Directors approved the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and authorised for issue on September 30, 2023.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors of ‘

Hero Motors Limited

@-—7«-*'/

Abhishek Munial
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 05355274
Place:Noida

Date: September 30

. 2023

N

Darpan Vashishtha
Chief Financial Officer
Pan No. : ACGPV3123M
Place:Noida
Date:Sentember 30, 2023

y

Amit Gupta

Manaaing Director

(DIN: 02997032)
Place:Boston,US
Date:September 30. 2023

Sheeba Dhamiia
Company Secretary

M. No. 29705
Place:Noida
Date:September 30, 2023
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Hero Motors Limited
CIN: U29299PB1998PL.C039602
Regd. Office: Hero Nagar, G.T. Road, Ludhiana, Punjab-141003

Phone: 0161-5026969
Email: sheeba.dhamija@heromotors.com Website: www.heromotors.com

NOTICE

A NOTICE is hereby given that 24™ Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Hero Motors
Limited will be held on 1:00 P.M. (IST), Saturday, September 30, 2023 through video conferencing to transact
the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with Auditors Report and Board’s Report thereon.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, together with Auditors Report and Board’s Report thereon.

3. To appoint Mr. Keshav Misra (DIN: 00133702) as Director of the Company, who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To approve the re-appointment of M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139(1), 142 of The Companies Act, 2013
read with The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any,
(including any statutory modification(s), clarification(s), exemption(s) or re-enactment(s), thereof for
the time being in force), M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 117366W/W-100018), be and are hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to
hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2028 at such
remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be mutually agreed between the
management and the Statutory Auditors.”

Special Business:

5. To consider and approve the appointment of M/s Ramanath lyer & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost Auditor
for FY 2023-24.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following as an Ordinary
Resolution:




“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 148 (3) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made
thereunder, the appointment of M/s Ramanath lyer & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No. 000019) as
the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records made and maintained at its Ghaziabad
Plant for financial year 2023-24 at mutually agreed remuneration of Rs 1,70,000/- (Rupees One Lakh and
Seventy Thousand Only) plus GST & re-imbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, be and is hereby
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and are hereby authorized to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds
and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution.”

6. To consider and approve the appointment of Mr. Kulbir Singh (DIN: 00204829) as an Independent
Director:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following as Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions
of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV and The Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Kulbir Singh (DIN: 00204829), who was appointed as an
Additional Director in the capacity of an Independent Director with effect from February 01, 2023 and
has submitted a declaration confirming that he meets the criteria of independence under section 149(6) of
the Act and whose candidature for the office of Director has been recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors and in respect of whom the Company has received a
Notice in writing from a Member under section 160(1) of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office
of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, to hold office for a
term of 5 (five) years from the original date of appointment i.e. February 01, 2023 and whose office shall
not be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors including Nomination and Remuneration
Committee thereof, be and are hereby authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise
in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient
and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

By Order of Board of Directors
For Hero Motors Limited

Sd/-
Sheeba Dhamija
Date: 30.09.2023 Company Secretary
Place: Uttar Pradesh Membership No: A29705



https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”),
which sets out details relating to Special Business at the Meeting, is annexed hereto.

2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide its circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05,
2020 and December 28, 2022 (“MCA Circulars”) permitted holding of the AGM through video
conferencing or other audio visual means. In compliance of the provisions of the Act and MCA
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being conducted through video conferencing.

3. The Company is pleased to inform that the AGM of the Company will be held through the two-way
video conferencing facility.

4. The web-link of the meeting shall be provided separately. To access and participate in the meeting,
shareholders and other participating stakeholders are requested to install Webex application and then
click on the link provided.

5. The proceedings of the meeting shall be recorded and shall be kept in the safe custody of the Company.
Such recording shall be made available on the website of the Company.

6. The notice of the AGM is being sent by electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are
registered with the Company.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on
his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since the AGM is being held
through video conferencing pursuant to the MCA Circulars, the physical attendance of members has
been dispended with. Accordingly, the facility of appointing proxies by the members will be not be
available for the AGM.

8. Corporate Shareholders are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board
Resolution or governing body Resolution/Authorisation etc., authorising its representative to attend and
vote during the meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company at
sheeba.dhamija@heromotors.com.

9. Pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General Meetings, the information about the Directors who are
proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is given in Annexure I to this Notice.

10. The facility for joining the AGM through video conferencing will be opened 15 minutes before and will
be open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the AGM. The rule of first-come-first-served
basis would not apply to participation of shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding, promoters,
Directors, key managerial personnel and auditors.

11. Attendance of members is allowed at the meeting through video conferencing and the same shall be
counted for quorum.

12. All relevant documents (copies thereof) referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement
including Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding (as may be
applicable) under section 170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are
interested, maintained under section 189 of the Act and their shareholding, shall remain open for
inspection in the physical or electronic mode, by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
on all working days during business hours i.e. 9 a.m. to 6p.m. up to the date of the meeting.




13.

14.

15.

16.

The voting at the meeting shall be conducted by show of hands unless a poll in accordance with section
109 of the Act is demanded by any member.

When a poll is demanded during the meeting on any resolution, the members can convey their vote at
the designated email 1D of the Company i.e. sheeba.dhamija@heromotors.com.

The members can pose questions concurrently at the meeting or they can submit questions or queries
regarding the agenda items on the designated email address through which the notice has been sent.

In case of any assistance with regards to using the technology before or during the meeting, please
contact on the helpline number +91-9873368108.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEMNO.5

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of
M/s Ramanath lyer & Co., Cost Accountants to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year 2023-24 at remuneration as detailed in the resolution.

In accordance with the provisions of section 148(3) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of
the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for ratification of the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 2023-24.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company & their relatives is in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 5 for approval of the members.
ITEM NO. 6

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on February 01, 2023 on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee had appointed Mr. Kulbir Singh (DIN: 00204829) as an Additional Independent Director
for a term of 5 (five) years with effect from February 01, 2023 and pursuant to the requirements of The Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act™), it is proposed to seek approval of the members to appoint Mr. Kulbir Singh, as an Independent
Director for a term of 5 (five) years commencing from February 01, 2023. Further, Mr. Kulbir Singh shall not be
liable to retire by rotation as provided under section 152(6) of the Act.

Mr. Kulbir Singh has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in
section 149(6) of the Act. In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of section 152, the Board of Directors are of the
opinion that Mr. Mr. Kulbir Singh fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, for his appointment as an Independent
Director. The Company has received all statutory disclosures / declarations from Mr. Kulbir Singh, including:

(i)  Consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2, pursuant to Rule 8 of The Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
(i) Intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of The Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 to the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Act, and
(iii) A declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of
section 149 of the Act.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a member, pursuant to section 160(1) of the Act, proposing the
candidature of Mr. Mr. Kulbir Singh for his appointment to the office of Independent Director.

Mr. Kulbir Singh does not hold any shares/securities in the Company, either in his individual capacity or on a
beneficial basis for any other person. Except Mr. Mr. Kulbir Singh and his relatives, none of the other Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, or their relatives, are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise
in this resolution. The Board recommends the Special Resolution at Iltem No. 6 for approval of the members.



https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do

Date: 30.09.2023
Place: Uttar Pradesh

By Order of Board of Directors
For Hero Motors Limited

Sd/-
Sheeba Dhamija
Company Secretary
Membership No: A29705




Annexure |

Details of director seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting pursuant to

Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2)

Particulars Mr. Keshav Misra Mr. Kulbir Singh

Age 45 years 76 years

Qualifications Bachelor in Business | B.A., Economic Honors
Administration

Experience 24 years 56 years

Terms and  Condition  for | Director liable to retire by rotation | Appointment as an Independent

appointment / re-appointment

Director

Remuneration to be paid, if any NIL Sitting Fees: Rs. 10,000/- per
meeting

Remuneration last drawn NIL NIL

Date of first appointment on the | 09.09.2022 01.02.2023

Board

Shareholding in the Company NIL NIL

Relationship with other Director, | N.A. N.A.

Manager / KMPs

Number of Board meeting attended | 12 out of 16 1 out of 16

during the year

No. of other Directorship

e Barrier Foils Private Limited

e \ostok Capital Private
Limited

e Nuvomax Nutritionals Private
Limited

e DCM Nouvelle Limited

e Secure Earth Technologies
Limited

e DCM Nouvelle Specialty
Chemicals Limited

e Micronics India Private
Limited

Membership / Chairmanship of
Committees of other Board

NIL

1. DCM Nouvelle Ltd -Chairman
of Audit Committee.

2. In DCM Nouvelle Specialty
Chemicals Ltd- Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member
of the NRC Committee

Date: 30.09.2023
Place: Uttar Pradesh

By Order of Board of Directors
For Hero Motors Limited

SD/-

Sheeba Dhamija
Company Secretary
Membership No: A29705




Hero Motors Limited
CIN: U29299PB1998PL.C039602
Regd. Office: Hero Nagar, GT Road, Ludhiana, Punjab-141003
Phone: 0161-5026969 | Email: sheeba.dhamija@heromotors.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the meeting venue

Name of the attending shareholder/proxy Regd. Folio No./DP ID/Client ID
(In block letters)

No. of shares held

| hereby record my presence at the 24™ Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 1:00 P.M.
(IST), Saturday, September 30, 2023 through video conferencing.

Signature of proxy holder Signature of Shareholder

Notes:
1. Shareholder/Proxy is requested to bring the attendance slip with him/her when they come to
attend the meeting. No attendance slip shall be issued at the time of the meeting.

2. Shareholders are requested to indicate their folio number, the change in their addresses, if any
to the Company at its Registered Office






